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CORPORATE PROFILE
ASIEN

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL
POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products, blood management products and operates
financing business. For the year ended 31 December
2021 (the "Year"), the revenue of the Company was
approximately RMB13,151,719,000 (2020: approximately
RMB11,622,337,000), representing an increase of 13.2%
over the previous year. Net profit attributable to the owners
of the Company was approximately RMB2,244,778,000
(2020: approximately RMB2,086,783,000), representing
an increase of 7.6% over last year. As at the date of this
report, the Group added 461 hospitals, 116 other medical
institutions and 731 distributors to its PRC customer base.
The Group has a PRC customer base of 7,982 in total
(including 3,115 hospitals, 414 blood stations, 1,101
medical units and 3,352 distributors) and an overseas
customer base of 7,092 in aggregate (including 3,540
hospitals, 1,631 other medical units and 1,921 distributors).
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Revenue Breakdown

Segment Profit Breakdown

2021
——_

—_— —

CORPORATE PROFILE

Y A BA4E

Clinical Care ERFREIE

Wound Management BI{5 &1
Anesthesia and Surgery Fifi B 5 F fi7
Medical Testing 58 £1% B

Other Consumables E ¥ 44
Orthopaedic Products B %l ZE &
Pharma Packaging %% & 85
Interventional Products 77 A ZE &

[

Blood Management [Mi#& & ¥

53 8p i FUBA AR

Medical Device B 25 1

ASIEN

% of sales
HEMLE
34.8%
3.1%
1.9%
2.2%
5.4%
16.2%
15.5%
13.5%
7.4%

% of segment profit
D EB MG L
31.5%

Others Hfh

Pharma Packaging & B4
Orthopaedic Products B &l Z &
Blood Management [ % & ¥E
Interventional Product 77 A E &

Segmental revenues (RMBmn)

29.1%
25.9%
5.8%
5.1%
2.6%

% of revenues

FEBEA (AREEET) AL LE
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020
ZEZ-& CZ2IZHE  EFEHtt ZEZ-F 2 ZIZF
Medical Device Products BREWER 6,235 5,748 8.4% 47.4% 49.4%
Clinical Care ERIREIE 4,575 4,266 7.2% 34.8% 36.6%
Wound Management BEERE 412 347 19.0% 3.1% 3.0%
Anesthesia and Surgery ik B2 e i 248 193 28.3% 1.9% 1.7%
Medical Testing BEgE 295 276 6.9% 2.2% 2.4%
Other Consumables Htn¥EMm 705 666 6.0% 5.4% 5.7%
Orthopaedic Products BRER 2,127 1,748 21.7% 16.2% 15.0%
Pharma Packaging ZnaE 2,040 1,694 20.4% 15.5% 14.6%
Interventional Products NAER 1,773 1,611 10.0% 13.5% 13.9%
Blood Management b §=$Es 977 821 19.0% 7.4% 7.1%

13,152

100.0%




CORPORATE PROFILE

NEIRENT
Geographic breakdown 3h & B 4H
_ 2021
= % of sales
SHE L L
® PRC F[E 79.8%
@® United States =H 8.7%
©®  Asia 52N 5.3%
® EMEA BUN -~ RE K IEN 3.8%
Others EAth 2.4%
Segmental revenues (RMBmn) % of revenues
FEWYA (AREBBET I A{&LE
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020
—E_-5 “T”THF EPEAL “BZ-F _"T_TF
PRC = 10,495 9,090 15.5% 79.8% 78.2%
United States ESIE 1,146 1,140 0.5% 8.7% 9.8%
Asia CEp 701 579 21.1% 5.3% 5.0%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa B~ 3 R IEM 502 503 (0.2%) 3.8% 4.3%
RoW R E A& 308 310 (0.6%) 2.4% 2.7%

LAY
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CORPORATE PROFILE

ASIMBA
FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE
Increase
2021 2020 (decrease)
E-—% CZBIBFE HEGED)
RMB'000 RMB’000 %
AERBTR AREBFR
Turnover BEEE 13,151,719 11,622,337 13.2%
Gross profit EF) 7,269,404 6,499,571 11.8%
Net profit attributable to the owners of ~ ANA T A AFEEALR
the Company 2,244,778 2,086,783 7.6%
Net profit attributable to the owners of —~ REHFFRIEE AR AR
the Company (excluding B AELAF]
extraordinary items) 2,442,937 2,030,137 20.3%

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year"),
extraordinary items include a post-tax share awards expense
of RMB35,084,000 newly granted by the Company and the
post-tax provision for expenses of one pending litigation
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB163,075,000
(extraordinary items in 2020: nil).

BHE _E_—F+_RB=+t—HILHEE
(INFE)) " BHHRBEBEAAABME
HRERMDERE R AR 35,084,000
TTHARBEHEE ARG —BRRATFNRZ
HMEFEIRERA AR163,075,00075T (=
TR ERRIER [ E) o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Attending and Voting in the Annual General
Meeting

In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be dated
6 June 2022 (the “Annual General Meeting”), the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
30 May 2022 to Monday, 6 June 2022 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of H Shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for attending and voting in the Annual
General Meeting, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 May 2022. In order to qualify for
attending and voting in the Annual General Meeting:—

Latest time to lodge in transfer
instrument accompanied
by the share certificates for
HShares. ... ... ... . .. . . . . . .. . . . ... ... 4:30 p.m.,
Friday, 27 May 2022

Closure of register of
members of the Company for
attending and voting in the
Annual General Meeting . . . ............ . ... Monday,
30 May 2022 to
Monday, 6 June 2022
(both days inclusive)

Date of the
Annual General Meeting . . ................. Monday,
6 June 2022
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BREsSFHE

HERRBEXREGENG LR

AETRBHESN _E-__F,XA/~
HESZEREBFAE (IREBEF K
T)URELRENER K’&ﬂ%ﬂl—rﬁ\
T _FRA=+H EHH)E
““HF5BRH (EH) (EEEWEI’T
EER) BEERER RZPERITE
MIBHRNBRELFE - ATEER
HERREBEFERZLN L&E’Hx%
FEEERFTBEBRXHERERKRESR
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CESERERRAG MUt AT EE
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Entitlement of Proposed Final dividend

In order to determine entitlement to the proposed final
dividend payment, the register of members of the Company
for H Shares will be closed from Saturday, 11 June 2022 to
Thursday, 16 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of H Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for entitlement of the proposed final dividend,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’'s H Share registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 10 June 2022.

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer
instrument accompanied
by the share certificates for
HShares. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ........ 4:30 p.m.,
Friday, 10 June 2022

Closure of register of
members of the Company for
entitlement of the final dividend
for the year ended
31 December 2021 . .. .. ... ... ... ... Saturday,
11 June 2022 to
Thursday,
16 June 2022
(both days inclusive)

Record date for the entitlement of
the final dividend . .. ......... .. .. .. .. ... Thursday,
16 June 2022

Expected despatch date of
the final dividend . ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... . Friday,
15 July 2022

The final dividend will be despatched at the risk of those
entitled thereto to their respective registered addresses on or
before Friday, 15 July 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.065 (2020:
RMBO0.068) (before considering any tax effect) per share
totaling RMB297,091,000 (2020: RMB307,519,000), which
will be subject to the approval of shareholders of the
Company at the Annual General Meeting. The final dividend
will be denominated and declared in Renminbi. Final
dividend on non-listed domestic shares of the Company, for
full circulation H Shareholders and for investors investing in
the H shares of the Company through Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (the
“Southbound Trading”) will be paid in Renminbi, and the
final dividend for other H Shareholders of the Company
will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate for
the final dividend to be paid in Hong Kong dollars will be
the mean of the exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China during
the five business days preceding the date of approval of the
final dividend at the Annual General Meeting. The Company
will appoint a receiving agent in Hong Kong and Mainland
China respectively and will pay to such receiving agent the
final dividend (after deductions of relevant tax, if applicable)
declared for payment to Shareholders. The final dividend will
be paid by the receiving agent on or before Friday, 15 July
2022. The cheques will be despatched to H Shareholders by
ordinary post at their own risks. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Group’s various achievements as mentioned above
are attributable to the continued supports of the staff,
customers and business partners and shareholders. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks for all your contributions!

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing

Chairman
14 April 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPTIMISATION OF PRODUCT MIX

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year"”), the
gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 55.9% of
last year to 55.3%, which was mainly attributable to the
effect from change of product structure.

The existing major products of the Group under each
business line are as follows:

Clinical care business includes vascular and non-vascular
access infusion devices include infusion sets, syringes,
puncture needles, specialized single-use clinical collection
kits, digital products for clinical care, digestive nutrition,
primary care products

Wound management includes wound healing dressings,
wound suture, wound cleaning and nonvascular catheter
supporting extracorporeal devices

Anesthesia and surgery business includes general anesthesia
consumables, local anesthesia consumables, anesthesia
auxiliary consumables, ICU equipment, open and minimally
invasive surgical equipment

Medical testing business includes blood collection devices
and blood glucose testing

Orthopaedic business includes trauma, spinal implant,
artificial joints, sports injury, soft tissue repair, reconstruction
implant, orthopaedic filling, and orthopaedic related surgical
tools

Interventional business includes tumor intervention, vascular
intervention and interventional imaging

Pharma packaging business includes prefilled syringes and
pre-filled flush syringes

Blood management business includes blood collection,
storage, separation and sterilization consumables and
equipment
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

OPTIMISATION OF PRODUCT MIX (continued) miEBEERE »

12

During the Year, the clinical care business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB4,574,811,000, an
increase of 7.2% over last year. With an enhanced
product mix, it has compensated for the reduced
demand due to the restricted clinical business opening
affected by the COVID-19. The Group continued to
maintain a dominant position in the market segment.

During the Year, the orthopaedic business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB2,126,594,000,
representing an increase of 21.7% over last year.
Measures such as further consolidating its market
position in the spine segment, increased marketing
of joint products, further penetration of distribution
channels and establishment of a logistic platform have
driven sales growth.

During the Year, the interventional business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,772,944,000,
representing an increase of 10.0% over last year. The
revenue calculated at a fixed exchange rate increased
by 16.8% over last year, which was mainly attributable
to the significant growth in the sales of Argon. The
sales of Argon products in the PRC market achieved
remarkable progress.

During the Year, the pharma packaging
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB2,040,355,000, representing an increase of
20.5% over last year. Prefilled syringes recorded a
year-on-year increase of 35.2%, further expanded
its market influence in the segment of pre-pack bio-
pharmaceuticals and built a broad customer base.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group obtained
144 new patents and 161 new patents are under application
in the PRC. Product registration certificates for 40 new
products were obtained. The research and development
for 29 products were completed for which application for
product registration certificates are underway. For overseas
market, 13 new patents are under application and the
research and development for 181 products were completed
for which application for product registration certificates are
underway.

The strategy of placing strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage on its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
over 554 product registration certificates and 652 patents,
of which 97 were patents on invention, in the PRC.
For overseas market, the Group had over 742 product
registration certificates and 193 patents.

In view of the need for the strategic adjustments to product
mix, the Group continued to increase efforts on the
improvement and subdivision of product layout in existing
products series, so as to maintain its leading position in
research and development capability in China. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, total research and development
expenses amounted to approximately RMB492,133,000
(2020: approximately RMB424,422,000), representing 3.7%
(2020: 3.7%) of the revenue of the Group.

PRODUCTION

During the Year, in order to constantly expand production
capacity, the Group continued to expand its production
facilities including workshops of syringe and prefilled syringe
to satisfy the sales demand for future market growth.
Meanwhile, the Group proactively promoted improvement
of production processes and enhanced intellectualization
and automation of production equipment. The production
costs were reduced through efficiency enhancement and
scientific management, maintaining the Company’s overall
profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

SALES AND MARKETING

During the Year, the Group consolidated the marketing
management system and further adhered to the strategy of
sales channel integration and product mix adjustment and
to focus on marketing resources on customer development
and maintenance in the core healthcare market. The
Group achieved substantial results in key client accounts
management. As at the date of this report, the Group newly
added 461 hospitals, 116 other medical institutions and 731
distributors to its PRC customer base, and the Group has a
PRC customer base of 7,982 in aggregate (including 3,115
hospitals, 414 blood stations, 1,101 other medical units and
3,352 distributors) and an overseas customer base of 7,092
in aggregate (including 3,540 hospitals, 1,631 other medical
units and 1,921 distributors).

Sales comparison by geographical regions when compared
with the last year is set out as follows:

HERTIZHE

FER  AERBRETEHEERER
MERBSHERBESHEREER
KRB BEEERBEEENZO
BEmENELEEHEsE AEEH
BRAREPEEWMEBEENM -NARE
THEHR AEEHAZEFMIZ461X
Bl 116X HEMEBEBERBURTIIRE
HE AEBENERNE R EE57,982K
(B1EE 3,115~ Mik414K ~ Efh
BB, 101 RMZIHE3,352K) > &8
INEF4EEAT7,092K (A1 B B%3,540
R HMBEEMNT,631XMEHE
1,921%) °

KRBEmME A AMEEEREXFHEL
o

Turnover by Geographical Information SEWAMEEH
Increase or
decrease over
corresponding
2021 2020 period %
NG
—E--§ 2% 125%
Regions RMB’'000 RMB'000 %
HE ARBTR ARETT
The PRC Bl
— Eastern and Central —EREEHR 5,203,106 4,477,690 16.2%
- Northern -1t 2,330,107 1,976,735 17.9%
- Southern —%F 960,983 836,743 14.8%
- Northeast —-&%1 898,181 795,878 12.9%
- Southwest il 857,764 755,887 13.5%
- Northwest By 245,296 247,666 (1.0%)
PRC sub-total Eillati, 10,495,437 9,090,599 15.5%
Overseas Zoh
- USA — % 1,145,923 1,139,575 0.6%
- Asia — g 701,240 578,895 21.1%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa —BUM R K IEM 501,919 503,502 (0.3%)
- Others —Hith 307,200 309,766 (0.8%)
Overseas sub-total BIMINE 2,656,282 2,531,738 4.9%
Total st 13,151,719 11,622,337 13.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SALES AND MARKETING (continued)

Turnover by Geographical Information (continued)

Overseas revenue increased by 10.6% over last year at fixed
exchange rates.

The integration of sales channels has strengthened the
Group's market penetration and influence over the
customers. It enhanced sales contribution per customer and
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end
customers and was an important approach in generating
revenue growth for the Group.

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor in
enhancing the results for the Year. Comparison of revenue of
principal products with that in last year is as follows:

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

EIREsTsm AT
SHERTBISHE @
SR WAMEZEE (8)

BINIARBEEXGFERAFIER
10.6% °

RENBS ERTAEEETEREDN
BEN-RE RS TERZRNEM
KOFBHERLDERNEREZER
EAREBHNHRAEERN -—EBEETF
Bgo

EmEBNRABRREAEREENS —
HEZAZ SETEERWARLFY
EEIE5an ™

For the six months
ended 31 December

B#E+-A=+-BL<fEAR

Over Over
corresponding corresponding
Product category 2021 2020 period 2021 2020 period
ERER —BZ-F CZ”EF gRH C—B-E C"ZIER 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000 %

AEBTR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Medical device products BRERER 6,234,964 5,748,582 8.4% 3,362,761 3,285,702 2.3%
Clinical care BRRERE 4,574,811 4,267,450 7.2% 2,470,254 2,406,881 2.6%
Wound management BlBEE 412,385 346,590 19.0% 215,876 213,465 1.1%
Anesthesia and surgery [y &S 247,631 193,051 28.3% 129,669 127,788 1.5%
Medical testing BEnR 294,833 275,780 6.9% 168,878 176,589 (4.4%)
Other consumables Hit#EM 705,304 665,711 5.9% 378,084 360,979 4.7%
Orthopaedic products BRER 2,126,594 1,747,774 21.7% 1,042,149 917,170 13.6%
Interventional products NAER 1,772,944 1,611,583 10.0% 907,556 828,321 9.6%
Pharma packaging products Zna% 2,040,355 1,693,798 20.5% 1,082,632 929,283 16.5%
Blood management MmEEE 976,862 820,600 19.0% 527,017 446,352 18.1%
Total b 13,151,719 11,622,337 132% 6,922,115 6,406,828 8.0%

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of
11,123 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with last year is as follows:

ANER

N_E T —F+_-_A=Z+—H &&=
HEA11,123%8EE > BEAFLLERAIL
PN T




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEES A

DEPARTMENT 2B F3
2021 2020
- ZTIEZHF
Production HE 5,589 5,404
Sales and marketing HERTIZHE 2,846 2,616
Research and development o 1,229 1,165
Finance and administration B 5 /e AT 551 538
Quality control gE2ZT 519 330
Management &8 308 228
Purchasing ®EE 81 152
Total st 11,123 10,433

There are a total of 997 overseas employees who are resided
in Hong Kong, USA and Europe. Other employees of the
Group are resided in Mainland China. During the Year, the
total cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB2,031,048,000
(2020: approximately RMB1,887,811,000).

REMUNERATION SYSTEM

The Group's remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in human resources market. The
remuneration policy so determined has become the basis
of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of directors is proposed
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the directors and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of directors is proposed by the Board subject
to approval by shareholders at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BINMEBIITH  DRINEE EH W
WEBE AEENEMEEHUR
REAM - FR > AEBEETHE B
FHERESHRAEENAS AR
2,031,048,00070 (ZE-EF . 9B A
R #1,887,811,0007T) °

i B 57 3L B S

AEEFMBRERFERE 4
BYH B FEIEMANERTZHRF N
T TE o A B E BB LR E R BT
FELESEHFREKTHNEE -BUES
WEHEERFREERRIER BN EBIF
HRAERBDNEEHEREME-EF
Wi ERRAmMEETESEARTH
KEER BEFEAARBATHERFR
YRR ERIE RN F o WAERRR
RRBFRAGLRESSEITETE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded a turnover for the year of approximately
RMB13,151,719,000, representing an increase of
13.2% over the previous financial year. Net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB2,244,778,000 (2020: approximately
RMB2,086,783,000), representing an increase of
approximately 7.6% as compared with the previous year. Net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company (excluding
extraordinary items) was approximately RMB2,442,937,000
(2020: approximately RMB2,030,137,000 without taking
the accounting restatement into account), representing an
increase of approximately 20.3% over the previous year.

EEEFT A DM
A4 #5 B 8

HE_£-_—F#+-_HB=+—H
TEE FEEXHEEZTNAR
13,151,719,000 0 R F —Bf B F E
BMETI13.2% KA EE AL
A ANREE2,244,778,00070 (ZE
T ,%’JAEWZ,086,783,00075> )
BE—FEFAX7.6%  FetiE%IE
BENARBERE AEBHAFNOARTE
2,442,937,0007c (ZE_ZEEFELEESD
sHEI 49 AR 12,030,137,0007T) »
EF—FE EA#20.3% -

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHRE
Increase
2021 2020 (decrease)
—gZ-§ ZZIEZHF EEGED)
RMB’'000 RMB’000 %
ARBFTR AREFR
Turnover =B 13,151,719 11,622,337 13.2%
Gross profit EF 7,269,404 6,499,571 11.8%
Net profit attributable to the owners of  ZNA T HEHE A FEEALR
the Company 2,244,778 2,086,783 7.6%
Net profit attributable to the owners of ~ FEHEFHIEBEEARAT
the Company (excluding BB A\BLAR
extraordinary items) 2,442,937 2,030,137 20.3%

During the Year, extraordinary items include a post-tax share
awards expense of RMB35,084,000 newly granted by the
Company and the post-tax provision for expenses of one
pending litigation attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB163,075,000 (extraordinary items in 2020: nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and bank balance
amounted to approximately RMB6,628,927,000. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash flow from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB3,035,163,000, representing a sound cash flow position.

FRBHREBAARRABDMEHRER
25BN & 35,084,000 c I A A B ER
)\%'TIJ_'_I_IE%/ \Dﬁuﬁz%ﬁ?éigj:ﬂi%ﬁﬁ)\
E#5163,075,0007T0 (& — S F457K18
B .o

RBEERMBER

REBRAFEEFT BTN BHK
MR _E-_—F+_B=+—H"
XEBRESTRBTEFOAARE
6,628,927,000c B E T - —F+
B=+—HIEEE AEEKETEHIR
é/;lé;‘a*é%E%@%A%mR,OEJ63,ooo
’fﬁﬁx)lti#{*\;ﬁﬁtgo
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total interest
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB140,396,000 (2020: total interest expenses of
approximately RMB178,935,000).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group as at the end of 2021
reduced to 21.1% (2020: 23.8%).

As at 31 December 2021, total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,572,362,000 (2020: net
cash of approximately RMB1,375,356,000). The gearing
ratio represents total debt as a percentage of total capital.
Total debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital is
calculated as the Group’s shareholders’ fund.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group’s purchases and sales are mainly conducted in the
PRC and the United States. Assets, liabilities and transactions
in the PRC are denominated in RMB, while overseas assets
and transactions are mainly denominated in US dollars.
Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from outstanding
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
has adopted foreign currency hedging instruments to achieve
better foreign exchange risk management. The objective
of the hedge is to minimise the volatility of the RMB
expenditures expected to be incurred in the future to meet
foreign currency liabilities. The Group’s risk management
policy is to partially hedge the forecasted cash flows in
foreign currencies by considering the appropriate hedging
instruments and costs of hedging. The Group uses foreign
exchange structured derivative financial contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risk. For the twelve months ended
31 December 2021, the Group had not encountered any
material difficulty due to currency fluctuation nor had it
affected its funds for operation purpose.

Due to the fluctuation in exchange rates, the Company
realised a foreign exchange loss equivalent to
RMB39,357,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: foreign exchange loss equivalent to RMB39,977,000).

RBEERMBER @

HE_T”_—F#+”"B=+—HIL®#F
> zl&%lﬂ’ﬁu%iztﬂ BEEH A ANRIE
14039600071:(_7_7$ FMEZH
4aEEAy A AR 15178,935,0007T) ©
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TREE211% (CE-ZF . A23.8%) °

A E T —F+__A=+—H &&EE
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RNME-AEENEAREERRERES
BEBHH TP TANRE PR AR
WABPIERARERAE - AEEE
BINEG BT E TR SRR E I E
B -BE_ZT_—F+_-_HA=+—H
IE+Z @A AEE I ERER XS
BEEANBENEINEEETREF
%o

HREXEEH  AABRBEE_E
:—£E+_)%_+ HIEEFE > R
EERELITE ARK39,357,0005T (Z
7_7EE FEREREBELEITEARE
39,977,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A subsidiary of the Group was defendant in a product
liability claim. The Group recorded a pre-tax charge of
RMB522,650,000 for losses related to product liability
litigation. The Group regularly monitors and evaluates the
status of product liability, and may, from time-to-time,
engages in settlement and medication discussions, taking
into consideration of developments in the matters and the
inherent risks and uncertainties surrounding the litigation. As
of the balance sheet date, the Group has applied judgement
and provided for possible expenses related to the litigation.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

1. During the Year, the Group continued to invest
approximately RMB1,070,684,000 in purchase
of properties and production facilities and plant
construction for the purpose of enhancing the overall
construction of the industrial zone for the Group’s
medical consumables.

2. During the Year, the Group contributed
RMB1,115,000,000 to acquire the equity interest
held by Weigao Holding Company Limited in Wego
Healthcare Fund Holding Corporation, whose major
asset is the entire interest in Rad Source Technologies
Inc..

3. The Group planned to invest RMB770,000,000 to
acquire the 38.5% interest in the Songyuan Healthcare
Industry Fund (fRREZFEEEEZEESE), which focuses
on the investments in the medical and healthcare sector
mainly covering medical devices, bio-pharmaceuticals,
medical services and rehabilitation and elderly care,
of which a total of RMB154,000,000 has been
contributed.

4. In 2022, the Group planned to invest approximately
RMB700,000,000 in the new production lines, which is
expected to be successively put in operation by 2024.

5. In 2022, the Group planned to invest approximately
RMB150,000,000 in the upgrading and reconfiguration
of the single-use consumables production equipment to
further enhance the level of production automation.

EEEFT A DM
HEAR

rEE-—BRNBAR T —"FTERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmA DN

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS (continued)

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no future plans involving significant
investments or capital assets acquisition as at 31 December
2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the capital commitment including
acquisition, investment and purchase of property, plant
and equipment which the Group and the Company
had contracted for but not provided amounted to
approximately RMB1,113,104,000 (2020: approximately
RMB2,393,246,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged the equity
interest in Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Ltd.,
Shandong Financial Leasing Company Ltd. and Shanghai
Financial Leasing Company Ltd., wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group, and Shandong Weigao Puri Pharmaceutical
Packaging Co., Ltd., a wholly-controlled subsidiary of
the Group, to secure the long-term borrowings from
International Finance Corporation, and pledged bank
deposits of RMB760,895,000 (2020: RMB340,129,000)
to secure short-term borrowing, bills and letters of credit
granted to the Group.

The Group had pledged bills receivable of RMB54,188,000
(2020: RMB128,188,000) to secure bank facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the loan principal of Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”) amounted to
US$336,406,000, which was secured by a security package
of 100% equity interests in Argon and its subsidiaries as
well as the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
inventories, trade and other receivables, bank deposits and
cash of Argon. In the meantime, the Company provided
guarantee for Argon.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB18,810,028,000 (2020:
RMB17,581,347,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB8,220,181,000 (2020:
RMB7,168,030,000).

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

As a result of the intermittent reoccurrence of the COVID-19
across the country in 2021, response measures were actively
carried out nationwide. Medical institutions also adopted
quarantine visits, care restrictions and other measures.
The number of out-patient and in-patient visits across
the country increased as compared with that of 2020 but
decreased as compared with the level before the outbreak
of the COVID-19. The COVID-19 will continue to have
significant adverse impacts on the demand for medical
services. The Company made continuous efforts, overcame
difficulties, assisted and cooperated with medical institutions
and downstream customers and actively responded to
challenges brought about by the COVID-19.

The national healthcare reform policies entered into full
implementation in 2021. The negotiations on medical
insurance, the sixth round of centralised procurement, the
volume-based procurements of high-value consumables
and DRGs/DIP are exerting far-reaching influence on the
medical industry. Leveraging its ample product portfolios and
extensive market coverage, the Company maintained strong
resistance to risks. The Company fully predicted industry
policies and carried out layout in advance to respond actively.
Through various means such as the upgrading and updating
of products, sound cost control and expansion of grass-roots
markets, the Company seized opportunities and expanded its
market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The government boosted efforts in encouraging innovation
in medical devices. As the R&D and approval of new products
sped up, enterprises engaged in innovation in medical
devices displayed unprecedented vitality. The Company
seized opportunities, increased investment and accelerated
in R&D activities. Meanwhile, it strategically conducted
communications and cooperation with such innovative
startups to accelerate the introduction and market access of
new products. The Company sped up the improvement of
product portfolios to respond to market changes.

The Company continuously improves and enhances
governance and promotes strategies on sustainable
development to facilitate long-term and high-quality
development. It highlights responsible operation and meets
the social demands for medical products with high-quality
products. The Company emphasises the green development
concept and implements the concept, targets and action
measures on energy saving and emission reduction in
production and operation.

As a leading domestic platform-based medical devices
company, the Company enjoys significant competitiveness on
the following aspects:

1) Outstanding corporate culture and distinguished market
reputation and brand influence.

The Company always practices the corporate culture
of conscience, honesty and loyalty to meet clinical
demands. With the strong rigid demand in the market,
the implementation of volume-based procurements
and the efficiency improvement in industrial chains on
medical devices and consumables, it will significantly
facilitate the Company to rapidly expand its market
share.

2)  Open, inclusive and sharing platform advantages.

The Company promotes the coordination and
cooperation of all segments and the sharing of
resources to fully stimulate the flexibility and vitality of
all segments. Through strategic review, the Company
actively cultivates and deploys new business segments
with an aim to build them into new growth points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

3)

Solid manufacturing foundations.

The Company enjoys remarkable advantages on
automation, materials science, cost control, capacity
layout and quality control and fully meets the
requirements of volume-based procurements on price
and quality. The Company will continue to improve its
digital management on production and manufacturing,
actively deploy new materials, new technologies
and new processes to maintain and improve the
manufacturing competitiveness.

Customer resources and channel coverage.

After year of efforts, the Company has developed an
outstanding marketing system applicable to the PRC
market. It enhanced channel advantages through
further integration of sales channels. The Company
continuously sped up the improvement of product
portfolios through R&D, cooperation on domestic
and foreign products and M&As to give full display to
channel advantages.

The Company formulates development strategies and
medium and long-term development plans on a rolling
basis.

Based on the changes in industry policies and
competition layout, clinical demands and the
accumulation of its own resources, the Company

proposed three operation strategies on “platform-
based”, “international” and “digital” development
and two guarantee strategies on “talents” and

“innovation”. It will create long-term and stable value
through the implementation of such strategies.

Despite various challenges in the future, the management
has full confidence on the long-term and sustainable
development of the Company. With its strategic layout
in extensive business fields and high-quality products,
persistent in adapting to market, future operating strategy
and motivating employee creativity, the management
believes that the Company will continue to maintain
its leading position in the PRC market. Meanwhile, the
Company will proactively promote global resource sharing
to achieve the coordinated development of domestic and
foreign markets, thus supporting the stable growth in the
operating results of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EETREE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be
proposed by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. We are of the opinion that the
Directors, the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Company are able to strictly observe
their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COI\/II\/IITTEE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2021 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

HU Yunyong

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

14 April 2022
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BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIR

The Directors are pleased to submit their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Company was established and registered as a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC under the Company
Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000. The H Shares of
the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27 February
2004 and were transferred to Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 29 July 2010. On 7 August 2018, the Company
completed the H share full circulation pilot project to convert
and list 2,638,600,000 unlisted or domestic shares into H
shares. As at 31 December 2021, there was a total issued
share capital of 4,522,332,324 H Shares and 48,300,000
non-listed domestic shares.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Based in Shandong province, the Company is principally
engaged in the research and development, production and
sale of single-use medical device products and operates
finance lease and factoring business in the PRC. The Group
has a wide range of products, which cover eight principle
business lines of clinical care, wound management, medical
testing, anesthesia and surgery, orthopaedic products,
interventional products, pharma packaging and blood
management. The Group’s products are sold under its own
brand names, including “Jierui”, “Wego Ortho"”, “Yahua”,
“Bangde” and “Hai Xing”. As at the date of this report,
the Group newly added 461 hospitals, 116 other medical
institutions and 731 distributors to its PRC customer base,
and the Group has a PRC customer base of 7,982 in
aggregate (including 3,115 hospitals, 414 blood stations,
1,101 other medical units and 3,352 distributors) and an
overseas customer base of 7,092 in aggregate (including
3,540 hospitals, 1,631 other medical units and 1,921
distributors).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during
the year of 2021 at an aggregate cost of approximately
RMB844,280,000 in order to enhance its production
capacity. Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2021, there was a total issued share
capital of 4,522,332,324 H shares (the “H Shares”) and
48,300,000 non-listed domestic shares (the “Non-listed
Domestic Shares”) of the Company.

The changes in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, total reserves of the Group amounted
to RMB18,810,028,000 (2020: RMB17,581,347,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB8,220,181,000 (2020:
RMB7,168,030,000).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman)
Mr. CONG Rinan

Non-executive Director

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng
Mr. CHEN Lin
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Ms. FU Mingzhong
Ms. WANG Jinxia

REPORT OF THEEIRECTORS
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BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIRG

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the directors entered into service agreements with
the Company. The service contracts were signed for an initial
term of three years, unless and until terminated by either
party by giving notice to the other party with three months’
notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the service agreements of all directors are
renewable for successive three-year terms upon expiry.

The service agreements for directors do not stipulate for
any amount of remuneration or bonus payment to be
paid for services provided. The executive directors are paid
with a fixed sum of annual salaries for holding positions
in the Company and entitled to welfare benefits (including
retirement benefits and medical insurance) in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The non-
executive director waived her directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and accepted a nominal
annual fee of RMB1.00.

According to the respective service agreements entered into
between the Company and each of three independent non-
executive directors, each of Ms. Fu Mingzhong and Ms.
Wang Jinxia received an annual fee of RMB120,000, and Mr.
Lo Wai Hung received an annual fee of HK$200,000.

Apart from the foregoing, no directors have a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or
the Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director (with meetings as ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules) had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors
in the share capital of the Company and their associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (“SFO")), (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(i) Long positions of listed Shares of RMB0.10
each of the Company
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Approximate Approximate

Total percentage of percentage of

Approximate number of the non-listed the issued

Total percentage of non-listed domestic  share capital

Name of Types of number of H Shares of domestic Shares of of the

Director interests Capacity H Shares the Company Shares the Company Company

A28 EHAE 3

HR  JELHAER JELTRER EBETRTH

Exgth fezEn g1 HRAE HBHEDH% By BHEZHME%  HHEZH%

Mr. Long Jing Personal Beneficial owner 960,000 0.0210 6,000,000 12.40 0.1500
BRALE A EanEBA

Mr. Cong Rinan Personal Beneficial owner 400,000 0.0088 2,000,000 414 0.0500
EHMEE BA EmERAA

Mr. Chen Lin Personal Beneficial owner 196,000 0.0043 - - 0.0043

B E A BmEAA
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EEEWS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG EFENRONERRIFE (@)

POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the registered capital (ii) RERAFHEESEEARE (FAR
of holding company, Weigao Holding, an HECGERE) SEME TR

associated corporation of the Company

Approximate
percentage of
the registered

Amount of capital of
Name of registered Weigao
director Capacity capital Holding
RS EE
AT FMES
EENS g1 HMEXEE = g o
Weihai Weigao International Registered owner 1,078,000,000 89.83%
Medical Investment Holding Company
Limited* (Note)
BB ER BRI EER ERHEA A
BRERAE (W)
Mr. Chen Lin Beneficial owner 9,760,000 0.81%
PR Ak JT £ BEm#EEA
Note: LB BB BHRIELEZERBMRAST (Weihai Weigao MizE: BERMSEREEREEERERA
International Medical Investment Holding Company Limited*) is B B R H S KBRS E (BREF
owned as to 51.7% by Mr. Chen Xueli and 7.4% by Mr. Chen TEBBRMEENRKE) DHEER
Lin (Mr. Chen Xueli is father of Mr. Chen Lin). 51.7%/7.4% °
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
associates or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding company or any subsidiaries
of its holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire such rights in the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO recorded that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interest in
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Percentage

of total

Number of issued

Name of Shareholder Capacity H shares share capital
BT

Be s 4R ERRY

BRRATE 515 HEiRE B BSEE
Weigao Holding Company Limited Beneficial owner 2,099,755,676 45.94%

HEeEBEERAR BEm#EBA

Save as disclosed above, the following shareholders have
disclosed their relevant interests or long positions in the
issued share capital of the Company.
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EEERS
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERRE®
Number of % of
H shares Issued Share
Name of substantial shareholder interested Capital
BEELD HE®T
TERRLE HiZ 2 H A2 | 53 LtE
Mr. Chen Xueli 2,099,755,676(L) 45.94(L)
EETIEES
Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment Holding
Company Limited* 2,099,755,676(L) 45 .94(L)
BSE SR EBREEERBRAR
Weigao Holding Company Limited* 2,099,755,676(L) 45.94(L)
BeEEFRAT
Note: (L) - Long Position sk (L-—FA
* Source: Website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange * BERIARR BB 48 L
# For identification purpose only # (EN- %l
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEERREER

In 2021, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 3.8% of the total sales for the Year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for 1.0%
of the total sales of the Year. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 19.1% of the total purchases
for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for 6.4% of the total purchases of the
Year. During the Year, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

KRB —F BFERLREF
EMAFERHEI 8% MAEPRK
ERBEEAMEAFERFEE1.0% 0
AEBODRBEEMAFRBEEAFER
REBE19.1% MAEPRRHEEEF
TEEREBRAME R FEBIRE6.4% - AFE
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REPORT OF THE+D+IRECTORS
EETIR
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS URRnAERS

(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company (A) = TR HEIETE

On 17 November 2014, the Company’s share award
scheme (the “Incentive Share Scheme”) was adopted
by the extraordinary general meeting. The maximum
number of non-listed Shares which may be issued under
the share award scheme would be 223,818,616, which
represent 5% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company or approximately 4.76% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the
223,818,616 non-listed shares, respectively, as incentive
shares to key personnel of the Group, and other
persons as approved by the Remuneration Committee
(the “Selected Employee”), in batches in subsequent
years. The life of the Incentive Share Scheme is for 10
years starting from 17 November 2014. Details of the
Incentive Share Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 August 2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the incentive
shares will be granted to the Selected Employee, subject
to non-market performance vesting conditions.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, for Selected
Employee with a domestic identity, the trustee will
administer the incentive shares, which may be organised
in forms of companies owned by the employees, limited
partnership, or qualified trust companies in the PRC,
or for Selected Employee with a foreign identity, the
trustee will hold the incentive shares outside the PRC.

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted
first 45,960,000 incentive shares to 111 Selected
Employees. On 4 January 2016, the trustees subscribed
the 45,960,000 shares with the consideration of
RMB101,112,000 at the issue price of RMB2.20 per
share.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) UiinBERAER @

(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company (A) 2T HEEE (&)

(continued)

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant date
amounted to RMB104,121,000 which determined by
market price of listing shares of the Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified vesting
conditions, the difference between the fair value and
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the periods in which services are
expected to be rendered by the relevant employees.
The Group recognised the incentive share expenses of
approximately RMB3,572,000 (2020: RMB7,903,000)
into the profit or loss during the current year.

Three limited partnerships (named Weihai Chang
Hong Enterprise Management Consulting Centre
(Limited Partnership) (Ei/BRATEEIEZAFT L (B
[R5 %)), Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise Management
Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (B /&% N
PEERFZHTL (BREE)) and Weihai Hong Tu
Enterprise Management Consulting Centre (Limited
Partnership) (BB ZEB R XEEBHAAFTL (ERE
%)), respectively) were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme and holding
the shares, and hereby regarded as trustees of the
Company and consolidated to the Group accordingly.

Details of specific categories of share award are as
follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

REFRRZHBRNDZAFEA
E1&104,121,000e 5 8&2EZ KR
Al EmRMDZHEMERE -

ML BENEIECEBEGNR
mms AFEHEERBRMDET
BrENEBEREHEEERE
ERERENEBIHRNUELRZ X
BAARZ RAEE  AEER
EaRAEBROBEZHOARK
3,572,000 (ZE -4 : AR
7,903,0007T) °

MEEMBE KD 8 REFE RN R
YZz=EEREBAE MDA
BB RABEEIEZAAL (IR
a8  BBHNEEEEEHRPR L
(BERE®) B ERETRXERE
PN (BRE®)) » BUIEHER
RANBZZFHEARAER NER
e AN

BEERMBBIERFENT

Issue Price

2 it B HA EREA %1718
Batch 1 11/12/2015 5 years RMB2.2
ki —E-AF+ZRA+—H 56 AR®2.27T

Note: The granted shares are vested in five tranches with the vesting
date on 31 December of each year from 2015 to 2019, the
vested shares are excisable after two years lock up period
following vested.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) UiinBERAER @

(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company (A) AT HEEE (&)

(continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the outstanding incentive
shares under the Incentive Share Scheme were
16,904,000 (2020: 23,564,000), included 9,922,000
exercisable shares (2020: 9,570,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the trustees
repurchased 9,108,000 shares (2020: 9,064,000),
which would be taken up by the Selected Employees
with the net consideration of RMB20,293,000 (2020:
RMB52,571,000) at the price of RMB4.43 per share
(2020: RMB8.00). The repurchased shares are held by
the trustees for the benefit of the Share Award Scheme,
to grant or sell to other selected employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
trustees sold 6,660,000 repurchased shares for a total
consideration of RMB94,170,000 (2020: 22,396,000
repurchase shares for a total consideration of
RMB259,745,000, certain of which were used to settle
the loan provided by the controlling shareholder and
the interest thereon).

On 21 October 2021, the trustees subscribed the newly
issued 48,300,000 non-listed domestic shares with the
total consideration of RMB172,914,000 at the issue
price of RMB3.58 per share. On 24 December 2021, the
Company granted 48,300,000 incentive shares to 83
Selected Employees.

Based on the Share Award Scheme of the Company,
the Company will repurchase the shares granted to
the Selected Employees when the Selected Employees
are not satisfying specified vesting conditions. The
total consideration paid by the Selected Employees are
recognised as liabilities, and will only be reversed by
portion to other reserve when the shares are vested
each year.
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(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company (A) 2T HEEE (&)

36

(continued)

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant date
amounted to RMB197,490,000 which determined by
market price of listing shares of the Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified vesting
conditions, the difference between the fair value and
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the periods in which services are
expected to be rendered by the relevant employees.
The Group recognised the incentive share expenses
of approximately RMB41,275,000 (2020: nil) into the
profit or loss during the current year.

Nine limited partnerships were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme and holding
the shares, and hereby regarded as trustees of the
Company and consolidated to the Group accordingly.

Details of specific categories of share award are as
follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

REFRRZHBRNDZAFEA
E1197,490,000n 5 &2EZ X
Al EmRMDZHEMERE -

ML BENEIECEBEGNR
mms AFEHEERBRMDET
BrENEBEREHEEERE
ERERENEBIHRNUELRZ X
BAARZ RAEE  AEER
EaRAEBROBEZHOARK
41,275,00070 (Z B T4 | ) o

FLE BB AR 10 5T B R T B IR 1D 5%
YZNBEREGBAT  BUILWE
B/ERBZRENRERAEE
Ara AR

BieR M ABER BN T ¢

Issue Price

EHEE 55 = HA #1178
Batch 2 24/12/2021 5 years RMB3.58
$E2HE —_E_—F+”"H”-+MHMAH 54 AR #83.587T
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

On July 26 2018, WW Medical and Healthcare
Company Limited (“WW Cayman”), a subsidiary of
the Company, adopted a non-qualified share option
plan (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of WW Cayman and its subsidiaries, which
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the adoption date. Under the Share
Option Scheme, a committee designated by the board
of directors of the WW Cayman may from time to
time in its sole discretion grant options to the eligible
employees.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 8% of the shares of WW
Cayman in issue at closing date. Unless approved by
the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of WW Cayman’s shares in
issue.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
2,654,859, representing 7% (2020: 2,166,213,
representing 7%) of the shares at that date.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.
Options may be exercised at any time after vesting
and will be cancelled if not exercised before the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant.

The exercise price of each batch of option is determined
with reference to the total cash consideration paid by
the Company in the formation of WW Cayman for the
acquisition of Argon, taking into account the relevant
costs and expenses involved, but in no event shall be
less than the fair market value of a share of stock in
WW Cayman on the date of grant.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman
(continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

B fn BRI &

)

(b) WW CaymanifERR#stE (48)

BRBREERFFNT

Vesting Exercise

Date of grant period Price

EHAMH BED TR

Time-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00

R A EERE “E-N\F 45 10.00% 7T
tBZ+iH

Time-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00

R AEERE “E-NE 45 10.00% 7T
+H=+H

Time-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00

R AEERE “ZZF 45 10.00% 7T
=BA+=H

Time-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00

R AEERE “EZ-F 45 10.00% 7T
tHA=+H

Performance-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00

REEERERE “E-N\F 45 10.00% 7T
tBZ+AH

Performance-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00

REEERERE “E-NE 45 10.00% 7T
+H=+H

Performance-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00

REEERERE “ZZF 45 10.00% 7T
=BA+=H

Performance-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00

REEERERE “EZ-F 45 10.00% 7T
tHA=+H

The following table discloses movements of the share TRINBEERNEEFITHEBIRENS

options held by employees during the year: BN

Outstanding at Granted Forfeited Outstanding at

Option type 11/2021  during year  during year 31/12/2021

RZEZ-%F —BC-&

—-R—-H +ZB=+-H

g 4 B35 FRELH FERRK WA T

Time-based options By B ZE RS R A 1,446,725 180,000 (29,075) 1,597,650

Performance-based options RIFEEBERE 719,488 337,721 - 1.057,209

2,166,213 517,721 (29,075) 2,654,859
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options
were granted on 30 July 2021. The estimated fair value
of the time-based options granted on that date is
USD4.64. The estimated fair value of the performance-
based options on that date is USD4.64.

The fair value of the options was calculated using the
Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:
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(b) WW CaymanifERR#stE (48)

REBEE_Z_—F+"H=+—H
LFEE BRENR-_Z-_—FtH
=+ HERS -NZARRHE
BIEEBRENGST QA FERSL 64
EL R APNKREEERBRE
B 5 A F{E#4.645 7T °

BRIEZATEXRBH R
MATEBEREGHE - REHIMAHK
EL I

2021 2020

—E-—&F —T-3f
Weighted average share price 10.00 10.00
MNREE SRR B
Exercise price 10.00 10.00
TEE
Expected volatility 40% 40%
EEENEIES
Expected life 7 years £ 7 years &
TEHAF 1A
Risk-free rate 2.959%, 2.95%
o LB A

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the comparable companies over
the previous 7 years (2020: 7 years). The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(c)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

(continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of
UsD4,108,000 (equivalent to RMB26,506,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: USD2,267,000,
equivalent to RMB15,801,000) in relation to share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme by WW
Cayman.

Share Award Scheme by Weigao Orthopaedic

On 9 May 2020, a share award scheme was adopted
by the extraordinary general meeting of Weigao
Orthopaedic (the “"Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme”). A total number of 3,300,000 shares of
Weigao Orthopaedic were awarded to the eligible
senior management and employees (the "Eligible
Employees”), which representing 0.92% shareholding
of Weigao Orthopaedic.

The issue price of Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme is RMB15 per share, the total consideration
amounted to RMB49,500,000. 60% of consideration
was covered by the loan provided by Weihai
Hongyangrui to the Eligible Employees, and the
remaining 40% was funded by themselves.

Details of the shares awarded are as follows:

Ui SERMAR @

EH

(b) WW CaymanifERR#stE (48)

(c)

AEBEFBIEWW Caymanhy BB
7f2é*+¥IH§u%Bﬁﬁ%Hﬂ&ﬁﬁ= -

T —F+_BA=+—HLEE
%5%%3‘22%4,108,000%75 CGEEIA
AR #26,506,0007) (ZE =
£ 12,267,000E 7 HERARE
15,801,0007T) ©

B = B F B B 19 3 Bh 51 &1

N _E_EFRBE AR ESE
IR BB K R D BB Bt
g2 (TEEER R BBEEtE) o
5 $3,300,000 = & &R 19 %

TEEREREEERES (T5
BERER)) HEHSERKREN
0.92%°

B iR BBt aNETES
ERARBIST BREAARE
49,500,00075° HEH60% N EH
BELBimE e EREERENE
AT HER40%HBEBEHE -

EHEBRMDFBOT

Vesting

Date of grant period

BHAMH REH

Performance-based awards 9/05/2020 4 years
RBEERE —E-Ef

nANA 4F
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme by Weigao Orthopaedic

(continued)

Based on the Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme, as the subsidiary of the Company will
repurchase the shares granted to the Eligible Employees
when the Eligible Employees are not satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the total consideration paid by the
Eligible Employees are recognised as liabilities, and will
only be reversed by portion to other reserve when the
shares are vested each year.

The estimated fair value of the performance-based
awards on the grant date is RMB19.8 per share. The
difference between the fair value and the issue price
of the vested shares is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the periods in which services are expected
to be rendered by the Eligible Employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, Weigao Orthopaedic
recognised a share awards expense of approximately
RMB5,139,000 into the profit or loss (2020:
RMB6,958,000).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERING OF SUPPLEMENTAL LOGISTIC
AND DISTRIBUTION SERVICES FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 26 August 2020 and the circular of the Company
dated 22 September 2020 in relation to, among others, the
Logistic and Distribution Services Framework Agreement. On
27 August 2021, the Group entered into the Supplemental
Logistic and Distribution Services Framework Agreement to
revise the annual cap from RMB1,400 million to RMB2,500
million for the year ending 31 December 2021. All other
terms as stipulated in the Logistic and Distribution Services
Framework Agreement remain unchanged.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERING OF LOGISTIC SUPPORT SERVICES
AGREEMENT

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 5 December 2018, 27 September 2019, 18 December
2019, 20 December 2019, 26 August 2020, 28 October
2020 and 2 November 2020 and the circulars of the
Company dated 27 September 2019, 22 September 2020
and 16 November 2020 in relation to, among others, the
continuing connected transactions agreements, including
the Purchase Framework Agreement, the Deposit Services
Agreement, the Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement, Sales Framework Agreement, the Services
Framework Agreement and the Tenancy Framework
Agreement (the “CCT Agreements). On 16 November
2021, the Company and/or its subsidiaries entered into the
Supplemental Agreements with Weigao Holding and/or its
subsidiaries and associates (“Weigao Holding Group”) (i) to
extend the agreement terms of the CCT Agreements to 31
December 2023; and (ii) to propose new annual caps for
the years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 (wherever
applicable).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

Supplemental purchase framework agreement

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Purchase Framework Agreement with
Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) new annual
caps of RMB1,300 million and RMB 1,500 million for the
years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively.
Purchases of medical based products, including but not
limited to, medical equipment, medical raw materials,
medical packaging materials, pharmaceutical and
medical devices by the Group from the Weigao Holding
Group. The annual cap for purchase transactions of
the Company from Weigao Holding Group shall not
exceed RMB1,400.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. During the Year, the actual amount of
transactions in relation to purchase transactions under
the Supplemental Purchase Framework Agreement was
approximately RMB1,031.8 million.

Logistic support services framework
agreement with logistic company

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into
the Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement
with Logistic Company for a term of two years from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023, pursuant to
which the Company agrees to subscribe, or procure
its subsidiaries to subscribe, and Logistic Company
agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
integrated medical device supply chain logistic services.
Logistic Company Group delivers the Group’s products
to its customers (such as hospitals), collects payment
from the customers on behalf of the Group and settles
the amount paid by the customers (net of the logistic
service fees charged by Logistic Company Group) with
the Group.

REPORT OF THE+D+IRECTORS
EETIR

HEMERS

AT IR IE IR R a8

W2 _—F+—HB+/,<H '«
NEEHSEB AT HETR
BERGZ U)BHEARLER
MEE_E_=F+"_A=+—
H MINEZEEBE_ST__FXk
=+ ”"“RB=+—HL
EEENHFEELRDNA A
ER#1,300,000,00070 & AR I&
1,500,000,0007T ° 2~ £ & [A) [&, = £
BERBEREES BF (BARERM)
BERXH - BRERME BEREGL
MENERREERW -BE_ET
T —F+ZR=+—HILEE >R
NEEESERRENRZEE £
[RAEBid AR %1,400,000,0007T ©
RER M EBESIGEIE T
BRENEBRRZEEAAARE
1,031,800,0007T °

BYR AT TR X IRFSHESR
thh a2

A _E_—F+—B+RB AR
15@#@/}%@1uT_LtF@/MLEZT—IEE%&*[
R “ETF—F—H=E
_7__¢+ B=+—H#%Hm
FoRBIb KABRERBHIERE
HNBRBEHRE MR sRER
REFEEEMNBLEIRELGSE
B EREY TR YR AE
EEFAEENERXNFERER
(MNERE) » KA ERMBE P/ WA
BT EHAERGEERERZONE
X8 (MNP m A B & B U BB Y10
RFEE) o




BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIR

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

44

Logistic support services framework
agreement with logistic company (continued)

The Group negotiates and agrees the pricing of
medical consumables and devices products directly with
hospitals and nominate logistic operators (including the
Weigao Holding Group) to deliver the products. Logistic

B R AT TR X RFBSESR
e (7)

AEBEE BB ED G E B
BRFEM R s M E MBI ERK > WI5E
YREER (BEREER) XM
Em-RBEBNAERDELR

operators collect the payment from the hospitals on WERIE TRy EEHAKRE
behalf of the Group and the logistic operators settle the E 4 E B E R WERI I - ) E

payment received from the hospitals with the Group on
a back-to-back basis. The settlement amount between
the logistic operators and the Group is the net amount
after deducting the logistic services fees charged by
the logistic operators from the gross amount paid by
hospitals. Pursuant to the Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement, the logistic service fee charged
by Logistic Company Group represents 3% of the total
amount paid by hospitals. The logistic service fee of 3%
is determined by the Company and Logistic Company
after arm’s length negotiations and with reference to
the market fees charged by other independent logistic
operators providing similar services as well as the
fees charged by Logistic Company to its independent
customers in its ordinary course of business. The
Proposed Annual Caps in respect of the logistic service
fees charged by Logistic Company are RMB155 million
and RMB186 million for the year ending 31 December
2022 and 2023.

The annual cap for logistic support services of the
Company shall not exceed RMB2,500.0 million. During
the Year, the actual amount settled with Logistic
Company Group for the product sales to hospitals
under Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement
with logistic company was approximately RMB2,156
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Supplemental deposit services agreement

Under the Deposit Services Agreement, Lanhai Bank
agrees to provide deposit services to the Group and
the Group agrees to utilize such deposit services. On
16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement with Lanhai
Bank to (i) extend the agreement term for one year to
31 December 2023; and (ii) propose new annual cap
of RMB300 million for the year ending 31 December
2023. Except for the extension of the duration of the
agreement and the proposition of the new annual cap
for the year ending 31 December 2023, all other terms
of the Deposit Services Agreement remain unchanged.
The annual cap (maximum daily balance of deposits
(including the interests accrued thereon)) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB300.0 million and
the actual maximum daily balance of deposits (including
the interests accrued thereon) for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB195.0 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

4.

Supplemental finance leasing and factoring
framework agreement

Under the Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement, the Group agrees to provide finance leasing
and recourse and non-recourse factoring and other
commercial factoring services to Weigao Holding Group.
On 16 November 2021, WEREHESMEHEERRE LD
(Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.) and L
EESREREAMR AT (Shanghai Weigao Financing
Lease Co., Ltd.), both are subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into the Supplemental Finance Leasing and
Factoring Framework Agreement with Weigao Holding
to (i) extend the agreement term for two years to 31
December 2023; and (ii) propose new annual caps
of RMB500 million for each of the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023. Except for the extension of
the duration of the agreement and the proposition of
the new annual caps for the years ending 31 December
2022 and 2023, all other terms of the Finance
Leasing and Factoring Framework Agreement remain
unchanged. The annual cap in respect of the finance
leasing and factoring business contemplated under the
Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Finance Leasing
and Factoring Framework Agreement) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB500.0 million and
the actual aggregate value of finance leasing and
factoring amount for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB499.3 million.

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HAEMEHERFAEERN S

RERSHEERFEERGZ K
ERREDESEERHMER
EMEEREKRBEBEREFRELY
REMEEREBRE RN_2 _—
F+—B+ B LERERER
EERATRLELEHEEMEREE
BRAR BAABEXKRABZHBAE)
ﬂmmﬁl jﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BERRIBEZRZE > U5 &R
@Lﬁmﬁi_v__¢+ )=
—+—H; kMiEREE_ZT__
ER_EBE_ZF+_"_A=+—HIE
FEEFEFNNFELRAAR
500,000,0007T ° BRIE R 7% HAFR
UEBE-SE-__FR-_E-=
+_A=t+—HLEEEEZHINE
ELRI HERE &ﬁﬂﬁ%%
%Z%ﬁﬁ@%m%hx ''''' o E
FHERFREBERpGS CHTRE
HERFREBEZRHERMET) BT
ETZRHEREARGREBERHEEC
T _—F+_BA=+—HLEEE
HNEE RS AR500,000,000
TOURBE_SE-_—F+_R4
—+—HEFENREAERRF
BtHENEREENA AR
499,300,0007T °

' LEREEERASHTERRAERAT 2021 £}



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Supplemental sales framework agreement

Under the Sales Framework Agreement, the Company
agrees to sell or procure its subsidiaries to sell, and
Weigao Holding agrees to purchase or procure its
subsidiaries to purchase products including but not
limited to, medical devices, carton box and moulding.
On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Sales Framework Agreement with Weigao
Holding to (i) extend the agreement term for two years
to 31 December 2023; and (ii) propose new annual
caps of RMB500 million for each of the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023. Except for the extension
of the duration of the agreement and the proposition
of the new annual caps for the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023, all other terms of the Sales
Framework Agreement remain unchanged. The annual
cap for the sales transaction from the Group to Weigao
Holding shall not exceed RMB500.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, During the Year, the actual
transaction amounts of sales by the Group to Weigao
Holding Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB436.9 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FERERXS @

(continued)

6. Supplemental services framework agreement 6. HRIRFEIERGSE

Under the Services Framework Agreement, the
Company agrees to subscribe or procure its subsidiaries
to subscribe, and Weigao Holding agrees to provide or
procure its subsidiaries to provide services including but
not limited to, dormitory, catering services and hotel
services. On 16 November 2021, the Company entered
into the Supplemental Services Framework Agreement
with Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) propose
new annual caps of RMB40 million and RMB50 million
for the years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023,
respectively. Except for the extension of the duration of
the agreement and the proposition of the new annual
caps for the years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023,
all other terms of the Services Framework Agreement
remain unchanged. The annual cap for the services
transaction provided from the Group to Weigao Holding
shall not exceed RMB90.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. During the Year, the actual transaction
amounts for the services provided by Weigao Holding
Group to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB13.6 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Supplemental tenancy framework agreement

Under the Tenancy Framework Agreement, the Group
agrees to lease its premises located at industrial zone
at Chucun in Weihai in Shandong Province, the PRC to
Weigao Holding Group and receive rentals therefrom.
On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement with
Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) propose new
annual caps of RMB25 million for each of the years
ending 31 December 2022 and 2023. Except for the
extension of the duration of the agreement and the
proposition of the new annual caps for the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023, all other terms of the
Tenancy Framework Agreement remain unchanged. The
annual cap for the rental received by the Group from
Weigao Holding Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 shall not exceed RMB25.0 million and the actual
transaction amounts for the rental received by the
Group from Weigao Holding Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB8.7 million.

7.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's
business;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
shareholders as a whole.

ASSURANCE PROCEDURES PERFORMED BY
AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
appointed the auditor of the Company to report on the
above continuing connected transactions between the
Company and the connected persons for the year ended 31
December 2021. The auditor of the Company was engaged
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA and reported the
following conclusion to the Board:
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ASSURANCE PROCEDURES PERFORMED BY
AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company: (i) have received
approval from the Board; (ii) were conducted in accordance
to the pricing policy; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the cap amount
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 disclosed in
the relevant announcements. Having reviewed the subject
continuing connected transactions, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry out an
annual review on the continuing connected transactions,
confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company, on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Framework
Agreements governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders as
defined under the “Listing Rules” of the Company or their
respective associates has any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CCGP")
contained in the Listing Rules which set out the principles of
good corporate governance and the Company is required to
comply with the code provisions of the CCGP. The Company
fully admitted that good corporate governance, as part
of the Company's culture, can create values to the Group
and the Shareholders efficiently. The Board is committed
to continuing to enhance the standards of corporate
governance within the Group and to ensure that the Group
conducts its businesses in an honest and responsible manner.
The Group has adopted practices which meets the code
provisions of the CCGP.
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SEPARATE LISTING OF SHANDONG WEIGAO
ORTHOPAEDIC DEVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
("Weigao Orthopaedic”) (688161.SH), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, completed its listing
application on the Science and Technology Innovation
Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the initial public
offering of the ordinary shares, with total net proceeds of
RMB1,382,285,000 from the initial public offering on 30
June 2021.

CHANGE OF BOARD COMPOSTION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on director and senior management during the
year ended 31 December 2021:-

1. Mr. CHEN Lin has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 8 March
2021.

2. Mr. TANG Zhengpeng has been appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 8
March 2021.

3. Mr. ZHANG Huawei has resigned as executive director,
chairman of the Board and authorized representative of
the Company with effect from 30 March 2021.

4. Mr. WANG Yi has resigned as executive director of the
Company with effect from 30 March 2021.

5.  Mr. LONG Jing has resigned as chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 30 March 2021. Mr
Long has been appointed as Chairman and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 30
March 2021.

6. Mr. CONG Rinan has been appointed as a chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from
30 March 2021. Mr. Cong has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 24
May 2021.

7.  Mr. LIAN Xiaoming has been appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 24
May 2021.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
of its securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive right under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIVERSITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its diversity policy with respect
to the composition of the Board. In assessing candidates
running for directorships, the Nomination Committee will
consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, technical expertise and the ability to fulfill the
requirements of the Board. Details on the biographies and
experience of the Directors are set out on pages 77 to 81 of
this report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT AND MARKET
CAPITALIZATION

Based on the publicly available information known to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as of
the date of this report, the public float of the Company is in
compliance with that stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. As at 31 December 2021, the market
capitalization of the Company was approximately HK$44.0
billion.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibility for preparing
the accounts and have confirmed that the preparation of
the Group’s financial statement is in compliance with the
relevant regulations and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
Directors adopted appropriate and consistent accounting
policies and made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimations.

The financial statements for the Year have been prepared by
the Directors on a going concern basis. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern. A statement by the external auditors of
the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the accounts of the Group is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing
Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
14 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company recognize the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “"Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, which
have been adopted by the Group since its listing on 28
February 2004.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the
year of 2021.

The following summarizes the corporate governance
practices of the Company:

The Board of Directors

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility
to act objectively in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
The Board of Directors (continued)

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, including two executive Director, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman)
Mr. CONG Rinan

Non-executive Director:

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng
Mr. CHEN Lin
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Ms. FU Mingzhong
Ms. WANG Jinxia
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Board currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of the Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed by annual confirmation that he/she
has complied with the independence criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Director consider that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgment. Amongst the three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Wai Hung has
the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise required under
Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings were held two times during this year
to review and approve financial and operating performance,
interim and annual results. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Notice of board meeting will be sent to all Directors at
least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting. Reasonable
notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc board meetings.
Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant
materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable requests, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR BTFEFETEHSTINIESE
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS Al

(continued)

Board Meetings (continued) sE5gg3E (@
Number of Board meetings held during the year 2021: two. RIE I FERTNESEEELX
Bi2h;ko

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during #®ZEZE_-_ZT-_—F+"HA=+—HIF

the year ended 31 December 2021 was as follows: B BREFHRFEEGERNBERET
mr
Attendance
in 2021
R-E-—%
B =
Executive Directors: BITES .
Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman) Bed e (£/E) 100%
Mr. CONG Rinan =R E 100%
Non-executive Director: JEMITES :
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng wm EBS T4 100%
Mr. CHEN Lin PR A 50 100%
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming e 100%
Independent non-executive Directors: JHIIIEHITESE :
Mr. LO Wai Hung EEERE 100%
Ms. FU Mingzhong IR+ 100%
Ms. WANG Jinxia FiREL L 100%

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are EFENEZECTEREIBEELRE ME
recorded, and final version are submitted to Directors for KRBEAGRSERERN (—HRAARE
review within reasonable time after the meetings, normally #B+PHHER) XX EFHR -

14 days after the meetings.

Secretary of the Board assists the chairman to establish EEZZWEHHEIFERUITEZZRZ M

meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of R EFBPIEREZEZNMAZERE-
items in the agenda.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions. The Directors
concerned can express views but will not be counted in the
quorum of meetings and shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution(s).

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Long
Jing is the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director
of the Group’s business. Mr. Cong Rinan is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the Board
itself, who is responsible for the leadership of the effective
operation of the Board, and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board on a timely
basis and in a constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is appointed by the Board. He is responsible for the
management of daily operations of the Company and the
implementation of the strategies and plans determined by
the Board.

Experience

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors
possess administrative leadership, diversified knowledge
and extensive management experience in the industry. The
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
knowledge, experience and judgment in different areas.
The Board will seriously consider the objective views of the
independent non-executive Directors for making decisions,
and regard this as an effective guidance for the Group’s
business direction.
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TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Directors’ responsibility

The Board manages the business of the Company on behalf
of its shareholders. The Directors consider that they are
obliged to fulfill their responsibilities in a prudent, diligent
and faithful manner, so as to create value for shareholders
and safeguard the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of
the Code. The remuneration committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai
Hung, Ms. Fu Mingzhong and Ms. Wang Jinxia and one non-
executive director Mr. Tang Zhengpeng.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group’s performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the Year, two meetings have been held by the
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration
committee attended the meeting during which the
remuneration package of directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company for the year 2021. The
chairman of the remuneration committee reports the
findings and provides recommendations to the Board after
each meeting.

During the Year, the remuneration committee has convened
two meeting and the attendance of each remuneration
committee member is set out below:

TEERARS

ETERETEFTXBHRE
5 4
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Attendance
in 2021
R-E-—%
B FE =
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung ERIERE 100%
Ms. FU Mingzhong TRz L 100%
Ms. WANG lJinxia FREXZL 100%
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng mIERERE A 100%
Nomination Committee RLZEY

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012 in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises Mr. Lo Wai Hung,
Ms. Fu Mingzhong and Ms. Wang lJinxia and one non-
executive director Mr. Tang Zhengpeng. The chairman of the
nomination committee is Mr. Lo Wai Hung. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee have been defined.
The principal duties include:

—  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy.
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TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

—  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

— to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

— to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall have access to
independent professional advice if necessary. All members
of the Nomination Committee have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management
for obtaining necessary information.

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years, and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has not experienced any casual vacancy
for members of the Board. In the event that there is such
circumstance, the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Board selects and nominates Director candidates based
on whether they possess the skills and experience needed for
the Group’s development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

During the Year, the nomination committee has convened
one meeting and the attendance of each nomination
committee member is set out below:

TEERARS

Attendance
in 2021
) e 3
B =
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung ERIERE 100%
Ms. FU Mingzhong LNk 100%
Ms. WANG Jinxia FiRER L 100%
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng wIEME % 100%

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee
comprises Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Ms. Fu Mingzhong and Ms.
Wang Jinxia as members. Mr. Long Jing has been appointed
as the chairman of the committee with effect from 30 March

2021.

The terms of reference of the corporate governance

committee have been defined. The principal duties include:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee will be provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall have
access to independent professional advice if necessary. All
members of the Corporate Governance Committee will have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
and separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for obtaining necessary information.

During the Year, the corporate governance committee has
convened one meeting. The attendance of each Director is
set out below:
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Attendance
in 2021
R-E-—%
B =
Director HITES
Mr. LONG Jing BEAR LA 100%
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung EEELE 100%
Ms. FU Mingzhong IR+ 100%
Ms. WANG Jinxia FHRERZL 100%
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT MR RE&EH
Financial Reporting MBRSE

All Directors are provided with explanations and information
by the management of the Company so as to enable them to
have discussions and make assessment at Board meetings.

All Directors acknowledge the responsibility for the
preparation of its accounts, with the responsibility statement
in respect to the financial reports made by the Directors set
out in this annual report. The auditors have also made a
statement about their responsibilities in the auditor’s report.

The Board presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment on the position and prospects of
the Group in all shareholder communications.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training program and budget.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the audit committee of the
Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai Hung (chairman of the audit
committee), Ms. Fu Mingzhong and Ms. Wang Jinxia and one
non-executive director Mr. Tang Zhengpeng. The terms of
reference of the audit committee have been clearly defined.
Its principal responsibilities include:

—  To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the
same at the general meeting for consideration. To
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors when the general meeting is
authorizing the Board to determine the remuneration
of the auditors, and to address any questions regarding
the resignation or retirement of that auditor.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) MERZH @
Audit Committee (continued) BRZZEEE (&)

66

To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.

To monitor the completeness of the financial statements
of the Company and the annual report and accounts
and half-year report of the Company and to review the
significant opinion of the respective financial reporting
contained therein. In this regard, the committee will
review the relevant statements and reports of the
respective annual report and accounts and half-year
report of the Company before submitting the same to
the Board.

To oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the Year, the audit committee has convened five
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and
reviewed the interim and annual results and have discussed
and considered the internal control procedures of the Group.
The attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Attendance
in 2021
R-8Z—
HY i FE =
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung EEELRE 100%
Ms. FU Mingzhong IR+ 100%
Ms. WANG Jinxia FiREL L 100%
Non-executive Director JERMITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng w IEME 4 100%

The scope of responsibilities of the audit committee is
available on the websites of Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There was no disagreement between the audit committee
and the Board in respect of the selection, appointment,
resignation or removal of external auditors during the year of
2021.

The audit committee can consult independent professional
advice in accordance with stated procedures at the expense
of the Company.

In 2021, the audit fees paid to the external auditors by the
Company was approximately RMB7,677,000.

Mandate Granted to the Board

The Board should assume the responsibility for the leadership
and monitoring of the Company, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company. The
responsibilities of the Board are defined explicitly in the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(1)

(10)

(11)

(12)

to be responsible for convening shareholders’ meetings
and report on its work at shareholders’ meetings;

to implement the resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings;

to determine the business plans and investment plans of
the Company;

to formulate the annual fiscal budgets and final
accounts of the Company;

to formulate profit distribution proposals and loss
recovery proposals of the Company;

to formulate proposals for increasing or reducing of the
registered capital of the Company and proposals for
issue of debentures of the Company;

to draft proposals for the merger, division and
dissolution of the Company;

to determine the establishment of the internal
management bodies of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the
Company, and to appoint or dismiss the deputy general
manager and other senior management, including
the person in charge of finance, pursuant to the
recommendations of the general manager, as well as to
determine their compensations;

to formulate the basic management system of the
Company;

to formulate proposals for amendments to the Articles
of Association of the Company; and

to exercise other functions as stipulated by the
Articles of Association or granted by the shareholders’
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

The Board has granted authority to the chief executive
officer to implement the following strategies and to be
responsible for the day-to-day operation:

(1) to be in charge of the management of production and
operation and to organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

(2) to organize the implementation of the annual business
plans and investment plans of the Company;

(3) to draft proposals for the establishment of internal
management bodies of the Company;

(4) to draft the basis management system of the Company;

(5) to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the
Company;

(6) to propose the appointment or removal of the deputy
general manager and other senior management,
including the person in charge of finance, of the
Company;

(7) to appoint or dismiss the management personnel other
than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the
Board; and

(8) to exercise other functions granted by the Articles of
Association and the Board.

The chief executive officer grants authorisation to chief
financial officer, and senior management within his terms of
reference.

The Board is supported by four committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. Each of
the committees has its defined terms of reference covering
its duties, rights and functions. The chairman of the
respective committees report to the Board regularly and
make recommendations on matters discussed as appropriate.

TEBEBRRE
FEREH @
EEEMISE @

EFERBITERBAT U TERERE
REEHEZER:

(—)

‘I]]]l

%EEJ“%@E@IT’EI@%
ﬁ%% =1 \D?sz'tr 5

(D) HBBENRARRDFELEE
MBREHZE

(=) WEIERFANRE
DWSE S

EiErE

(M) BEIARRBNEREERE ;

()  HISTEARBNERRE ;

(7%) RBEFANER LA T B HEK
BHEMSKEEAS (B1FH
BEEN

() BEamEEEAE HEH
EFERENEBERN &

N THEERSERENNEETIE

T HO EL A B o
ﬁEEﬁZ RRAEHB SRR DM BEEE KR
BEANERKE-
EFXCTITRIURBEZES  IE%ZE
g HMNEEE RLZEGAEEE

AEEE - BRELZEGRBENREHS
EEFMBENHELE -S&Z8S

NEFECHREETGER LIREBER
ﬁﬁ%gﬁfuﬁuﬂﬂgﬂ%ﬁﬁkuﬁo




70

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to
its shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated
to the shareholders in the following manner:

e delivery of the interim and annual results and reports to
all shareholders;

e  publication of announcements on the interim and
annual results on the Stock Exchange website, and issue
of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in
accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations
under the Listing Rules; and

e the general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Board has maintained an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors, and will regularly review
this policy to ensure its effectiveness. Information will
be communicated to Shareholders and investors mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
announcements and reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as
well as by making available all the information submitted
by the Company to the website of the Stock Exchange
and its corporate communications on the Company's
website. Shareholders can direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent
such information is publicly available.

Communications with shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Director.

The shareholders’ meeting provides an effective forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman, together with the chairmen or members of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee are available to answer shareholders’
questions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Communications with shareholders (continued)

The procedures demanding for a poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand for a poll are included in the notice
of shareholders’ meeting and the accompanying circular.
The relevant procedures are explained at the shareholders’
meetings.

The external auditor has been appointed as the scrutineer to
ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded.

The results of the poll have been posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company
on the business day following the meeting.

Furthermore, the Company continues to enhance the
ongoing communications amongst the shareholders,
investors and analysts, including:

e establishing specialized bodies and employing staff to
serve investors and analysts and answer their relevant
questions;

e arranging site visits to the production bases of
the Company in order to keep them abreast of
the operations and the latest developments of the
Company;

e collecting and analyzing, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the
operations of the Company given by securities
analysts and investors and compiling them into reports
periodically, and selectively adopting them in the
operations of the Company;

e providing relevant information, including introduction
to the Company, the Board and corporate governance,
results of the Company, financial summary, marketing
materials of the Company and press releases on the
website of the Company; and

e taking the initiative to communicate with various
parties, particularly following the announcement of
interim, annual results and substantial investment
decisions, organizing briefings, press conferences and
one-on-one interviews with investment institutions.
Besides, the Company also regularly communicates with
investors on an one-on-one basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness, and such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles in
relation to the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and internal audit
functions. The Board has responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safequard its assets
and shareholders’ investment.

The Group has internal control systems to formalize the
risk management of the Group, to build up a standard and
effective risk management system to manage risk and to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure the assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirement and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately managed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
The Company has retained an independent professional
firm as external advisor to assist the Company to perform
an assessment on risk management and internal control
mechanism of the Group. We have our own Internal Audit
Department to fulfil the requirement of internal audit
function. Together with the supports from the external
advisor, the internal audit function can facilitate the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors in ascertaining the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an annual and ongoing basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has conducted an
annual risk assessment which identified respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks
for each of the major business segment of the Group. Risk
factors were analysed and consolidated at the Group level.
Based on the risk assessment results following a risk based
methodology audit approach, a three-years’ audit plan was
devised which prioritized the risks identified into annual
audit projects. The Group’s internal audit department
performed the annual reviews in accordance with the
audit plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit
Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group strictly regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in information disclosure
policy to ensure potential inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately approved
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work
performed by the internal audit department, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that the Group
has maintained adequate and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. The directors are committed
to complying with the Corporate Governance Code A6.5
on directors’ training. All directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials to director’s duties and
responsibility and provided a record of training they received
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 to the
Company.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses or and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance or act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies and independent
auditors so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTOR'S TRAINING (continued)

Directors’ continuous training and development
(continued)

From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills; the
company secretary also organises and arranges seminars
on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the Directors to assist them in discharging
their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the new requirement of the CG
Code on continuous professional development during the
Year:
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Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LONG ling (Chairman) R RE (£/E) v 4
Mr. CONG Rinan =HmTE v/ v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng mIERE T E v v
Mr. CHEN Lin BRM 4 v v/
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming B/ NBPLE v v
Independent non-executive BiERITES

Directors
Mr. LO Wai Hung BREELE v v
Ms. FU Mingzhong JERfh Lt v v
Ms. WANG Jinxia FRERL v v
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DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities
of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the
new Corporate Governance Code. Such directors’ liability
insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, no claim has
been made against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effective from 26 May 2006.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December
2021, Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings to update her skills
and knowledge.

CHANGE OF BOARD LOT

The board lot size for trading in the Shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange has been changed from 4,000 H
Shares to 400 H Shares with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 5
November 2021.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, amendments to the Articles of Association
with shareholders approval have been made on 8 March
2021 and 24 September 2021 regarding the change of
registered capital and the change of scope of operations of
the Company respectively. An updated version of Articles
of Association of the Company is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

EFRERRE

AT BRI EEERTRZTRIF
NEANBF LEFPIERAEREE
mEMER 2B i?i@ﬁ@]f’ﬁLE%%
EARFREZH -FHEFEERERE
FIRE R AEIR

RBEE_T-_—F+"HA=+—HLE
BEELTEHNEEZHR

REME

BB ZTEEZXTAERAT NI W
2 EB_EENFEEE -+ AHEE
M-FMTBEEHUELACIMERHERR
EERE#H - #E_E_—F+_-_B=+—
HIEFE st eEST A D15
1/J\B%E%H%ﬁ%%iﬁéﬂluﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁé
5 o
ENEFEEEN
KABRGPRBMRFIZEFEETEMND
4,000 HIR BN 2400 HER B ZF
T —F+—BAHEFAREREN-

RER ZABDHNR T _—F=H
NERZZEZ—FARB-+MAMEE
AMEARSELSHEHEBEZMH
AIF BT L BSRRAL/E - A AT
BERMBAZEMREAAIRERTDRE
BEMEXZRERARMPIEER -

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

' LEREEAERAE S FRIBRHERAT 2021 £FR



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing, aged 48, is the chairman of the Board
and executive director of the Company. Mr. Long joined
the Company in July 2005 and served as the manager of
sales management department and vice-general manager
of sales of the Company until August 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of the Company from August 2018
to March 2021. He has been an executive director of the
Company since December 2018 to date, a director of
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
(stock code: 688161) from March 2020 to date and the
chairman of the Board of the Company from March 2021
to date. Prior to joining the Company, I\/Ir Long served
as the sales chief of WEAZLE T4/A5 (Shandong
Plastic Materials Industry Company*) from 1996 to 2002.
Mr. Long obtained a bachelor degree in marketing from
Shandong Economic University and a master degree in
business administration from Shandong University. He also
obtained the Chinese professional qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), with nearly 20 years of experiences
in sales and operation management in the medical device
industry.

Mr. CONG Rinan, aged 41, the executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Cong joined the
Company in August 2003. He served as supervisor, deputy
manager and manager of the syringe production workshop
until December 2013. During the period from January 2014
to December 2014, Mr. Cong served as the assistant to
the chief executive officer of the Company. From January
2015 to December 2018, he served as the deputy general
manager of the clinical care business unit of the Company;
from January 2019 to March 2021, he has been the general
manager of the clinical care business unit; he has been the
chief executive officer of the Company from March 2021
until present; he has been the executive director of the
Company from May 2021 until present. Mr. Cong obtained
a bachelor’s degree in applied chemistry from Yantai
University and a master’s degree in engineering from Harbin
Institute of Technology. He completed the Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of China
in 2019 and obtained the title of senior engineer of medical
device professional, with nearly 20 years of experience in
production and operation management in the medical device
industry.

EF -EFEhEREEAE

ESg
RITES

REREE 48F A NBEEETETER
HITESF - BEBEEN_ZEZERELAM
J\ZK’AT’i_v—/\EJ\)% ) FEAE A
NEHEEEPLIE IHEFEKIEE
B%s, " E—N\FENBE_ZE_—%F
— B EARRABITEHER ; RZT—N\
F+AESHEARBHTES ;KT
T _EF=-RES FLURREERM
BB BRAE (BRHRHE 688161) &
EIRE—F=BES FERH

BEEZEIFE-RMAXRRQR ZA BB
ER—AANEE_EE_FHUESR
BRI THEBERNBETHEEETE BELE
EEBURKEBEREMGEHEXE LS
R AETEEERBELTZN0 > W
BHREFMEstEN (CPA) BXER
B+ FEBEIWITEHEREEE
TR E o

EAWMAE MR ARABNITESFR
THRZE - mEERZZZ2=H6/\AMN
ARKRB ZEZZE—=F+"H EE
TSRS EBR T BIAE KB R
—_E-MFE-BE_ZE-—NF+IA>
EK’AﬂﬁE& %Jzﬁjﬁ% 73\_7 i'ifE
EE%E%%*BEJ%W%EE A_ﬁ hfﬁ
_H:I:—v—_ﬁ ﬁ 'T]—Eﬁun% EE%
FHRBREE RN B2 —F=RES>
E$’&T THABE ; \_7_—¢£
SOERABRNITER HFXLLEE
\ki REEALCEEXEZ LS A
MELEARBEIRBIT2A TR T
—NEFEBTTFEARKEIEHEER
=+ (MBA) 5812 RIS B RBMEES R
TiRMERE AL -+ SEEBERMT
FEEREBEEEEKR-




78

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE -EBEENEREEAES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng, aged 51, is the vice chairman of
the Board and a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Tang joined the Weigao Holding in December 2017
and currently is a director of Weihai Weigao International
Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman
of Weigao Holding; and a director and vice chairman of
Weihai Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code 002248) in
March 2018 and from July 2018 to pressure. Prior to joining
Weigao Holding, Mr. Tang was the assistant to the president
of Bank of Communications, Weihai Branch, the president
of Minsheng Bank, Weihai Branch and the assistant to
the president of China Minsheng Bank, Qingdao Branch.
Mr. Tang graduated from Shandong University majoring in
business administration and completed the EMBA program
of China Europe International Business School in 2019, with
over 20 years of experience in banking and corporate finance
management.

Mr. CHEN Lin, aged 46, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chen joined Weigao Holding in September
2000 and has served as assistant general manager and
general manager of Weigao Holding and currently is a
director of Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. and the chairman of Weigao Holding.
Mr. Chen graduated from Shandong University, Weihai
with a degree in economic management and completed a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) program at Renmin
University of China in 2004, with over 20 years of operation
management experience in the medical device industry.

Mr. LIAN Xiaoming, aged 50, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lian joined Weigao Holding in February
2016, and currently serves as the director of Weihai Weigao
International Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and
Weigao Group Co., Ltd.. In March 2018 and from May
2018 to present, Mr. Lian is the director and chairman of
Weihai Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code 002248). Prior
to joining Weigao Holding, Mr. Lian served as the customer
manager of Weihai Branch of agricultural Bank of China, the
vice president of Weihai Branch of China Minsheng Bank and
the general manager of the investment banking department
of the Qingdao branch of China Minsheng Bank. Mr. Lian
graduated from Shandong University with a law degree and
has over 20 years of experience in banking and corporate
capital operations.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LO Wai Hung, aged 62, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia in 1985. Mr. Lo is an associate member of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee,
the chairman of remuneration committee, the chairman
of nomination committee and a member of corporate
governance committee of the Company. Mr. Lo is also an
independent non-executive director of Talent Property Group
Limited (stock code:760) and C Cheng Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1486), Tibet Water Resources Limited (stock
code: 1115) since 28 September 2021, China New Town
Development Company Limited (stock code: 1278) since 30
December 2021. Mr. Lo is also a non-executive director of
SY Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Sheng Ye
Capital Limited) (stock code: 6069) since 10 December 2021.
Mr. Lo was also an independent non-executive director of
Lerthai Group Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial
Real Estate Limited) (Stock code: 112) since March 2017 till
November 2018. The shares of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo was
also an independent director of China Merchant Property
Development Co. Ltd since 2011 and the shares of which
were ceased from listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on
30 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. FU Mingzhong, aged 72, senior economist and
has over 40 years of working experience, particular in the
area of management experience in the pharmaceutical
and healthcare products industry. Ms. Fu obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from the Harbin Institute
of Technology in March 1995. Ms. Fu was previously a
deputy workshop director, the office head and the vice
factory manager of The Third Harbin Pharmaceutical Factory
from June 1972 to March 1992. Ms. Fu was a director of
Harbin City Pharmaceutical Group and the general manager
of Harbin Pharmaceutical Company Limited from March
1992 to December 1997. She was also a deputy general
manager of China Medicines Group from December 1997
to January 1999 and she was a director of China Medicines
Group Corporation from January 1999 to October 2009
respectively. Ms. Fu was the executive deputy general
manager of China National Pharmaceutical industry
Corporation from January 1999 to January 2001. Ms. Fu
was the chairman of National Medicines Company Limited
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from
January 2001 to February 2008. Ms. Fu has been a director
of Shenzhen Accord Pharmaceutical Company Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) since April
2008 and was the chairman from April 2008 to December
2008. Ms. Fu has also been a director of Sinopharm
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. from July 2008 to December
2010. Ms. Fu was the general manager, deputy chairman
and director of Sinopharm Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) during the period from
January 2006 to December 2009, and December 2009 to
November 2010 respectively.

Ms. Fu is currently the honorary chairman and the director of
the expert committee of China Association of Pharmaceutical
Commerce.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. WANG Jinxia, aged 68, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Wang is a senior
economist and has over 40 years of working experience,
especially the management experience in the pharmaceutical
commerce and pharmaceutical industry. Ms. Wang obtained
a bachelor degree in economics (% 2 2 +) from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in July 1983 and was
assigned to work in State Pharmaceutical Administration of
China Pharmaceutical Company (B3 B 2 & 12 f5 A 5 B8 4%
‘A7) . Ms. Wang was deputy director of the finance division,
director of the information division of China Pharmaceutical
Company (FEIBZAF)), the general secretary and the
vice president of China Association of Pharmaceutical
Commerce (PEIEEZEE 21 E) and the person in charge
of the pharmaceutical chains branch of China Association
of Pharmaceutical Commerce (FPE] 88 B 1 & B IHEE S
‘8) . She is also a senior advisor of China Nonprescription
Medicines Association (FEIFEEE H #HE) .

Currently, Ms. Wang also acts as the independent director of
Xinjiang Ready Health Industry Co., Ltd. ((reEEE 2R EE
I BREAE) (stock code: 600090) and the independent
director of Zhejiang Wecome Pharmaceutical Company
Limited CHT L 4E R 22 25 fg {5 B R A B1) (stock code: 300878).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE -EBEEMREREEBAE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors

The Company has a committee of Supervisors whose
primary duty is to supervise the senior management of the
Company, including the Board, Directors, managers and
other senior officers. The function of the committee of
Supervisors is to ensure that the senior management of the
Company acts in the interests of the Company, and does
not violate the rights of the Company’s shareholders and
employees. The committee of Supervisors reports to the
shareholders in general meetings. The articles of association
provides that the committee of Supervisors has the right
to investigate the Group’s financial affairs; to supervise
the directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the event that they contravene any laws,
administrative regulations or the articles of association in
the performance of their duties; to require the Directors,
general managers and other senior management to rectify
any activities committed by them that is harmful to the
interests of the Company; to examine financial reports,
result reports, profit distribution plans and other financial
documents prepared by the Board to be submitted to
shareholders in general meeting, and in appropriate cases, to
appoint certified accountants or certified practicing auditors
in the name of the Company to assist in such review; to
propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings of
shareholders; to represent the Company during negotiations
with the Directors or to initiate legal proceedings against
the Directors; and other functions and powers given
by the shareholders in general meeting. The committee
of Supervisors currently comprises the following three
members:

Mr. HU Yunyong, aged 53, is the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee and a shareholder representative
supervisor of the Company. Mr. Hu joined Weigao Holding
in 1999 and has served as the corporate affairs manager,
assistant to general manager and director of Weigao
Holding. Mr. Hu graduated from /8FBF T2 (the
Navy's Electronic Engineering College) with a bachelor’s
degree and passed the national unified qualification exam in
laws.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Ms. GU Meijun, aged 45, a shareholder representative
supervisor of the Company. Ms. Gu joined Weigao Holding
in 1996 and held positions such as accounting supervisor,
accounting manager, assistant to general manager, and chief
accountant of Weigao Holding. Ms. Gu has been a supervisor
of Weihai Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002248)
from March 2021 to date. Ms. Gu graduated from Beijing
Information Technology Institute with a bachelor’'s degree
in financial management and passed the middle-level
accountant title examination.

Mr. YUE Chunliang, aged 41, is the employee
representative supervisor of the Company. Mr. Yue joined
the Company in 2005 and has served as the supervisor
of the R&D department of the Company, the manager of
the production department of the infusion sets of branch
company, and the manager of the procurement center. Mr.
Yue obtained a degree in Polymer Materials and Engineering
from the University of Yantai.

Senior Management

Mr. WU Xuefeng, aged 44, the chief financial officer of
the Company. Mr. Wu joined the finance department of
the Company in July 2001. He served as the manager of
the manufacturing finance department and the manager
of the sales finance department of the Company until July
2012; from July 2012 to October 2013, he was the manager
of the risk management department of Weigao Holding;
from October 2013 to February 2017, he was the financial
controller of the pharmaceutical distribution business
department of Weigao Holding; and from February 2017 to
present, he has been the financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor degree in finance management
from the University of QiQiHar in Heilongjiang Province and
obtained a master degree in business management from
the Missouri State University, the United States, with more
than 20 years of experience in the accounting and finance
management.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

%% m%&ﬁm EEAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Senior Management (continued)

Mr. LU Jungiang, aged 48, a director and a general
manager of Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company
Limited (stock code: 688161). Mr. Lu joined Weigao
Orthopaedic in January 2018 as the deputy general sales
manager of Weigao Orthopaedic and has been the director
and general manager of Weigao Orthopaedic in September
2018 and from September 2019 to present. Prior to joining
Weigao Orthopaedic, Mr. Lu served as the regional manager,
sales manager of Eastern China and deputy general manager
of the medical devices products business division of the
Group since October 2000. Mr. Lu obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from the University of
Wales in the United Kingdom and has more than 20 years
of experience in sales and operation management in the
medical device industry.

Mr. NI Shili, aged 60, a director and a general manager of
Shandong Weigao Purui Pharmaceutical Packaging Co., Ltd..
Mr. Ni joined the Company in May 1995. He worked as the
product sales manager for the infusion sets of the Company
until December 2004 and product sales manager for pharma
packaging materials of the Company from January 2005 to
March 2009, respectively. He serves as the general manager
of the pharma packaging materials division since April 2009
to date. Mr. Ni graduated from Heilongjiang Radio and
TV University majoring in marketing and is a professional
intermediate engineer in medical technology with nearly 30
years of sales and operation management experience in the
medical device and pharma packaging industry.

Ms. WONG Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 53, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company in
May 2006. She is a Chartered Secretary and fellow members
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
Ms. Wong has over 25 years of experience in corporate
finance and management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED
LWRESEEBAS Y FRaRBERARE

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 91 to 311, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBIEBZEEAELENFEH D =B
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the ZABGEMBERRTEEEMNEE.
consolidated financial statements of the current period. ZA{TRBRERESHBRERLIMILE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit HMERFEENLESZE MAGHILSE
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and HIEBEBZEXRER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MBEZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REMBERERZAE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

& i B T

We identified impairment assessment of the
goodwill of interventional products cash
generating unit in relation to Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”) amounting to
RMB2,928,886,000 as a key audit matter due
to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant management
estimate involved in assessing the impairment
of goodwill.

ESERIEHRESIRBESMITRARRE
(MBR))MINAERREELEBAZHEE
(&3 AH AR #2,928,886,0007T) JH B G 1E
AHEAREZER DEREHNGEMHBRE
BEREEARERIEHERERIRERDN
BIRfE (5t o

In estimating the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated, the management has made a
number of significant assumptions in the value
in use calculation. The key assumptions mainly
include discount rate and revenue growth
rates applied.

REstEHEBENENRSELEMZ A B
TR EEENEREESERERAETE
KRR - B F E B EPT AR IR
WA RR-

Details of significant judgments and
assumptions in the impairment assessment
are disclosed in notes 5 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AT ERAEG RERFERGRSH
FRIRRMI 5 18I 58 o

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the goodwill of interventional products
cash generating unit from acquisition of Argon
included:
EENMBBERIN A AERREELEM 2 BHERE
FHEEZIEF EE !

e Understanding the internal controls relevant to the
impairment assessment of the goodwill;

o THRABBRENLARZAIMIES

e  Evaluating the valuation methodology and long-
term growth rate with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists;

e AR LEBZERNHEN T EEER EREIRE
=

e  Evaluating the discount rate, including developing
a range of independent estimates and comparing
those with the discount rate selected by the
management, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists; and

e TEHFMREBEEZERNHE) P EREIRE > B
HRE—RINBIGE UTHHESEREEZENG
WEER; &

e Evaluating the revenue growth rates by comparing
with historical performance and industry data.

s BERBERRRTFEFHBELEBEFEBRAERRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VRS GRS =

ZHEA B RS MBS RRAK
BENEE®

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tung Wai Lung Ricky.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

VA=A

[== 2
Z

w3 ,E\JJIL
For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

KEMMEZEWRARRK

ETERTHF+-RA=1+—HLEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
g —-F ZTTEZHF
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
C<$==7l)
Revenue WA 6 13,151,719 11,622,337
Cost of sales iHE A (5,882,315) (5,122,766)
Gross profit EF] 7,269,404 6,499,571
Other income, gains and losses HM A~ Wz R E1E 7 (64,157) 313,438
Impairment losses under expected FEHREERERE T2
credit loss model, net of reversal BEETE (BR#E[E]) 8 (26,982) (35,244)
Selling expense HER (2,661,695) (2,529,156)
Administrative expenses TEMAE (1,111,777) (1,088,964)
Research and development expenses Bf25FH (492,133) (424,422)
Finance costs RRE Al A 9 (140,396) (178,935)
Share of results of an associate FEL—EE B XEE 69,988 9,171
Share of results of joint ventures FEILEEhEEE (531) -
Profit before tax R8BI F 2,841,721 2,565,459
Income tax expense TSR 10 (415,093) (358,422)
Profit for the year F N A 2,426,628 2,207,037
Other comprehensive expense HihnemiEx
Item that may be reclassified HEEM D EEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on MEBEBINEFEEZ
translation of foreign operations bE 7 =28 (81,482) (264,843)
Total comprehensive income FARAEZEUWALREZE
for the year 2,345,146 1,942,194
Profit for the year attributable to RABEB NEBILFERN
owners of the Company St A 2,244,778 2,086,783
Profit for the year attributable to FFERERE(EER
non-controlling interests St A 181,850 120,254
2,426,628 2,207,037




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

I\T:'

m R EMEEWAZRE

For the yearended 31 December 2021 HE B - —F+_A=+—HILEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
g8 ZZTZH
+=AR +—A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IEFE
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
<=2
Total comprehensive income for the TFF&BEEGEREE
year attributable to: WA 8%
Owners of the Company ZNNSIEZ ZS N 2,174,977 1,842,137
Non-controlling interests IEERER 170,169 100,057
2,345,146 1,942,194
Earnings per share srRER
Basic (RMB per share) EX (BRAREIT) 14 0.50 0.46
Diluted (RMB per share) #E (B ARET) 0.50 0.46
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

I\—|—\ l:| /\j Hk /E%%
At 31 December 2021 R -_ZE-_—F+-_HB=+—H
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated)
—g_—F “—ZT_FF
—B _TZE
o o=izR =1=F
B 5 ARBTR AEEBTT
(& &E:7)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN 4] 15 5,719,370 5,362,665
Right-of-use assets FTHREEE 16 476,317 435,512
Investment properties "EYE 17 133,788 136,710
Goodwill = 18 3,348,497 3,414,210
Deposits paid for acquiring LU EE Y 2~ BR S A2
property, plant and equipment REzZENEE 467,730 300,903
Intangible assets mILEE 19 1,798,577 2,055,460
Interests in an associate PN—REBE AR N R 20 1,138,901 1,068,912
Interests in joint ventures ReEbENER 21 180,757 181,927
Financial assets at fair value A F{EST ABmst
through profit or loss EEHMEE 22 100,943 108,420
Deferred tax assets RIS E A& 23 156,462 140,058
Finance lease receivables FEW L E T B RN 24 40,959 85,160
Loan receivables EUE R 25 318,811 213,101
Prepayments T RIE 27 79,353 88,170
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 7(e) 293,247 -
14,253,712 13,591,208
Current assets MBS E
Inventories 78 26 1,734,557 1,562,853
Loan receivables FEWE R 25 428,514 232,873
Trade and other receivables FEUS B Z IR
H AR IR IE 27 6,045,579 5,958,479
Debt instruments at fair value ‘mAFEs AR
through other comprehensive 2EHNGEFTEZ
income BHILE 28 419,752 469,610
Finance lease receivables e RS H & RRIE 24 85,122 136,908
Financial assets at fair value through #2/AF{E5t A8
profit or loss SAECEMBEE 22 10,000 -
Pledged bank deposits ERFIRITER 29 760,895 340,129
Bank balances and cash IRITHEER IR 30 6,628,927 5,665,656
16,113,346 14,366,508
Current liabilities piE =Y
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFES AER
through profit or loss EZERMmEE 22 56,694 21,031
Trade and other payables eS8 2 IR H A
FEfIRIA 31 3,952,044 3,812,454
Contract liabilities R IERE 32 310,866 313,373
Borrowings (EEN 33 601,328 297,890
Tax payable FE{IHRIE 149,633 129,154
Deferred income 3R SEU A 35 8,816 7,861
Lease liabilities HEaRE 36 22,988 8,583
Provisions BiE 10,606 7,699
5,112,975 4,598,045
Net Current Assets TBNE EFER 11,000,371 9,768,463
Total Assets less Current Liabilities WEERTEEE 25,254,083 23,359,671
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R
At 31 December 2021 R -Z - —F+"F=+—H
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated)
g Z=ZEZ2HF
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
B = ARBFTRT ARETT
C<=cpl)
Capital and Reserves BARKHE
Share capital N 37 457,063 452,233
Reserves G 18,810,028 17,581,347
Equity attributable to owners KABIEB ANELER
of the Company 19,267,091 18,033,580
Non-controlling interests JEER T 1,640,359 845,108
Total Equity W m 4B e 20,907,450 18,878,688
Non-current Liabilities JERBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFESABEE
through profit or loss EEMEE 22 199 64,847
Borrowings RN 33 2,462,688 3,001,289
Bonds payable FEE 34 992,549 991,121
Other payable H th & 7R I8 31 - 37,125
Deferred income ESEUT A 35 84,765 70,898
Deferred tax liabilities EIEIRIBEE 23 222,620 291,797
Lease liabilities HE&R 36 57,857 22,115
Contract liabilities 5868 32 3,305 1,791
Provision B 7(e) 522,650 -
4,346,633 4,480,983
25,254,083 23,359,671

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 311
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 14 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

LONG Jing
REAE
DIRECTOR
BF

FUEINENGEVHERERCDEEZES

=

A —

FIOA+ 0B EREE

HE THUTEFAREFTTR

CONG Rinan

=HiE

DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HAE 2L

et e

\\7|— I:l
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRAREAEL
Share-
Share  Statutory based Non-
Share  premium surplus Translation  payments Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits Total interests Equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
(Note a) (Note b)
MR
RiVEE  EERE AERAR
iz 1 fif  ERHE HE  EtEE  REE @i EREE  RENE
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR
(¥izta) (Ktzkb)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-H 452,233 2,575,060 257,956 144,076 92,401 764,830 11,893,944 16,180,500 811436 16,991,936
Restatements due to business combinaton R F_—EF-EHTHER AT
under common control in 2021 (note 3) ESIGRE) - - - 7,299 - 423,000 34,134 464433 - 464433
At 1 January 2020 (restated) RZZZZE-F-RH BE5) 452,233 2,575,060 257,956 151,375 92,401 1,187,830 11,928,078 16,644,933 811436 17,456,369
Profit o the year (restated) FERRR (S5 - - - - - - 2086783 2,086,783 120254 2,207,037
Other comprehensive expense EREMZERR (T27)
for the year (restated) - - - (244,606) - - - (244,646) (20197) (264,843
Total comprehensive income EREENALE (TE5)
for the year (restated) - - - (244,646) - - 2,080,783 1,842,137 100,057 1,942,194
Consideration for business combination ZEIRER-BHTHERAHIRE
under common control in 2020 (note ) (Bzk) - - - - - 10,575 - 10,575 14,115 24,690
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary HER-BHBAT 2SN ER - - - - - (1,278) - (1,278) 1278 -
Debt wavier SBEH - - - - - (2,189) - (2,189) 2,189 -
Acquired interest i a subsidiary from BEERERNEN-BIBARNER
non-controlling shareholder (note ) (Fzkd) - - - - - (84,402) - (84,400 (124727 (209,129)
Adoption of share award scheme (note 38 (c) AR EEEE (1338(0) - - - - - (19,187) - (19,187) 19,187 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRNEREEZURNAERAR
payments (note 38) (Mf338) - - - - 27,69 - - 27,69 2,966 30,662
Repurchase of shares under a share award RERDHEBCERD (H538()
scheme (note 38 (a) - - - - (20,536) (32,035 - (52,571) - (52,571)
Recognition of sales of repurchased shares FLERERD HBHHNDBRA
under a share award scheme (note 38 (a)) (Ht38(a)) - - - - - 313 - 313 - 0313
Exchange of non-monetary assets (note e FFEBUBERA () - - - - - 13,447 - 13,447 3,255 16,702
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) WE—-RNEAT (#539) - - - - - - - - 17,03 17,033
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13)  BEEANRNES (H313) - - - - - - (553349)  (553349) (32000 (556,549
Others Eft - - - - - 4,635 - 4,635 1,519 6,154
At 31 December 2020(restated) RZE_EE+"A=+—H i) 452,233 2,575,060 257,956 (93,271) 99,561 1,280,529 13461512 18,033,580 845,108 18,878,688
At 1 January 2021(restated) RIZZ-E-A-H @E5) 452,233 2,575,060 257,956 (93,271) 99,561 1,280,529 13461512 18,033,580 845,108 18,878,688
Profitfor the year REEER - - - - - S T8 224778 181850 2426628
Other comprehensive expense for the year EREM2ERY - - - (69,801) - - - (69,801) (11,681) (81,482)
Total comprehensive income for the year EW%EWM@%E - - - (69,801) - - 4718 2174977 170,169 2,345,146
Consideration for business combination Z3C-ER-BHTHERAHL
under common control in 2021 (note ¢) 18 (k) - - - - - (1,200,366) - (1,202,366) - (1,202,366)
Deemed disposal of partial interest in RIEELER-RMBLAR 2 BN EE
a subsidiary (note f) () - - - - - 761,120 - 761,120 621,165 1,382,285
Adoption of share award scheme AR B B (5£38(a)d)
(note 38 (a) (d) 4830 168,084 - - - (160,539) - 12,375 - 12,375
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BINEREEZNRAAERER
payments (note 38) (Biz38) - - - - 7,575 - - 7,575 3917 76,492
Repurchase of shares under a share award RERMABHHEERA (H:38()
scheme (note 38 (a)) - - - - (20,636) 343 - (20,293) - (20,293)
Recognition of sales of repurchased shares BB ERERMHBHNEER
under a share award scheme (note 38 (a)) (H3£38(a)) - - - - - 88,411 - 88,411 - 88,411
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) ~ FERANKEIRE (fi3£13) - - - - - - (653,288)  (653,288) - (653.289)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%+ZA=+-H 457,063 2,743,144 257,956 (163,072) 151,500 767,498 15,053,002 19,267,091 1,640,359 20,907,450
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

l\‘7[_ =)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E_Z—

Notes:

(a)

B mEEHRK

—F+__B=+—HLEFE

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in PRC (as defined in note 1) require the appropriation of
10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the PRC
companies, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve
shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into capital and
expansion of its production and operation. For the capitalisation of
statutory surplus reserve into capital, the remaining amount of such
reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

Other reserves mainly represent the difference between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid to acquire the additional interest in
subsidiaries, and the cost of the ordinary shares held by the trustees
under a share award scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had a business
combination under common control. Prior to the combination, in
April 2020, Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment Holding
Company had an capital injection amounting to RMB24,690,000 to
Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical Packaging Co., Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had a
business combination under common control. Details of the business
combination under common control are set out in note 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the subsidiaries of
the Company acquired 94.29% interests in Weihai Hongyangrui
Information Technology Center (Limited Partnership) (“Weihai
Hongyangrui”) and indirectly acquired 6.14% interests in Shandong
Weigao Orthopedic Device Company Limited (“Weigao Orthopaedic”)
with a net cash consideration of RMB209,129,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the subsidiary of
the Company entered into agreements for sale and purchase of
properties with Weigao Holding Company Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The sales and purchases constituted
as an equity transaction of non-monetary in nature. The difference
between the carrying value of the property disposed and the total of
cash consideration received and the carrying value of the property
purchased were recognised in other reserves.

On 30 June 2021, Weigao Orthopaedic, the subsidiary of the
Company, completed its listing on the Science and Technology
Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the initial
public offering of the ordinary shares (the "Offering”). Weigao
Orthopaedic received total net proceeds of RMB1,382,285,000 from
the Offering, among which RMB761,120,000 were recognised in
other reserves.

B 5E

(a)

(e)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEIREMEmRE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z - —F+_FB=+—HIEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
®HE BHE
—g_- B EHF
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE IEE
ARETx AREETF T
(&&E7)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Profit before tax BRAR A m A 2,841,721 2,565,459
Adjustments for: KIEH T A AEE
Interest income B WA (72,171) (65,955)
Finance costs B A 140,396 178,935
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ E KR EITE 446,172 424,746
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRESERTE 31,092 20,690
Depreciation of investment properties KREYEITE 5,216 6,276
Allowances for credit losses EEBEEE 26,982 35,244
Allowances for property, plant and equipment ¥ 2 ~ 8 = Kz 5% 15 35 - 2,571
Allowances for intangible assets mEERE - 4,295
Allowances for inventories FERH 6,956 10,452
Amortisation of intangible assets ‘B EEIE 241,333 257,249
Share-based payment expenses LRI AR 2 SRS 76,492 30,662
Share of results of an associate FEIE— B E N B XA (69,988) (9,171)
Share of results of joint ventures ELEEhEER 531 -
Gain on deemed disposal of investment in BAHER—BEEZEAE
an associate KE 2 Wam - (3,325)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAFES AER
fair value through profit or loss HAEZEREENNS = (29,809)
Gain form early repayment of an interest-free I AI{EE K B KA B — 5
loan from an associate of the Company SRR EEEARN K= - (16,856)
Gain on release of escrow account FREREEE IR P = - (98,542)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BERREZ
plant and equipment &8, (W) 2,937 (1,677)
Loss on currency option SRR 18 6,289 -
Release of deferred income R IE WA A [E] (18,539) (7,680)
(Gain)/loss from changes in fair value of BATEFAEBRS=EZ
financial assets at fair value through THEEQATEED
profit or loss (W) H518 (3,323) 84,364
Exchange loss P& 12 &5 18 52,549 39,977
3,714,645 3,427,905
Movements in working capital EEETE
Increase in inventories FE1gm (178,270) (261,501)
Increase in trade and other receivables ME U B 5 R 7 R EL At g W Rk
TEIE N (59,907) (1,007,316)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FE UL R & AR & 7R I8 R D 93,526 87,822
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables FEWE R (1gm) R (308,967) 187,513
Decrease/(increase) in debt instruments AT EFAEMEEIK
at fair value through other met 22 BB TAERL
comprehensive income (1) 49,858 (42,251)
Increase in other non-current assets HMIEmen & &5/ (296,995) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other ME 1 B 5 BR 71 Ry ELMh FE (5P =k
payables I8 (Rb) /180 (63,394) 580,493
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities aH8E8 (L) /18 (993) 169,823
Increase in deferred income 5% SIE U A 38 A0 33,361 34,175
Increase in provisions B EEm 526,847 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
®E ®w=E
—E-—F —ETEH
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFR ARF T
(& EH)
Cash generated from operations KREMIBIRE 3,509,711 3,176,663
Income taxes paid BEFER (474,548) (388,263)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEXFSIRE 38 3,035,163 2,788,400
INVESTING ACTIVITIES S B X
Purchases of property, BEME -BEMEE
plant and equipment (602,953) (606,692)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTLEE (46,198) (60,027)
Purchases of right-of-use assets EETREEE - (39,714)
Payment of investment properties KREYERIE - (8,719)
Deposits paid for acquiring property, MBEBEYE BB RRE
plant and equipment I E (467,731) (300,903)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on WiE— BB ARNIRE
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) Crd) RN FEE
(MI5E39) (10,287) 465
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEKRREFRR
plant and equipment I 38,390 48,904
Interest received B F B 61,454 53,253
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR B IRIRIRITER 680,080 682,550
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEABEBIRITER (1,100,846) (700,756)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFAEBGR
through profit or loss THEE (38,275) 750
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEAFTESTAEBRZ
through profit or loss ETMEE 3,800 -
Investment in joint ventures REEPENKE - (181,927)
Origination of loan receivables LMW E R - (46,727)
Repayment of loan receivables EBEEBWEMN 3,192 1,543,126
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM K’EZE PRA) FIE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REHEE (1,479,374) 383,583
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

?:_22

Ft+A=+—HULFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
®E ®w=E
—E-—F —ETEH
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
AREFT AREFIT
(& EH)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B ER
Repayments of borrowings BIERAR (706,641) (2,447,007)
Repayments of lease liabilities BiRHE&8E (25,837) (13,249)
Proceeds received from issued bonds BEZTESFWEIW
Fri§= 18 - 990,000
New borrowings raised BNz Bk 519,009 559,784
Interest paid BEFE (127,069) (181,892)
Dividends paid BEMKRE (653,288) (701,349)
Capital injection by non-controlling JFEERKRETE
shareholders 1,382,285 24,690
Proceeds from adoption of R0 BB st 8 FTERIE
share award scheme 172,914 49,500
Acquired interest in subsidiary from BIFZER IR IEER
non-controlling shareholder LN E=NCIR: o - (209,129)
Release of escrow account RPRFEEIRP - 72,486
Repurchase of shares under TR R 17 B B 51 8 Bl BB g 17
a share award scheme (72,864) -
Sales of repurchase of shares under HE RIER D BB 58 Y
a share award scheme (O] FE R (7D 88,411 209,263
Repayments of loans raised from BEBERABEEZEM
a holding company - (146,938)
Net cash flow on business combination HEZEGH THNEREHZ
under common control (note 3) REREFE (5E3) (1,115,000) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEBFRAZRERE (538,080) (1,793,841)
NET INCREASE IN CASH HERREEEMIEMFEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,017,709 1,378,142
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVNRERIREEFEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,665,656 4,344,469
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ShEEXEHN T E (54,438) (56,955)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REFANRERIRSEEY
YEAR, represented by bank balances and cash IEIRITE R RIS 6,628,927 5,665,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “"Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Weigao
Holding Company Limited (”"Weigao Holding"”), a
company registered in the PRC with limited liability. Its
ultimate controlling party is Chen Xue Li. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is No. 18, Xing Shan Road, Weihai,
Shandong Province, PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products and blood management products, and operate
financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

FRAEEMHHRSEN (TE
AMBHRSEMN) 1E5TF
(&)

E R B R EMBIMITIERME
BREEARETS

rEBRKRIEFEATIEEME
M R EMBI ] BB B IR & 2R

not yet effective:
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

102

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20217

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERAEAUBREEN (TE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ARBHREEN)) BETEK

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) (48)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EHEMERKRERNHTERMTE

not yet effective (continued) RERENRIETSE (B

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. ! RS- —FMA—HH 2 BBEEN

FEBBER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RIEZZHF—A—Hsz®&FEEN
2022. FERBER-

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 A TEC=F—B—HHZEREN
2023. FEHBREIEM -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 NEEE BN BRBNFERMN
determined. EReo

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs BRI X Pt ] S B MBI E %

mentioned below, the directors of the Company B REST AR KRB EETEHRE

anticipate that the application of all other new and FrFEHEMMIEERBRS EL

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on RIEFTZA > ROBRREFAEYH

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable REMBRREBNEARTLE

future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification ERAGHENEIR (BETF) &f&E

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current DEARHIERERBAETER

and related amendments to Hong Kong BEsSTHMNE:T (CEZ—9)

Interpretation 5 (2021)

The amendments provide clarification and additional ZEEI M EERSEHBRAER D

guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement T TEA ZERE RN RMHER

for at least twelve months from reporting date for KREEIMES BB EAR

classification of liabilities as current or non-current, HIEME B

which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current e IHEBERREBEREHAEXRRE
or non-current should be based on rights that are BEZHANDBARBIER
in existence at the end of the reporting period. o FETHRIES !

Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by ) ZNnEAXTEEE®R
management intentions or expectations to +ZEBEREEERZ
settle the liability within 12 months; and RENEHRAFE ; &

(iiy if the right is conditional on the compliance (i) MEZERUETZE
with covenants, the right exists if the AEH - BIBMEERATE
conditions are met at the end of the reporting REHHEAAIAESR
period, even if the lender does not test a5 4 ZEMNTRS
compliance until a later date; and HARFFEaHEGEZBERLT

MAFE; &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2021) (continued)

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right to defer
settlement for borrowings and bonds payable of
RMB1,978,178,000 are subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios within 12 months from the
reporting date. Such borrowings were classified
as non-current as the Group met such ratios at 31
December 2021. Pending clarification on the application
of relevant requirements of the amendments, the
Group will further assess the potential impacts of the
amendments in relation to the borrowings with financial
and other covenants. The impacts on application, if
any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s other liabilities as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS

The Group accounts for all its business combinations
involving entities under common control using the
principles of merger accounting.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Shandong
Weigao Blood Technology, the subsidiary of the
Company acquired 100% interests in Wego Healthcare
Fund Holding Corporation (“Wego Healthcare”) from
Weigao Holding with a total net cash consideration
of RMB1,202,366,000 (the “Post — Acquisition”). The
Company acquired control over Wego Healthcare on 3
March 2021.

Wego Healthcare was incorporated in the United States
on 15 November 2016, and it is an investment holding
company. The principal assets of Wego Healthcare
are (i) 100% interest in Rad Source Technologies,
Inc (“Rad Source”); and (ii) 19.8% interest in Weihai
Shangyuan Phase 1 Venture Capital Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Weihai Shangyuan Fund”).

Rad Source is engaged in production of proprietary
X-ray based irradiation machines that are used for blood
irradiation, cannabis industry, small animal research and
other research applications.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

3.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

Through step acquisition, Weigao Holding obtained
100% interests in Wego Healthcare on 24 December
2018 with a cash consideration of RMB423,000,000
("Acquisition”). Since 24 December 2018, thereby the
Group and Wego Healthcare came under common
control of Weigao Holding. Since Wego Healthcare
and the Group are under common control by Weigao
Holding before and after the Post — Acquisition, the
Group has applied the principles of merger accounting
with reference to Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations to the
Acquisition issued by the HKICPA as if the common
control combination had been effected since 24
December 2018.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 have been restated to
include the assets and liabilities of Wego Healthcare as
if they were within the Group since 24 December 2018.
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020
have also been restated to include the results and the
cash flows of Wego Healthcare since Wego Healthcare
and the Group were under common control by Weigao
Holding from 24 December 2018.

The effects of the application of merger accounting on
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND

RESTATEMENTS (continued)

EIZET

—+ A=+ —BLEE

3. SHEFAET @®

The year
ended The year
31 December ended
2020 as 31 December
previously 2020 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE S
—E-EF k- el 3
+=-B=+-H +=R=+—-H
\LEE ILEE
(05571 £ ) HE (EE5)
ARBETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue N 11,345,252 277,085 11,622,337
Cost of sales (note) HEMA (i) (5,011,774) (110,992) (5,122,766
Gross profit E7 6,333,478 166,093 6,499,571
Other income, gains and losses E A~ U s K B4R 312,480 958 313,438
Selling and distribution expense HERDHERY (2,511,894) (17,262) (2,529,156)
Administrative expenses TERAY (1,021,623) (67,341) (1,088,964)
Research and development expenses PR (411,404) (13,018) (424,422)
Profit before tax BRI AR 2,496,029 69,430 2,565,459
Income tax expense PR3 (345,638) (12,784) (358,422)
Profit for the year FREF 2,150,391 56,646 2,207,037
Exchange differences arising on translation HEEL 7 EREE (231,998) (32,845) (264,843)
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EUWALE 1,918,393 23,801 1,942,194
Profit for the year attributable to: FRER TS EREMY
Owners of the Company iN/NSIE 2PN 2,030,137 56,646 2,086,783
Non-controlling interests LR ER 120,254 - 120,254
2,150,391 56,646 2,207,037
Total comprehensive income ERNTEBARE
for the year attributable to: T IR
Owners of the Company iN/NSIE 2PN 1,818,336 23,801 1,842,137
Non-controlling interests FEERER 100,057 - 100,057
1,918,393 23,801 1,942,194

note: The comparative figures of distribution expenses have been
reclassified to cost of sales to conform with the current year's
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

The basic and diluted earnings per share during the year
ended 31 December 2020 changed from RMBO0.45 per
share to RMB0.46 per share due to the application of

merger accounting.

et : DM ZABELRBBEEERD
BEHERFUREEREEREY
BERERZES A

HRERBaHE A BEZ_SZ
EF+"_B=+—HLEFENER
EARBERABESRARK0.45
TEAEBRARE0.467T
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108

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND 3. AHEHEET @
RESTATEMENTS (continued)
The effects of the application of merger accounting on RXEEHEZHERN_T_ZTF
the consolidated statement of financial position as at T A=+T—BZEa¥HB R
31 December 2020 are summarised below. Line items ZEEMIUW T ATEHEEN
that were not affected by the changes have not been HEMWARFIA °
included.
As at
31 December As at
2020 as 31 December
previously 2020 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i
(A% _@E O (EEg)
AR®ETTT ARETT AR®TT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BER®E 5,333,298 29,367 5,362,665
Goodwill R 3,195,785 218,425 3,414,210
Intangible assets BVEE . 1,959,616 95,844 2,055,460
Interests in a joint venture R—EaEbEMNER 154,000 27,927 181,927
Finance lease receivables ElmEHRENE 84,969 191 85,160
Total Non-current assets FRBEEME 13,219,454 371,754 13,591,208
Current assets mEE E
Inventories e 1,504,126 58,727 1,562,853
Trade and other receivables I B 5 R R At W FRIE 5,927,876 30,603 5,958,479
Finance lease receivables ERmEES TR 136,270 638 136,908
Bank balances and cash RITHE R NIRE 5,514,331 151,325 5,665,656
Total Current assets MENEERE 14,125,215 241,293 14,366,508
Current liabilities MENEIE
Trade and other payables N 8 2R R A M R 3,759,169 53,285 3,812,454
Contract liabilities aMaE 279,140 34,233 313,373
Tax payable EARE 125,742 3,412 129,154
Provisions HE - 7,699 7,699
Total Current liabilities MBS 4,499,416 98,629 4,598,045
Net Current Assets MEBEEFE 9,625,799 142,664 9,768,463
Total Assets less Current Liabilities REERTBEERE 22,845,253 514,418 23,359,671
Capital and reserves BAR G
Reserve f#fs 17,093,113 488,234 17,581,347
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ &ATEA AL #R
Company . 17,545,346 488,234 18,033,580
Non-controlling interests FrEkER 845,108 - 845,108
Total Equity B 18,390,454 188,234 18,878,688
Non-Current liabilities FrBaR
Deferred tax liabilities RIERBEE 267,404 24,393 291,797
Contract liabilities LR - 1,791 1,791
Total Non-Current liabilities FREaRAE 4,454,799 26,184 4,480,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _—_Z_—

3.

MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
subsidiary Shandong Weigao Purui Pharmaceutical
Packaging Co., Ltd ("Weigao Purui”) acquired
100% interests in Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical
Packaging Co., Ltd. ("Weigao Packaging”) from
Weigao International. Weigao International agreed
to make a total capital contribution in the amount
of RMB66,110,000 to Weigao Purui, and upon the
completion of such capital contribution, Weigao
International has in turn held 4.1% interests of Weigao
Purui. The capital contribution was settled by a transfer
of the entire equity capital of the Weigao Packaging
to Weigao Purui. The acquisition was completed on 20
November 2020.

Weigao Packaging is engaged in the production and
sale of pharmaceutical packaging materials including
multi-layer co-extrusion cast film, three-layer co-
extrusion film for infusion, and composite film for
blister packaging.

Weigao Packaging which was established by Weigao
International on 18 March 2011, and thereby the Group
and Weigao Packaging came under common control
of Weigao International. Since Weigao Packaging and
the Group has been under common control by Weigao
International before and after the acquisition, the
Group has applied the principles of merger accounting
with reference to Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations to the
Acquisition issued by the HKICPA as if the common
control combination had been effected since the
establishment of Weigao Packaging.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1 RREFAMBEREE (&

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Lease,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

MBRREERE

= o
i g =]
EEHE @®

4.1

4.2 *

RRNFAMBERREE (8

SN BB REMS > A F
BFfEREBEAFESFENE
ABBEIBEREERATE
SFENBABBHEEERN
EZUSERB R B R
E =R BT

s F—MBABIKREZLE
RNt E B UERF
WHEREEXEERE
BhIGHRE CREH

%) ;

s BHMBAHEIEME
é‘ﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁ&iﬂl
AN ABE (5—
%&W”ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%) ;

i

s F-MBAREREEE
HEENAARERA
LS

EgER

FREVBERREIEZAQFT U
R 2 A B) Je EL MY B A ) i £
FINBERENMBRR - EXQ
B/ G U NIER  BIESEH]
#

. BRESIRBER

. lﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%
19 o0& 19 7
B3 ; &

e BENUHEIXZE
o] ¥R

' LEREEAERAE S FRIBRHERAT 2021 £FR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. GRESUBHEREBERE
2E5

TSR (&

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEEFHEK ()

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’'s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interest (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified that to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control, are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in October 2010).

EBESHXEENE (7

EEDU

WEER (HREER THXES
B HERSN) UWEIEARR 1Y
FHBEHEBEBZABUAF
BstE HstE R EER
HEEEBREE -FEEM
WU Z B BEA AP & IR
Z B A KA S E A MR ER
WEgn z iR EMmE T Z R
K m 2 AT ERM - WA
A A-—REXEEFRED
ST o

frE THESEEA R Ih  RIE R 2
ERBEEKREAREERR
NEMBRERRMEZIER
(H-ZE-—ZF+EEMN
MHEREBMSERNA) B8
EREBRZES-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non- controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Merger accounting for business
combination involving businesses under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
businesses had been combined at the beginning
of the previous reporting period or when they first
came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s relevant cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint venture is
described below.

Investments in an associate and joint
venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and joint
venture (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
and joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of an associate and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. FRESUBRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EgstlE @

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Investments in an associate and joint
venture (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and joint
venture (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
(i.e. sales with a right of return), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using the expected value method,
which better predicts the amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end
of each reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/
exchange for dissimilar products, the Group
recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue
would not be recognised for the products
expected to be exchanged);

(b) a contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales) for its right to recover products
from customers and are presented as right to
returned goods asset.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified

good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided
by the other party.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of buildings and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. BRECGUBBREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHER @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEE (B

Leases (continued) HE &

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFFHZAEN (B

Lease modifications MHEEXN

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a MHRUATER AEERHE

separate lease if: BEENZEREEAR:

e the modification increases the scope of the e EBNZEBEM—IENZ
lease by adding the right to use one or more HHEBEENEREM
underlying assets; and BAHEESE ; &

e the consideration for the leases increases by e MHEREBEMNEES
an amount commensurate with the stand- HEEBEBAEBZIEIL
alone price for the increase in scope and BREERRBRIEES
any appropriate adjustments to that stand- #9151 L B AF
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the HAE MBS HE o
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted MAZEBEEEARNEE
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures EBms > AEBBEAREN
the lease liability based on the lease term of the FREHHAERKEBTRMEREE
modified lease by discounting the revised lease IR ESTHE MR REL
payments using a revised discount rate at the ESTHENHER EMst2
effective date of the modification. KIEETHEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at commencement
date at amounts equal to net investments in the
leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective leases. Initial direct costs are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as
a sale of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does
not recognise the transferred asset and recognises
a loan receivable equal to the transfer proceeds
within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group's interests in
associates and joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associate that
does not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on
an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Shares/Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar series are measured
at the fair value of equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration of all non-market vesting
considerations is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group’'s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payments reserve).At the end of the
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting condition. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to share-based payments reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares/Share options granted to employees
(continued)

When the award shares/share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to other reserve. When the award shares/share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to other reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net
basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Surgical instruments produced by the Group that
are dedicated for use with the Group’s orthopaedic
implant products commence depreciation upon
they are provided to the distributors that in the
location for their intended use.

Buildings in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is presented as “right-of-
use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers

Transfers to, or from, investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
owner-occupied property to investment property;
or commencement of owner-occupation, for
a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (continued)

e how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
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indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or A group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-
type warranty obligations under the relevant
contracts with customers for sales of products
are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant
products, at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the Group's
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. FENEAMERREBEERE
BEgilE ®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising
from past events but is not recognised because the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for
an obligation, the part of the obligation that is
expected to be met by other parties is treated as a
contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine
whether an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from
the Group's ordinary course of business are
presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. BRECGUBBREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEE (B

Financial instruments (continued) ETMITA &

Financial assets (continued) THEE (&

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEENDEREBESE

financial assets (continued) (#8)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions FETIKENEHEER

are subsequently measured at fair value through BEATESSAEMEZEUW

other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"): mestE ((BAFESAHMS
AW TR -

e the financial asset is held within a business e ETHMEBEENEETRARF
model whose objective is achieved by both HERKEREGHNIREM
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; ENEMEENEERE
and XA &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified e BHNEIMNIEEBHBHE
dates to cash flows that are solely payments FHaEASZNREER
of principal and interest on the principal ERAENIRERE -
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently FMEEMEMEEHEBEZA

measured at FVTPL. FEFTABGREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

EFHTR (&

Financial instruments (continued)

THEE (&

Financial assets (continued)

TMEENDEBERERESE
=)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt
instruments. When these debt instruments are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT':S
e TE AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. GRESHUBHRREBERE
285

stIEE (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the "other income,
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade and other receivables,
loan receivables and debt instruments at FVTOCI,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash),
and other items (finance lease receivables and
financial guarantee contracts) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables. The ECL for these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

EFHTR (&

Financial instruments (continued)

THEE (&

Financial assets (continued)

TMEERBBUBHREE

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI only comprise bills receivable that are
issued and guaranteed by the reputable PRC
banks and therefore are considered to be low
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. The Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEMFRRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

EHTR (&

Financial instruments (continued)

THEE (&

Financial assets (continued)

TMEERBBUBHREE

Impairment of financial assets and other items

168

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iv)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’'s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables and
finance lease receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is
the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
finance lease receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
o Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.

Except for investments in debt instruments
that are measured at FVTOCI and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception
of receivables from factoring business, loan
receivables and trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment through
a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. FENEAMERREBEERE
BEgilE ®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. BRECGUBBREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEE (B
Financial instruments (continued) ETMITA &
Financial liabilities and equity THEERERD
Classification as debt or equity DEARBEIER
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either EERRATANRESL
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with ZHHOMEERETHEBERRK
the substance of the contractual arrangements and ATHNEERDBATME
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity B me
instrument.
Equity instruments BATA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences BRATALFEHEERNIA
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after FTEEBEENEEFHERT
deducting all of its liabilities. ERE T 2RS4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. FRESUBRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBEgstlE @

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEBE (B

Financial instruments (continued) ETHIA (&

Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEERED (&

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEStABRIEZ®
=R

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when HEHEBEROEAMBERS

the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration HEREIRPMBERANTEESH

of an acquirer in a business combination to which REBWESERNE Y

HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it is B (A2 MmiF A i

designated as at FVTPL. EREATEFABGTE
AEREABRATES AR
mITEZEMEGE.

A financial liability is held for trading if: WE TR HENERMEERE
EREARZMEAZ M
=R

e it has been acquired principally for the e TETHMEFENENE

purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; B/ HRREE] ; 5
or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio e TVHREIFELEH

of identified financial instruments that the EPREENHREM

Group manages together and has a recent TEEEHN—Fn 1 HE

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or MBI BEIER
FRAEZEGETER;
=1

e itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is e REREMEIER -Bi®

a financial guarantee contract or a designated MERSOIWIEES
and effective hedging instrument. BEMHEHATENTET
RS

Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHERAGEZEMEBE

Financial liabilities including borrowings, bonds THas (BEER EBNE

payable and trade and other payables are HURENEZERRAKRAEM

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using FETFRIE) H 18 Fe 8 85 B AR
the effective interest method. BAERMNEEFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to account
for these changes by updating the effective
interest rate, such change in effective interest rate
normally has no significant effect on the carrying
amount of the relevant financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these
conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark
reform; and

e the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis (ie the basis immediately
preceding the change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

EFHTR (&

THEREED (&

A RBEENETMEREE

AR REEREMERE
ERBHEHAESFEZETHE
BZzENEBEEREEZEF
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HETEBREZE-
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. BREDRANEEEXRE
TEEBR R

. BEANBESRZHE
7B - B R A
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TTEERMIA
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Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

5.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows
or upward revision of the discount rate, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.

Provision associated with product liability
claims

The subsidiary of the Group recorded a provision related
to product liability claims that represent a significant
management estimate which is highly dependent upon
judgment and assumptions. The management of the
Group developed an estimate of the expected gross
liability based on actual claim numbers, as well as a
series of management assumptions including injury
alleged, the results of related litigation, and the degree
of responsibility that may be inferred to the subsidiary
of the Group. Considering the claims are still in the
process, changes to these assumptions would result in
adjustments to the amount of provision recognised. The
details of the provision are disclosed in note 7(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management
products, and operates financing business.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six operating divisions — medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management
products and others, among which interventional
products were produced by Argon. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (Managing Director) in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating and
reportable segments are as follows:

Medical device
products

production and sale of clinical
care, wound management,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

Orthopaedic -
products

production and sale of orthopaedic
products

Interventional production and sale of tumour

products and blood vessel interventional
instruments

Pharma — production and sale of pre-filled
packaging syringes and flushing syringes
products

Blood — production and sale of blood
management collection, irradiation, storage,
products separation and sterilization products

Others — finance lease and factoring business

6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E_Z—

6.

—F+__B=+—HLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. MARSHER @

B ERES

AEBIG PR E DB D 2 W
FEWMTE

BFEF_F-—F+_H=+—HI
FE

Medical Pharma Blood
device Orthopaedic Interventional  packaging management
products products products products products Others Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRSHER BHER NAER ZREKER NREEER Rt it ait
AEBTR ARMTR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARBTRT ARBTR ARWTR
Revenue WA
External sales SNRSEE 6,463,642 2,126,5% 1,544,266 2,040,355 976,862 - - 13,151,719
Inter-segment sales REHEHE 109 - - - - - (109) -
Total At 6,463,751 2,126,594 1,544,266 2,040,355 976,862 - (109) 13,151,719
Segment profit A& 927,418 761,831 151,200 855,265 169,932 74,576 - 2,940,222
Depreciation of REMEZINE
investment properties (5,216)
Unallocated other income, ~ RAEEMBN BER
gains and losses B8 20,821
Rental income of REMEZRESWA
investment properties 12,070
Interest income from ROERZFEHA
bank deposits 211
Gain from changes in RATEHAERHEL
fair value of financial ERIANTEED
instruments at FVTPL W 3,323
Share of results of FlE-REERTEE
an associate 69,988
Share of results of RlheghsLE
joint ventures (531)
Share-based payment URHAERNARES
expenses (41,275)
Net loss of litigation FAELE (229,852)
Profit before tax FRial &R

2,841,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _—_Z_—

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

R e MBI MIEE

F+A=+—BLLEE
6. WARSEER (@

S EputEs R AR ()

EE-FFFZH=1+—HIE

FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic Interventional packaging  management
products products products products products Others  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
BRENER BRER NMAER EnfkER OREEER Hitt i At
(fTE5) (=7
ANEETR  ARETR ARETr AREFr ARBTr ARETr ARETR ARETR
Revenue WA
External sales SAEBHE 5990009 1,747,774 1370,15% 1,693,798 820,600 - - 11,622,337
Inter-segment sales REBHBHE 639 5,827 2,602 - 8,225 - (17,293) -
Total st 5,990,648 1,753,601 1,372,758 1,693,798 828,825 - (17,293) 11,622,337
Segment profit AE R 1,070,702 529,239 26,443 554,729 142,988 64,309 - 2,388,410
Depreciation of RENEZNE
investment properties (6,276)
Unallocated other income,  RABREMKA WK
gains and losses B (46,957)
Rental income of REMEZASWA
investment properties 13,409
Interest income from ROEZZREWA
bank deposits 46,423
Loss from changes in BATEGF A BRFEL
fair value of finandial SRIANTEED
instruments at FVTPL B8 (84,364)
Gain on disposal of HERATES ARG
financial assets at FVTPL EZEBEENRE 29,809
Gain on release of BRTERANE
escrow account 98,542
Gain on novation of HEEENWE
the Contracts 117,292
Share of results of Fit—AREARNEE
an associate 9,171
Profit before tax RiRaT AR

2,565,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 4. Segment profit represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of depreciation and
rental income of investment properties, other income,
gains and losses of the corporate function, interest
income from bank, gain and loss from changes in fair
value of financial instruments at FVTPL, gain on disposal
of financial assets at FVTPL, gain on release of escrow
account, gain on novation of the Contracts, share of
results of an associate, share of results of joint ventures,
share based payment expenses recognised for grantees
of the management of the Group and net loss of
litigation. This is the measure reported to the Managing
Director for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets

WA RSB EE @)

5 8R4 R B4R ()

4 ) BB 19 B Y T NS RE AR
Y K % [B ) o T 5 40 ) o 5 2B s 7
RN MABNN R Kot BB
EyE>inERAS KA 2
BEEOEL AR A ~ Uk 35 R B9~ 3R 1T
FBRARAT B ABSHE
TEMTAATESIERE
B HERATEIABRSHEY
SRR NIRRT ERE K
S AR E B B 5~ B 1 —
EUNGETY N U ES T
SR EEIEE 2 E D LR
1A E B (S 3R B8 % LR s SRR S
B UL A M E B RCIE SRS
R FRT (L 2RO B o

?%Bﬁ%ﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%%
yo

NMBEERAEE

AEBE ] HREREEDHLOTZ
BEERERUT:

PEEE
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
g8 “ZT”°ZTH
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
AR®BFrT AEETT
(&R&EF)

Medical device products BB WE SR

Orthopaedic products B E S

Interventional products AN

Pharma packaging products e A E

Blood management products MREEER

Others Hh

Total segment assets DEHEE E

Financial assets at FVTPL WA ETAEBRITED
. _ ETMEE

Interests in an associate P—EBE AT RS

Interests in joint ventures REEPENRLR

Investment properties St/ ES

Deferred tax assets IRERIEEE

Pledged bank deposits DIk TR

Bank balances and cash RIT4r RIS

Consolidated assets IREEE
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9,949,083 9,432,657
2,859,211 1,644,776
5,645,171 5,641,033
2,252,660 1,903,253

930,599 841,893
892,598 852,292
22,529,322 20,315,904
110,943 108,420
1,138,901 1,068,912
180,757 181,927
133,788 136,710
156,462 140,058
760,895 340,129

5,355,990 5,665,656

30,367,058 27,957,716
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

WBWARDBER @

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

S EBut s R AR ()

Segment liabilities PEEE
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(restated)
ZE-—F C"TSF
+=8B +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
C<=pl)
Medical device products B 2R I A o 4,516,452 4,742,677
Orthopaedic products 2R E 844,824 705,248
Interventional products A E 2,890,818 2,690,191
Pharma packaging products BERBEEER 361,895 213,557
Blood management products mREEESR 297,418 215,752
Others Hh 58,649 84,428
Total segment liabilities PRy =N 8,970,056 8,651,853
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIBE A 222,620 291,797

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATESABGDEY

TREE 56,893 85,878
Other payables H A I FIB 210,039 49,500
Consolidated liabilities magE 9,459,608 9,079,028

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments

mEBEEDBRERED B ZBEDE

BIR:

s FREBENERELEZENE M

other than financial assets at FVTPL, interests in an BAFTESFABGSEZSE
associate, interests in joint ventures, investment MEE-N—REBE QB
properties, deferred tax assets, pledged bank m - REBECENET - KRE
deposits and part of bank balances and cash. MENRIERBEZE  SEF
IRITER B IRITAERR IR
EERINo

FTERENEELEDE &
FIERIBEEE AT ESA
BmstE2EsMBRKRE D
E A& A TRIBBR I

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments o
other than deferred tax liabilities, financial
liabilities at FVTPL and part of other payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. IMARSIEE @

184

(continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Hith5 &R &

HE_E_—F+-F=+—HI

FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic Interventional ~ packaging management
products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRSHER BHER NAER ERERER NAREEER At it
AEBTR  ABBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Amounts included in the measure of HEAMRNI S DEERE
segment profit or segment assets: B
Additions to property, plant and equipment  HiEN% \HRRR(E 494,833 133,679 55,075 142,020 18,673 - 844,280
Allowances for credit losses EEBERE 11,503 10,129 322 1,407 - 3,621 26,982
Allowances for inventories hEEE 1,180 3,672 1472 - 632 - 6,956
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEEH 257 6,603 221,765 821 11,887 - 241,333
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥/ BERZ G E 186,119 82,668 17,523 128,251 31,502 109 446,172
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 19,818 3,054 5,305 - 2,915 - 31,092
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE RERAEER/
plant and equipment () 1,496 108 482 (49) 900 - 2,937
Research and development expenditure RERZ 280,124 121,225 16,842 43,283 30,659 - 492,133
Share-based payment expenses NRAAERNATES 2,886 5,139 26,506 268 418 - 35,217
Government grants HFES (20,357) (15,178) (32) (65) - - (35,632)
Rebate of value added tax "VAT") EiER (HEER) BR (76,438) - - - - (1,143) (712,581)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

EE T —

6. MARSHER @

Eﬂﬂ&}nﬂﬁﬂ (n\ﬁ)

R e MBI MIEE

Ft+A=+—HULFE

E-E-FFF-A=+—HLI

FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device Orthopaedic  Interventional packaging  management

products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
BERNER BHER NAER Epf#ER 0RERER =t CEl
AEBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  AREFR  ARETR  ARET:
(=3 (=)

Amounts included in the measure of HENBRN RS HE R

segment profit or segment assets: HE:
Additions to property, plant and equipment  HiE9% HERRE 512,262 199,362 40,191 32,160 18,880 - 802,855
Alowances for credit losses EEFRER 17,630 432 4,784 7314 - 1,19 35,244
Allowances for inventories BEEE 16 9,006 1430 - - 10,452
Allowances for property, plant and equipment ~ #1% BERZEERE - 2571 - - - 2571
Allowances for intangible assets EFEERR - - 4,29 - - 4,295
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEEH 1,052 3353 240,221 12,623 - 257,249
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%BERZ AN E 201,649 111,788 15,225 55,351 20,55 177 424,746
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEEEENE 17,018 - 3,672 - - 20,690
Gain on disposal of property, HENE RERZENS

plant and equipment (1,389) (288) - - - (1,677)
Research and development expenditure HERES 256,023 84,878 14,754 33,496 35,271 - 44402
Share-based payment expenses HRAAERNERES 6,992 6,958 15,801 627 284 - 30,662
Government grants BTREE (15,694) (1,138) - 2,79 (336) (106) (20,066)
Rebate of VAT EERER (77,065) - - - (4,609 (81,674)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)
Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
its major products and services.

WBWARDBER @

FEEmBRRBEA

UTHEEERBETEERKR
B Z WA DT o

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
—F_-— —_TTTHF
+ZAH +ZR
=+-—H =+—H
IEEFE EFE
ARBTRT ARETT
(& &E3))
Sale of medical device products iHE B ERME®D
— Clinical care — BB R IR 4,574,811 4,267,450
- Wound management —BlE IR 412,385 346,590
— Anesthesia and surgical related — I B e 3 1 4B ) 22
products 247,631 193,051
— Medical testing —BSigh 294,833 275,780
— Other consumables —HMFEM 705,304 665,711
Sale of orthopaedic products HE B E M 2,126,594 1,747,774
Sale of interventional products HENAZE M@ 1,772,944 1,611,583
Sale of pharma packaging products  #5& &% 2 645 2= 2,040,355 1,693,798
Sale of blood management products £ & & ¥ & & 976,862 820,600
13,151,719 11,622,337
Information about major customers FTEERHNEN

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of
total sales of the Group for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location

6. WAKRTEBER (&)

HEER

FEBRBEIINBELZBMAZER
DERERMUEZY - AEBIFRE
EEZENDREEMEMNEZR
e

of the assets.

Revenue from
external customers

Year ended Non-current assets
31/12/2021  31/12/2020 31/12/2021  31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
RENMBERZHA FRBEE
gz S
—EZ-F —ZT°%H
+=H +-A ZBZ-§ "Z”"%F
=+-—H =+—H +=H +Z8
LLFE IEFE =+-8 =+—H
AREFR AR®TR AR®FR AR®ETR
(R E7) (&5
PRC HE 10,495,437 9,090,599 8,782,336 8,264,101
United States eS| 1,145,923 1,139,575 5,363,655 5,286,280
Furope, the Middle East BUM ~ PR EIEM
and Africa 501,919 503,502 89,593 29,660
Other districts A& 1,008,440 888,661 18,128 11,167
13,151,719 11,622,337 14,253,712 13,591,208

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

As a practical expedient of HKFRS 15, the Group
need not disclose the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts with customers that has an
original expected duration of one year or less.

SEEEFANZBETEOREN
XHE

ERBBYHREERFE155ERIHE
BAHIN AEBBEARBENEEZ
FRFEMRA —FERNERHKRE
TEREHNNRZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,A-| 2
e B ERER MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtUgA - B E56
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB’000
(restated)
8= 8=
g CZZTEZ2HF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IFFE
ARBTFR AREBTT
GES==l)
Other income: HAUA .
Rebate of VAT (note a) BERIRNR (Ysta) 77,581 81,674
Government grants (note b) LRGN E)) 35,632 20,066
Operating rental income KEHEE 12,070 13,409
Finance lease income AMEHEEUA 11,565 20,627
Interest income from bank deposits  $R{TER ZF B U A 72,171 46,423
Interest income from factoring RIBEB ZF] BIA
business 21,483 17,854
Interest income from loan receivables FEWE 2 &) B WA 50,289 50,702
280,791 250,755
Other gains and losses: Hh K 518
Impairment losses on intangible m éféxﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁé
assets - (4,295)
Impairment losses on inventories FEZBIERE (6,956) (10,452)
Impairment losses on property, MR E Rl 2 BEEE
plant and equipment - (2,571)
Net exchange loss PE &2 B5 185 28 (39,357) (39,977)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BERZE (B518)
plant and equipment & (2,937) 1,677
Gain on deemed disposal of FBIEHEN—BBEAQATZ
investments in an associate wEZ W (MFsE20)
(note 20) - 3,325
Gain/(loss) from changes in BATESFABGtEZ®
fair value of financial instruments BT ARNFEESNE,
measured at FVTPL (B518) 3,323 (84,364)
Gain on disposal of financial assets  HERAFEF AERSE
at FVTPL ZEMEEN KT - 29,809
Donation paid NEiEEE] (41,807) (46,390)
Loss on currency option B HARE R 18 (6,289) -
Loss on Structured Cross EBMERXEEEEE
Currency Swap (22,453) (16,322)
Gain form early repayment of RAMEERB AL T —EH
an interest-free loan from an ENBNESEEMNK G
associate of the Company (note ¢) (ffF5Ec) - 16,856
Gain on release of escrow account fERREEE IRP e - 98,542
Gain on novation of the Contracts HNIBEBEN NG (Bﬁ.ﬁd)
(note d) - 117,292
Net loss of litigation (note e) FreriB kB EE (fiste) (229,852) -
Others H1h 1,380 (447)
(344,948) 62,683
(64,157) 313,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MBI MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE T " —F+_F=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

As Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Limited (“Jierui”),
one of the subsidiary of the Company, was recognised as a
“Social Welfare Entity”, the Tax Bureau in Weihai granted a
rebate of VAT paid by Jierui with effect from 1 May 1999 on
the basis of “payment first then rebate”. Pursuant to Caishui
[2016] No.52 issued by the State Council, with effect from 1
May 2016, Jierui was granted a rebate of VAT determined with
reference to the number of staff with physical disability. For
each staff with physical disability, four times of the minimum
salary approved by the local government in Weihai is granted to
Jierui as rebate of VAT.

Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No.36, Weigao Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
immediate tax rebates upon collection when the actual VAT tax
burden rate exceeds 3%.

During the year, government grants were awarded to the Group
mainly for business development and certain research and
development expenses occurred and were recognised as other
income when the government grants were received. There
were no unfulfilled conditions in the year in which they were
recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Weihai Weigao
Blood Purification Products Company (“Weigao Blood
Purification”), the associate of the Company, early repaid
the interest-free loan. The gain on early repayment of
the loan receivable represents the difference between the
carrying amount of the loan receivable derecognised and the
consideration recovered.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
sold several contracts (“Contracts”) to Weigao Holding
with a consideration of USD17,921,000 (equivalent to
RMB117,292,000) which the Company entered with NeuroVasc
Technologies Inc. for design, research and development of
medical devices in the year ended 31 December 2019. The
consideration was fully settled in January 2021.

By ST :

7. HfthigA - s R ASHR (@

HRAAB W B A B S ZHER
WEBERAT (MBI EHEEA M
SEACE  RALEBERBEBEHZR
BREEEREI B—NAAAER
B—HEEX RABTLOIHRER
B o REEBGRE Y R[2016]5
YN H BRI E—RERA—BIEE
R RIHERTNIEERERLS
EZEREETIZ2HEBET FERERE
BIMs ZHEERBENRHES
MM BRIt EZ REFSNE
SR EARIEERER

IRIERIFR[2016]583658 3 1 > KA F]
HWEARLREESRERERRA
BERNEREERRBAEBR
3% ILRNEERIR A ©

FROAERIENEHFERRESE
B4 TE T 3 B S B B BT 4R B 0 6
EW&ZEXBZ?%@E)JE#EE BAEMUA -
TSR B AR EE R IR 1F

BHEZZEF+_A=+—HLF
B RABBE QB ESERS MRS
fER B AR (TREDRF) ZAE
fﬁﬁégﬂ"kﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂigﬁﬂ’ﬂw
7 AR L FE ST RO B U B SRR AR T B B UK
EINAEZENELE-

BHE_ZEF+HB=+—HI*H
ErArelndatEBAsREET
a#(TE#)) » R1E7%17,921,000% 7T
(FBEM AR®117,292,0007T) » &
b RABIREBE_ZT—LE+ZAH
=T —HIEFEMBERBMARST &
ift 2% BiNeuroVasc Technologies Inc.5]
e -REBERZZEZ—5—H2

R4S A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
Ao

7.

8.

BB RRNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

A subsidiary of the Group was defendant in a product liability
claim (“Claims”). The Claims involve one of the Group's
products. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recorded a pre-tax charge of RMB522,650,000 for losses
related to product liability litigation. The Group recorded these
charges based on the best estimation of the injury alleged, the
results of related litigation, and the degree of responsibility
that may be inferred to the subsidiary of the Group. The
subsidiary of the Group legally carries product liability insurance
that covers losses asserted against the Claims. The amount of
receivable is calculated according to contractual agreements,
considering date of operation and claim date, and the degree
of responsibility that may be inferred to the subsidiary of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded an insurance receivable of RMB293,247,000. The
net loss related to the Claims by considering the provision
and insurance coverage is recorded with an amount of
RMB229,852,000.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

7. HfthigA - s R ASHR (@

rEB-BNBARD N —FERSE
R (TRE) WS - ZRESI A
EREP-—EBER RBEE-_ZT-—
FE+-_A=+—HIEEE ~xEAH®
HERSTHFABBNIBLRRZERA
ZRAARM522,650,00077 c &£ FE AR
EHFRESNREMSS  HERNR
B 4 B2 LU Ry 7 BE HE i B 19 7 52 [ Y /BB
NENETREREBILEER -K~&E
EfBAEMREG L IRBERST
REG HERBEPRERNEBLR R
WHIENSELRESRMESE
STRBIFAEIRRE B U A AE
BEHENAEBRBATNSER
B -RHE_ET_—F+_-_B=+—
ALEEE AEERSERRIREA
FE#293,247,0007T © & 5t Ko #3545 K A7
HEEE RIEEENFHEESE
A ANR15229,852,0007T °

8. FHAEERIRENTZRE

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 518 > R E
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
8E BE
R ZT°ITH
+=B8 +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEFEE
ARBFrT ARETT
Impairment losses (recognised)/ FTHIEE FER) #Er
reverse on: HEEE
— trade receivables —EWE Z R (17,290) (32,762)
— loan receivables —EIER (7,721) (9,232)
— other receivables —HMEWRRIE 4 8,138
— receivables from factoring business —2R BRIP > FEITIE 382 423
— finance lease receivables —EWRERERE (2,357) (1,811)
(26,982) (35,244)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. FIERZ
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HE BHE
—EZ—F —ZT-FF
+=A8 +_—HA
=+—H =+—H
IEEE EFEE
AREBFRT AR®TFT
Interest on bank loans and IRTTERKEMERFE
other borrowings 97,261 156,002
Interest on bonds payable FENESHHE 39,467 21,230
Interest on lease liabilities HEaFEH B 3,668 1,703
140,396 178,935
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRiIRMA

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
BE HE
—F-—F "T_ITF
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE FE
AREFT AR®TFIT
(&&E7)
Current enterprise income tax BNHARZEPREIR 485,922 404,304

Under/(over) provision in prior years B EEBETE, (BEEE
) 9,105 (13,359)
Deferred tax IRIEFR 1A (79,934) (32,523)
415,093 358,422

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the Company and certain PRC subsidiaries is 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

MEA15% o

RIBE(PEAREMETEMRER
EY (T ZERRERIE)) R(EEFRE
MAEBHIEG ) KRB RETH
BB ARINBE _ S _—FK_
E_EF+_HA=+—HULEFEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRISHRAZ @

192

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. The
subsidiaries in the U.S. are subject to federal income tax
at a tax rate of 21% and state income tax.

The Company, Jierui, Weigao Orthopaedic and Weigao
Purui were recognised as Shandong Province New and
High Technical Enterprises (LR & SE#ZMTEZE) from
the year 2020 to 2022, and, the subsidiaries of the
Company, Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical Devices
Co., Ltd. and Weihai Weigao Jiesheng Medical Devices
Co., Ltd. were recognised as New and High Technical
Enterprises from the year 2019 to 2021. In accordance
with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the Ministry
of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a tax
rate of 15%.

Jierui has been recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”.
Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No. 52 issued by the State
Council, with effect from 1 May 2016, Social Welfare
Entity is subject to income tax rate of 15%, and an
amount equivalent to the total salaries paid to staff
with physical disability is further deducted from the
taxable income of Jierui. The tax charge provided for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
made after taking these tax incentives into account.
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PiN/NES NS RN R = N
HERIA_S _ZSFEE_Z
T TEEBELREAEMEmNEE B
KATRB AT EIMNEIFEERE
BMERADMREEE = ZRER
BMBERARERIAS T —NF
EE_Z_—FESHMEMbzE-
RIBE(BBERRFELBER B
XFERMETEZHRERNEN) »
S MR 15% R (TP
B e

BRI ERBS HHEEMEE R
RS e 3% i 2 B 7R[2016]56525%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

10. FRGHFASZ (@)

AEFEEMNZHEFSEmEME
T AR 3R R B BRAR A ) AR N

loss and other comprehensive income as follows: e
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
BE BE
—EZ— —TTF
+ZH +ZAR
=+—H =+—H
ILEE EE
ARBTR ARBETT
(&)
Profit before tax BRI AR 2,841,721 2,565,459
Taxation at income tax rate of 15% R1I5%PMERHREAENRIE
(2020: 15%) (CEZEF 15%) 426,258 384,819
Tax effect of share of an associate BE—BMEABZRNBETE (10,498) (1,874)
Tax effect of share of joint ventures BhEErELRBEE 89 -
Tax effect of income not taxable MIRBEME BAEFRHEBAZ
for tax purpose METE (2,378) (27,036)
Effect of additional tax deduction BERMBEERZBIMNABINEZ
for research and development expenses 2 (57,906) (42,380)
Additional tax benefit to a HEENEEZBINIBER
Social Welfare Entity (4,900) (4,549)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABTAREINIRIEEE
not recognised (3,375) (5,576)
Utilisation of deductible temporary BABTARERNEINE R
difference previously not recognised bt (771) -
Tax effect on tax losses and deductible KRR IEE 18 K A0
temporary difference not recognised ERMEENRBEE 18,264 10,389
Tax effect on expenses not deductible MIRFEME AN
for tax purpose nBETe 23,833 15,737
State and local income taxes for BREREENBASNER R
U.S. subsidiaries 5 PSR (4,928) 4,717
Effect on different tax rates of subsidiaries NEIIREXEHHMB AT T E 22,300 37,534
Under/(over) provision in prior years BRAFERERR/ (BEEH) 9,105 (13,359)
Income tax expense for the year FAMERES 415,093 358,422
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FAREF
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= 8=
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILFE IEFE
ARBFTRT ARETT
(& E5))
Profit for the year has been arrived F RN R R A
at after charging and crediting: THIBEEBER
Allowances for credit losses EEEEEE 26,982 35,244
Allowances for inventories FEEE 6,956 10,452
Allowances for property, MEBE K& ERE
plant and equipment - 2,571
Allowances for intangible assets BT EERE - 4,295
Amortisation of intangible assets W B ESH 241,333 257,249
Auditors’ remuneration % 20 BB = 7,677 7,567
Depreciation of property, ME--BEREBEBITE
plant and equipment 446,172 427,317
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y 2T E 5,216 6,276
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRESERE 31,092 20,690
Lease expenses related to B ERRMNEERS
short-term lease 8,231 11,039
Lease liabilities interest expense HEaEMEXZH 3,668 1,703
Cost of inventories recognised as RABEZNEERAK
an expense 5,882,315 5,122,766
Staff costs, including directors’ and BTWA (BEEEK
supervisors’ remuneration BEEF )
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIRFEF 5T B H R
contributions 133,812 92,515
— Salaries and other allowances — ¥ R E MR R 1,820,744 1,764,634
— Share-based payment expenses —URMAERNTRES
(note 38) (M$5E38) 76,492 30,662
Total staff costs BT A48 %8 2,031,048 1,887,811
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE BERKXEEE
plant and equipment (U &= 2,937 (1,677)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the
entities comprising the Group to the directors, chief

12.EF -EFERESM=

EFREFEME

FEBERENHAEBNEARTE
E THBIAESMEFEN

executive and supervisors of the Company are as e
follows:
Year ended 31/12/2021
HE-F--5+-B=t+-HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3] Nigfp
Hek BIkER WL AER
& Hit2R B (GELD) fIRA% b

ARBTR ARBFR

ABRBTR ARBFR ABBFR ARBTR

Chief executive and TRBHENTES
executive director

Mr. Long Jing (note b) BT 4 (W5Eh) - 1,019 46 712 5,283 7,060

Mr. Cong Ri Nan (note d) SHMEE (H3kd) - 903 45 526 1,709 3,183
- 1,922 91 1,238 6,992 10,243

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei (note ) SREm K4 (H5kc) - 1,425 - 876 - 2,301

Mr. Wang Yi (note c) TREE Wz - 1,117 - 685 - 1,802
- 2,542 - 1,561 - 4,103
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 1N.E5 -EFRESHE @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments BEEREEMNE (B
(continued)
Year ended 31/12/2021
BE-S--5+-A=+-HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
E30) N
Hek RIkER HRRTEA HERN
g HitER BELEEA ((GEL)] fIRA% by
AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR ARBTR AEBTR
Non-executive directors JFH{TES
Mr. Chen Lin (note ) BiEE (Mzte) - - - - - -
Mr. Tang Zheng Peng (note ) R IER%AE (fiske) - - - - - -
Mr. Lian Xiao Ming (note f) /B354 (HizH) - - - - - -
Independent non- BUFQTES
executive directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung (note )~ BRI %4 (Ffzkq) 166 - - - - 166
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong (note g)  {JBAM & & (fifzkq) 120 - - - - 120
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia (note g) ~ E#RELZ T (fzkq) 120 - - - - 120
406 - - - S 406
Supervisors ¥
Mr. Yue Chun Liang EREREE - 147 29 113 256 545
Mr. Hu Yun Yong HERLE - - - - - -
Mrs. Gu Mei Jun AREUL - - - - - -
- 147 29 113 256 545
406 4,611 120 2,912 7,248 15,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE5 - BEFERESME @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EERESEME (@
(continued)

Year ended 31/12/2020
BE_Z_TE{_BZ+-HILERE
Retirement

Salaries benefits Performance Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

xR bR

Hek RIKER TERTEA AERN
ik Hitzis R GED) THRZ it

ANEETT ARETTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ANEETT

Chief executive and TRBHRENTES
executive director

Mr. Long Jing B xk - 859 35 641 399 1,934

Executive directors nrEs

Mr. Gong Jian Bo (note i) SHIREE (MH) - 2,657 19 9,280 - 11,956

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei RERLE - 1,425 - 760 - 2,185

Mr. Wang Yi TREE - 1,145 - 757 - 1,902
- 5,27 19 10,797 - 16,043

Non-executive directors JEH{TES

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua (note i)~ BMZEZ L (M) - - - _ _ _
Mr. Chen Lin (note e) BMEE (Hizke) - - - - - _
Mr. Tang Zheng Peng (note e) HERLE (Fizte) - - - _ _ _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

12.EF -EFERESME @

ESEREEME B

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
(continued)

Year ended 31/12/2020
HEZ_ZE+-B=-T-HIEE

198

Retirement

Salaries benefits Performance Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R DU

&k RINEER 1RRATEA AERN
ik Hit2ht EHEIER (M&ta) THRZ &5t
ARETT AREFT AREFT NS ARETT ARETT

Independent non- BUkpTES
executive directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERELE 162 - - - - 162

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong IRt 108 - - - - 108

Mrs. Wang Jin Xia IREYL 108 - - - - 108

378 - - - - 378

Supervisors Bz

Mr. Yue Chun Liang Eﬁﬁﬁi - 161 30 50 - 241

Mr. Hu Yun Yong (note h) NER LS (fsh) - - - _ _ _

Mrs. Gu Mei Jun (note h) %E?‘(i (Hizth) - - - - - -

Mrs. Bi Dong Mei (note j) ~ B&i§%+ (&) - - - - - -

Mrs. Chen Xiao Yun (note j) ~ BEBEEZ T () - - - - - -

- 161 30 50 - 241
378 6,247 84 11,488 399 18,596

Notes: ihEsd

(a)  Approved by the Remuneration Committee, the performance (a) RFMZEGHIE RITEBICALN
related bonus payment is determined by reference to MILBEESRTBEZZEARE
the individual performance of the directors and the chief ﬁ'ﬁ;’ﬁm o PIITHARE R HNITESEM
executive. The chief executive, executive directors’ emoluments MERBEETBIERARNAREAEERS
shown above were for their services in connection with the BHRBEM FERITESRE
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The ENNERAREFAERRIEENR
non-executive directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments shown EHER
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

(b)  Mr. Long Jing has resigned as chief executive officer of the (b) BERKEEEHERRBITEHER
Company with effect from 30 March 2021. Mr. Long has been BIZE - —F=ZHA=+HE4EM-8
appointed as Chairman and authorised representative of the RECEZERARBERERITE
Company with effect from 30 March 2021. KRR BZE-_—F=ZA=+HEL

2 o
() Mr. Zhang Hua Wei and Mr. Wang Yi have resigned as executive (0 RERCEREIRLECHIERRT

director of the Company with effect from 30 March 2021.
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12. DIRECTORS’,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _—_Z_—

SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

Mr. Cong Ri Nan has been appointed as chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 30 March 2021, and has been
appointed as executive director of the Company with effect
from 24 May 2021.

Mr. Chen Lin and Mr. Tang Zheng Peng have been appointed
as non-executive director of the Company with effect from
8 March 2021 by approval of extraordinary general meeting
of the Company, which was firstly appointed by the Board of
Director on 14 December 2020.

Mr. Lian Xiao Ming has been appointed as non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 24 May 2021.

Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
have been re-elected as an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 24 May 2021.

Mr. Hu Yun Yong and Mrs. Gu Mei Jun have been appointed as
supervisor of the Company with effect from 22 July 2020.

Mr. Gong Jian Bo and Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua resigned from
directorship on 14 December 2020.

Mrs. Bi Dong Mei and Mrs. Chen Xiao Yun have been worked
for Weigao Holding since 2012, and the salaries and other
allowances and retirement benefits schemes contributions were
paid by Weigao Holding. During the year ended 31 December
2020, Mrs. Bi Dong Mei and Mrs. Chen Xiao Yun retired from
their three years terms of office.

R e MBI MIEE

Ft+A=+—HULFE

12.EF -EFERESME @

ESEREEME (&

PYEE :

(d)

()

EHHAEEECEZERERTITH
B BEZ_—F=ZA=+HEXE
W REBEER/RERTDNTES 8
TEC-FRATTHARBREN-

RARNBRRFARGHE > BRIMT
ERSGERTECBEZERERATIF
HTES B -_—F=-FB/N\AE
EWORRZEBEZTF+ZHF+MA
EEFgaREE-

BHONRALEEEZEAESATIERT
EE B _—FRA -+ HAR
ES3E

ERELE - TRMZEIRTHBEL
TEESEAANTDBILIFERTE
E PR _—FRA-tHAREE
2 o

PHERLERSEELIEEEZE
AAABEBEE B_Z_ZTELH
“+ZHEER-

SHREERBREZLLIN _T-F
F+ZATHAREESES-

BLBREIRRBEELXITA T =
FR-EBERIESERAR  Hif
e AR AL BOR KR F 5T IR A
EEERARRN - BE_T _TF
+ZBE=+—HLEFE ELiBRt
RREEZ L H = FEHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE - BEFERESME @

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included one director (2020: one director),
details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2020: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Group are as follows:

LaeEMERES

RERTERLLRSHMESS
B—R2EF(CZ2TZTF —RE
F) > HEFEMFBE SN L3 HER
me (T2 2FF  1%) &eH
BE CFAEEEEHNTETHA
B) FABFMEFRIDT ¢

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000
#=E e
—E-—F C"T_=&
+=A +=R
=+—B =+—8
1235 I3

ARBTFR ARBTT

Salaries and other benefits e R E MR,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

1N.EF5 -BEEREESME ©®

IaREMEEE (@

HMNFRUTHEE BT IFRRF
EFzReHMESAZNT

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
No. of No. of
employees employees
8= HE
—E-—-F “BCEH
+=AH +ZAH
=+-—H =+—H
ILEE IHFE
BEA# BE A
Emoluments bands in Hong Kong Dollars B =& & (U#E 7T (F87T)) 51)
("HKD")
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 7. %4,000,0007% 7T 1
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 7%4,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HKD6,000,001 to HKD6,500,000 6,000,001 70 £6,500,0007 70 - 1
HKD13,000,001 to HKD13,500,000 13,000,001 7% 13,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HKD 14,500,001 to HKD15,000,000

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
executive directors, non-executive director, independent
non-executive directors, supervisors, or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2020:nil). None of the directors, supervisors and chief
executive has waived any emoluments during the year
ended 2021 (2020: nil).

14,500,001 7% 15,000,000/ 7T

RBEE"ZT-_—F+"HF=+—H
IEFEER AERTESSME T
EERTEF FRTES BIL
FATEF - BEEFHELLRSFHM
BEFRARSIMAREBRIRMA
AEBERFRVERE IS BERAE
(CEZZF 8B -HMEEE B
ERTHBHNBE_T _—FI1F
FE (CEZEF L E) REEMAN
@o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. 18

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000
8= S
— S "IZT_EF
+ZAH +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE LEFE
AERBFR ARETT
Dividends recognised as FARED R DI E
distribution during the year:
2021 Interim — RMB0.077 —E—FHHREESRAR
(2020: interim dividend #0.0777T (_’vﬁ_%ﬁﬁ - FRER
- RMB0.062) per share KESRARE0.0627T) 348,220 280,385
2020 Final — RMB0.068 _ECEFRAKEESE
(2019: final dividend AR #0.0687T
- RMBO0.061) per share (ZE2—NF KR!

FEARE®0.0617T)

Total 4Bt

Less: distribution to the shares hold & : A= sE AR5 2 ED

by the trustees under a share SFEIFBEZRME

award scheme (note 38(a)) 2k (Mf5E38(a))

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 of RMBO0.065 (2020: RMB0.068)
per share, amounting to RMB297,091,000 (2020:
RMB307,519,000) in total, has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
in the forthcoming general meeting.
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307,519 275,862
655,739 556,247

2,451 2,898
653,288 553,349

RRERRB EFEZRNTEE
B+ RA=+—HILEFE
RFIREARR E SR AR K0.0657T (T
T -ZF . ANR®0.0687T) 0 &
ARM297,091,0000 (ZEZ=
£ AR ®307,519,0007T) ° %2
AR ERERRRITHIRERS
EHER S BFEIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

14. 8REH

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

EIZET

—+ A=+ —BLEE

AABEEANBEERERAREE

share attributable to owners of the Company is based BAHRETIEEE
on the following data:
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: mABESENT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(restated)
8= BHE
—E—85 TZ-ZTH
+=B +Z=A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
ARBTFR AREBTT
(reE5)
Profit for the year attributable to KABHEE NELFEREF
owners of the Company 2,244,778 2,086,783
Earnings for the purpose of MmEREXRBNMSNET
basic earnings per share 2,244,778 2,086,783
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BT EHZ B E
shares:
Adjustment to the share of RIFERENNE AR
profit of subsidiary based on 15 B A Bl A
dilution of their earnings per share (923) -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted SR ERZF M HEF
earnings per share 2,243,855 2,086,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. 81REH @&
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
‘000 ‘000
8= 8=
—E-—F C"T_=f
+=A +=8B
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
T2 T B
Number of shares & HE
Number of shares for the purpose of FhEtEEREABFME W
basic earnings per share BHEB 4,500,994 4,489,196
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary —~ ZEBTHEMNRTZ :
shares:
Incentive shares ED B 19 15,329 3,757
Weighted average number of ordinary SLEt B EREERAME N
shares for the purpose of diluted LB T8
earnings per share 4,516,323 4,492,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERSE
Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE
EE#kE BHRFE
TRIE BEY MERES "B RIA it st
AEBTT ARBTT ARt ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
cost 72
At 1 January 2020 (restated) RZZ2ZZF-F—H
(&7 971,464 3,066,065 1,835,303 100,909 847,565 8504 6,829,810
Additions (restated) HE (KEF) 428,821 152,412 140,370 10,139 71,113 - 802,855
Transfer Eeh (338,701) 97,593 183,911 - 57,197 - -
Transfer from investment properties ~ BEEHRENE - 52,637 - - - - 52,637
Transfer to investment properties BEERENE - (29,146) - - - - (29,146)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39)  WE—EIBAT (f:£39) - - 23 609 139 - 971
Disposals HE - (64,035) (14,816) (3,334) (74,652) - (156,837)
Exchange adjustments (restated) ERBE (BE7) (2,939) (3,588) (7,041) (138) (3432) (550) (17,688)
At 31 December 2020 (restated) RI2ZZE+CH
=+—H (&3 1,058,645 3,271,938 2,137,950 108,185 897,930 7954 7,482,602
Additions HE 430,769 - 311,444 7,834 94,233 - 844,280
Transfer b (911,271) 502,070 329,697 - 79,504 - -
Transfer from investment properties B B ENE - 64,657 - - - - 64,657
Transfer to investment properties BEERENE - (60,695) - - - - (60,695)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39)  WE—EIBAT (:£39) - 4,140 4,622 - - - 8,762
Disposals HE - - (22,611) (42,847) (60,874) - (126332
Exchange adjustments ERBEE (1,002) (1,187) (2,790) (127) (1,604) (182) (6,892)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-_—F+_H
=1+-H 577,141 3,780,923 2,758,312 73,045 1,009,189 7,772 8,206,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERSE @
(continued)
Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
HIE~
BERE BHARE
TRIR BEY RMERER HE RIE 1 st
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR AREFn AR%ETrn ARETR
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 (restated) RZ2ZZF-F—H
(575 8,205 408,948 871,764 44,663 466,691 - 1,800,271
Provided for the year (restated) FRERE (EEF) 2,571 136,637 165,779 11,892 110,438 - 427317
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREHRENE - 452 - - - - 452
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - (2,344) - - - - (2,344)
Eliminated on disposals RHEREH - (11,962) (15,858) (2,541) (71,577) - (101,938)
Exchange adjustments (restated) ERBE (LS5 - (522) (1,888) (84) (1,327) - (3,821)
At 31 December 2020 (restated) RI2ZZFE+CH
=+—H &3 10,776 531,209 1,019,797 53,930 504,225 - 2,119,937
Provided for the year ERERE - 119,339 195,168 7,57 124,094 - 446,172
Transfer from investment properties B B ENE - 10,226 - - - - 10,226
Transfer to investment properties BREEREME - (3,970) - - - - (3,970)
Eliminated on disposals R HEREH - - (12,460) (17,394) (53,848) - (83,702)
Exchange adjustments EREE - (207) (724) (25) (695) - (1,651)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ_—F+_H
=1+-A 10,776 656,597 1,201,781 44,082 573,776 - 2,487,012
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-F+_AH
=1+-H 566,365 3,124,326 1,556,531 28,963 435,413 7,772 5,719,370
At 31 December 2020 (restated) RZZZZE+TH
=+—B &5 1,047,869 2,740,729 1,118,153 54,255 393,705 7,954 5,362,665
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress and freehold land,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into

15.

ME-BERSRE ®

it E-BERRHBEER (£
BIEKBHRRFRA LRI UE
BOETLET ARGt RIBREER %

account of their estimated residual values and at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.2-95%
Plant and machinery 9.5-19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0-31.7%
Furniture, fixtures equipment

and tools 19.0 -47.5%

As at 31 December 2021, total net book value of
Property, Plant and Equipment served as collateral for
the Group’s borrowing amounted to RMB44,915,000
(2020: RMB44,318,000).

THERTE

BEY) 3.2 —9.5%
i 55 o 1% 23 9.5 —19.0%
RE 19.0 —31.7%
FE -BEEE

RIE 19.0 —47.5%

N ZE_—F+ZA=+—H 1
REAEBBERBFRROYE - KE
REBNR@DPEAERARE

44,915,00070 (Z&E =

44,318,0007T) ©

FARK

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FREEE
Leasehold Leased Office
land  properties equipment Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HELH HENME MAZRE it
ANREFTT ANRETF T ARETF T AREFT
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%+-H
=+—-H
Carrying amount REE 396,468 78,730 1,119 476,317
As at 31 December 2020 WZE_ZE5+ZH
=+—H
Carrying amount SREE 406,313 28,188 1,011 435,512
For the year ended BE—_E--%+_-H
31 December 2021 =+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEEH 9,845 20,578 669 31,092
For the year ended HE-_ZT-TH+-H
31 December 2020 =+—BHLEE
Depreciation charge NEER 10,821 9,472 397 20,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 16. FRAEEE @

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB'000 RMB'000

8= BHE

ZEZ—F CTSF

+=A +=8B

=+—H =+—H

IEFE IEFE

ARBTRT ARETT

Expense relating to short-term leases fSHAFHERIX 8,231 11,039

Total cash outflow for leases HERESMLESE 34,068 24,288

Additions to right-of-use assets Mg EREEE 71,897 74,315
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary UWiEE—RIMIB AT ELE

(note 39) (MF5E39) - 5,014

For both years, the Group leases various offices and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in note 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE T " —F+_F=+—HIEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. 8 EWE
RMB'000
ARBFT
COST [N
At 1 January 2020 N ZEETF—HF—H 185,713
Addltlon //J\E 8,719
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEBEYE -HE&RE 29,146
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEME -KRERRE (52,637)
At 31 December 2020 N_E2EF+"H=+—H 170,941
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEBEYXEHE KRR E 60,695
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEME -BREMRE (64,657)
At 31 December 2021 wW_E2_—F+_8A=+—H 166,979
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 N_E2ZEF—H—H 26,063
Provided for the year FREE 6,276
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EBESE Y K E &R E 2,344
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREYE -BREKRRE (452)
At 31 December 2020 RIBE-ZF+"H=+—H 34,231
Provided for the year FREE 5,216
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EBESEY B E &R E 3,970
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEVE -BRERKE (10,226)
At 31 December 2021 W_E_—F+_HB=+—H 33,191
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZB2_—F+"R=+—H 133,788
At 31 December 2020 R-_E_ERFE+"H=+—H 136,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. 12 8YE ®

210

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB173,925,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB177,724,000) has been determined by
the Company.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties are assessed and discounted at
the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties
in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the
sales transactions of similar commercial properties in
the PRC and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group’s investment properties. There has
been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.
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FEBREYER T _—F+_
B=+—HHNAFENAAR
173,925,00070 (ZE2_ZTF : AR
#%177,724,0007t) » ZAFEEH
RNBETE ©

DNET W AEETE » MY EFR
BBz mHESRIRRE
EHILEYERR TG m KT
ERBR-HHEEEH2EYEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

The carrying value of investment properties shown
above comprise of buildings erected on:

17.

REVME @

RBREHR *EBEBAFES
B REVMERERFENT

U EFFREYENREESEEZ
PO M |2 YY)

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

“¥--%+-HA=+-H “ZI2F+ZR=+—H
Fair value Fair value
Carrying at level 3 Carrying at level 3
amount hierarchy amount hierarchy
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
IREE RZRATFE REE FS=HA/TE
AE®BFR AR®TR AREBTT ARETR

Land in PRC REREIR L

Medium term lease FERRA 133,788 173,925 136,710 177,724

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 3.2% per annum.

TG EYEREGEIUEX
32% T UUITE

18.

GOODWILL 18. B &
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated)
g5 TZET-=F=F
+=B +—H
=+—-B =+—8
AREFRT AR®BTFT
(&R&E7)
Cost DN
At 1 January n—A—H 3,414,210 3,632,417
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—HENB AR ELE
(note 39) (M5%£39) 7,637 3,281
Exchange adjustments bE R (73,350) (221,488)
At 31 December r+ZA=+—=H 3,348,497 3,414,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E_Z—

18. GOODWILL (continued)

—F+__B=+—HLEFE

Impairment testing on goodwill

The Group uses operating divisions as the basis for
reporting segment information. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following groups of cash generating units ("CGUs").
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

18. & ®
o 22 i ()

FAERGEREEDBEREARS
DEBEREE BETRER
Ao EmBERDEIUANTREELE
I ((REEEBENM)) ER KT
TFRIFTEFFTIR=1+—
B EBEZREENT

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB'000 RMB’000

(restated)

—E-—% —ETEF

+=A +=8

=+—H =+—H

ARBFTRT ARETT

(& &E3))

Medical device products B ER i A oo 32,215 32,215
Orthopaedic products 2R E 173,966 173,966
Interventional products A E 2,928,886 2,989,604
Blood management products Mm% ELRE®R 213,430 218,425
3,348,497 3,414,210

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The management considers that groups of CGUs are
represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of medical device products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2020: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2020: 14%). The cash flows
for the following years are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% growth rate (2020: 2.5%). A key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

FEESFASBERE HHA

PRETHENEEHE BgE
E"é ElJ DT/)—JME °
mEEBRENAMES  EEERA

REEFBMUMNETRNNER
BRI

BRSMERZRSELEMAER
zHWESBhREREESEM
ErT -nmWbsENEEBHES
AE(CEIEFAF) BHEE
FBEIRE14% (ZEZFF 1 14%)
ARB BREENREEREHRA
25% (ZE-FF 12.5%) WIETE
EEEXEH GTHGHABEZETE
BREAEEEEE HRBERIRE
REEBBEHBERTEHAME
ﬁ?_o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2020: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2020: 14%). The cash flows
for the following years are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% growth rate (2020: 2.5%). A key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of interventional products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 10-year period (2020:10-year),
and discount rate of 11% (2020: 11%). The cash flows
for the following years are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% growth rate (2020: 2%). A key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market
development.

18. & )

BERENH (@

BRERZIRSESEMNER 2
WElEsBELhEERBETEmE
EonlESEUEEBHEZR
FE(CEEF 1) WHBEER
BEIRR14% (ZCE_ZF 1 14%)
AER - BREENRERSFEHE
25% (ZE-ZFF 12.5%) WEETE
BEXHEH AEFEHEEZEE
BREABEEER JLIATRIR
REEBENTWEER AR ME
ﬁgo

NAEmZIREESEMER 20
WElEEDZERBEFEME
FEerolsBEUSEBH EZ+
F(CE_EF .+ BKREER
BIRE11% (CE_FF 1 11%)
AER BREENRERSHMA
25% (CE-THF 1 2%) NiBTEE
EXHE - AEFEHBEZEZER
RAEHEHEBEXR, NIRAFTFRERK
BEEBHTBEEAEMBTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE ©)

214

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs of
Blood management products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management covering a 5-year period (2020:5-
year), and discount rate of 14.5% (2020: 14.5%). The
cash flows for the following years are extrapolated
using a steady 2.5% growth rate (2020: 2.5%). A
key assumption for the value in use calculations is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amount is significantly above the
carrying amount of each CGUs. Management of the
Group believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not result in
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HLFE

— =
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BR.EE
Development Product Customer
Costs  Technology Relationship  Trademarks Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RENE EmKiE EEMME L o
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT
cosT K%
At 1 January 2020 (restated) ﬁé:?:%&—ﬁ —H (§E75) 43,836 1,466,681 1,203,557 181,381 2,895,455
Addition % 59,384 - 643 - 60,027
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) —BRBAR (H:39) - - 14,007 - 14,007
Exchange adjustments (restated) @ﬁ.ﬂ% (=51) (6,622) (89,990) (77,901) (11,734) (186,247)
At 31 December 2020 (restated) RZIZZZE+ZA=1+-H
(@@J) 96,598 1,376,691 1,140,306 169,647 2,783,242
Addition HE 29,405 2,144 - - 31,549
Exchange adjustments ERAE (4,713) (29,750) (27,121) (3,879) (65,463)
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-£+ZA=1-H 121,290 1,349,085 1,113,185 165,768 2,749,328
AMORTISATION ii&a’é]
At 1 January 2020 (restated) “Z-ZE-F—H (&@EF) - 259,152 224,650 29,504 513,306
Charge for the year (restated) ifm M% (@@J) - 121,044 120,968 15,237 257,249
Exchange adjustments (restated) ERER (TET) - (21,795) (22,118) (2,881) (46,794)
At 31 December 2020 (restated) RIEZEE+ZA=+—H
(mE=5l) - 358,401 323,500 41,860 723,761
Charge for the year FRES - 115,249 112,020 14,064 241,333
Exchange adjustments ERBEE - (8,454) (8,698) (1,120) (18,272)
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F+ZA=1-H - 465,196 426,822 54,804 946,822
IMPAIRMENT HiE
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZEE-B-H - - - - -
Addition HE 4,295 - - - 4,295
Exchange adjustments ERAE (274) - - - (274)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZE+-E=1—H 4,001 - - - 4,021
Exchange adjustments ERAE (92) - - - (92)
At 31 December 2021 RIZFZ-F+ZF=1+-H 3,929 - - - 3,929
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-E+ZA=1-H 117,361 883,889 686,363 110,964 1,798,577
At 31 December 2020 (restated) AZBZRE+"A=+-H
(=75 92,577 1,018,290 816,806 127,787 2,055,460

tHETEERRRRAEAE
H-ZEBTLEERUTHBRE

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis

over the following periods: AROREESE

Product technology 10-12 years BT 10-124
Customer relationship 8-11 years =R EMA 8-114
Trademarks 11-12 years 5L 11-124
As at 31 December 2021, total net book value of N —F BA=+—8"

1’&?%1&%!%%&?&? fa By £ 2
EENR@IFELEAARK
1,558,472,00070 (ZE-EF : A
R #1,819,386,0007T) ©

intangible assets served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB1,558,472,000 (2020:
RMB1,819,386,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. It —REE QAT ERS

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

g8 ZET°ITH

+ZA +ZR

=+—H =+—H

ARBTR AREBTT

Cost of investment in an associate KEME QBRI A 937,500 937,500
Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ FE{5 UL B % ] HE K

other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEmlA 201,401 131,412

1,138,901 1,068,912

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the

reporting period are as follow:

Proportion of

R|REHR > SEBOBE QS
BT -

Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights held
Name of entity registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
31/12/2021  31/12/2020 31/12/2021  31/12/2020
MR, FEEFE FEEFE
BRE2E SEMAEER TEERME P&ttt hl SRR TEER
g% “Z°ZF ZEZ-H CZTIZE
t=R +=A +28 +28
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+—H
Shandong WEGO PRC PRC 28.0871% 28.0871%  28.0871% 28.0871%  Manufacturing of
Blood Purification medical blood
Products Co., Ltd purification
("Weigao Blood") * treatments and
related consumables
WERE B MK FE HE HE HEBBMRFLRE
HmERRA R HER
(TR #)
* Former name as Weihai Weigao Blood Purification Products * ERAESEMEZERGERA

Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 20. R—RIEEATNERS @

BMEARNZMBERBE

Summarised financial information of the
associate

ERTEEN—RBBME AT M
ERESEZEHINMT - HERBE
ERREEBVHERSENRNZ
BMERRPHFRRPIITZEE -

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.

BENBMERER AN GREMBR

The associate is accounted for using the equity method

in the consolidated financial statements. KA
Weigao Blood Purification B S & F M
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—g=-- —ECEHF
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREFRT AR®TFT
Current assets MENEE 1,910,875 1,731,177
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,204,651 4,026,691
Current liabilities mENBaRE (2,057,789) (1,710,356)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (131,922) (441,936)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE HE
g5 TZT-=FTF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEE FFEE
AREFT AR®BTFT
Revenue A 3,078,505 2,715,439
Profit for the year KEE =] 249,182 65,944
Profit for the year attributable to = MR FEHER A
owners of the Weigao Blood FE(E AR FEE R
Purification 249,182 65,944
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 20. R —RHBEATINERS @

B S &R E ()

Weigao Blood Purification (continued)

EXBIZ BB ER RN GRS ]
WRESDWNBMEQ R Bm 2 RE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

the associate recognised in the consolidated financial ERHER .
statement:
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
— -8 “ZT°ZTH
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFR AREBTT
Adjusted net assets of Weigao Blood Ei& A& F1Lz
Purification KREEERE 3,676,409 3,427,223
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZEBERE S MK FIEZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification  Ffr 7 ## 7 b 28.0871% 28.0871%
The Group's share of net assets of NEBEEGE S MR FE
Weigao Blood Purification BEFE 1,032,597 962,608
Goodwill G 106,304 106,304
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERES MR FIEEDZZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification BRTE{E 1,138,901 1,068,912
Note: BosE -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Weigao Holding injected BHE_ZT”ZF+A=+—HLEE"

HeEEAR MRS MR ZEIEARE
1,300,000,00070 » EHAEEH R ES MK
RO H43.30%#8528.0871% ©

RMB1,300,000,000 to Weigao Blood Purification, which resulted in
a dilution of the Group's interest in Weigao Blood Purification from
43.30% to 28.0871%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RS ¥R

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-— TETRE
+ZAH +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRT ARETT
C== 1)
Cost of investment in joint ventures BB &E EMAA 182,730 182,730
Share of post-acquisition loss and FEML U B BB &
other comprehensive income Hfth 2 m A (531) -
Exchange adjustments PE 2 S B (1,442) (803)
180,757 181,927
Details of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the RHRERR AEENG S BESF
reporting period are as follow: BT
Proportion of
Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights held
Name of entity registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
31/12/2021  31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2020
ML/ FEEFE FEEFE
ER4E HEMAEER TRERME FrE &Rz LL B ERELLH) TEER

—E--§ —"EZ°%F ZEZ-H "Z°%E
+ZA +ZAH +ZA +ZA8
=+-H =+-A =+-H =+-A

Qingdao Songyuan PRC PRC 38.5% 38.5% 38.5% 38.5%  Investment in companies
First Phase Medical in medical industry
Investment

Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
("Qingdao
Songyuan”)
BEEINRSHRE alEi alEi RERBRTXRE
BREEHLE
(BRAE) (
5 BHR)

Weihai Shangyuan PRC PRC 19.8% 19.8% 19.8% 19.8%  Venture capital business
Fund
EEHTES HE HE BIERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_H=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

k

21. REE T ENERD @

l]ﬂ

220

Note:

On 24 December 2020, the Group entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other six parties to establish Qingdao
Songyuan to invest in company running business in medical industry.

The total subscribed capital of Qingdao Songyuan is
RMB2,000,000,000, of which RMB770,000,000 is subscribed
by the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group invested
RMB154,000,000 to Qingdao Songyuan, the remaining
RMB616,000,000 is to be invested within 5 years after the
establishment of the partnership.

On 12 October 2020, Wego Healthcare entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other seven parties to establish Weihai
Shangyuan Fund. The total subscribed capital of Weihai Shangyuan
Fund is RMB303,000,000, of which RMB60,000,000 is subscribed
by Wego Healthcare. As at 31 December 2021, Wego Healthcare
invested USD4,280,000 (equivalent to RMB27,288,000) to Weihai
Shangyuan Fund.

The Group invested in Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan
Fund as limited partner. The director of the Company considered that
the interests the Group held over Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai
Shangyuan Fund carry rights that are substantively the same as the
investee’s ordinary shares and provides current access to the returns
associated with its ownership interest in the investee, which is driven
by the investee's financial performance.

The Group had joint arrangements with other parties whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement and have rights
to the net assets of the joint arrangement, the Group accounted the
investments in Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan Fund as
interests in a joint venture using the equity method.

No significant business operation conducted by Qingdao Songyuan
and Weihai Shangyuan Fund during the year ended 31 December
2021, and therefore, no additional summarised financial information
is disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

22. BAFEFABHEAEZE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS TR
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E—HF ET=H
+=H +=A
=+—H =+—H
AR¥BFTr AREBTT
(& ET)
Unlisted investments: JELEHERE !
— Structured Cross Currency Swap —EEUERNEEER
(note a) (Fffs*a) (35,883) (59,072)
— Currency option (note b) —E kAR (Mi5Eb) (20,811) (21,031)
— Interest rate swap (note c) —MEEH#H (H5Ec) (199) (5,775)
— Investment funds (note d) —KERS (MsEd) 100,943 108,420
Structured deposit (note e) EEMERR (Mste) 10,000 -
54,050 22,542
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FtE2HREBIDHTA
— Current liabilities —nREEaRE (56,694) (21,031)
— Non-current liabilities —JERBEE (199) (64,847)
— Current assets —MEEE 10,000 -
- Non-current assets —FERBEE 100,943 108,420
54,050 22,542
Notes: MisE -
(@) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group holds a (@ MIZZ—FRIZIZTEZZTHF+A

Structured Cross Currency Swap which is issued by HSBC
Bank (China) Company Limited to exchange periodic interest
obligation and principal payments for stated period of time.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group partially
disposed Structured Cross Currency Swap with payment of
RMB10,955,000 to HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited.

=+—H>EAEEFEHSBC Bank
(China) Company LimitedZ${T8I45#8
MRXREBER UPREHRBAR
MERFEEARTERIB - HEZ
B —F+_A=+—HLEEE 'K
£ E [BHSBC Bank (China) Company
LimitedE D HE ZTMIEA AR
10,955,000 AR IER X EEE
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZT——

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2021 the Group holds a currency option
which was issued by HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited to fix
exchange rate of USD against RMB at maturity date of 27 April
2022, with principal amount of USD40,000,000. On 28 June
2021, the Group terminated the currency option they held as of
31 December 2020, with payment of RMB27,320,000 to HSBC
Bank (China) Company Limited.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group held an interest
rate swap which was issued by HSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited to exchange floating interest rate with fixed interest
rate, matured on 21 June 2024, with principal amount of
RMB300,000,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of RMB78,092,000
represents 11.76% (2020: RMB87,167,000 represents 11.76%)
of the interest in a health science fund. The amount of
RMB22,851,000 represents 4.47% (2020: RMB21,253,000
represents 4.47%) of the interest in an investment fund.

As at 31 December 2021, the structured deposit was issued by
a bank in the PRC with expected rate of return (not guaranteed)
which is linked to interest rates, currency, stock index and
commodity price.

F+ZA=+—HILEFE

22. BAFEFABHEAEZE
AT A @&

MisE -

(b)
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(&)

N_E2_—F+"_F=+—H K&
E#FAEHSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited T EBHRE IR ZZ
ZTHENAZ+ BRI BEHEREE
TRARBHNEXBEE  AE8ER
40,000,000E - R ZEZ—F XA
“+N\BH AREEKLEAER_-ZZ
EE+__A=+—HFEEWNEEBH
1> mHSBC Bank (China) Company
Limitedsz {4 AR #27,320,0007T ©

RIEZ—FRZIZZZEF+ZA
=+—H > AEBEFBHSBC Bank
(China) Company LimitedZ$1T895 =
ETEANABZ+—HIEBENMEXE
o UBEMEZRIBFE XS
Ea 4 AR 1300,000,0007T ©

W_E_—F+ZA=+—8B %8
AR#78,092,0007T (CZE-FFE : A
FE#587,167,0007T ; 11.76%) faf2E
REES11.76% G - 2EARE
22,851,000 (ZE_ZTF : AR
21,253,0007% ; 4.47%) F5— I B H
S ZAAT%KES o

A B —F+ZA=+—HB &’
MERBARE— Faﬁiﬁﬁ?fﬁ’ﬁ,ﬁﬂu&
mE GERH) BRI X -Gk KRS
H R R ERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

Ft+A=+—HULFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

EE T —

23 BEIE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated A E2IEE MR TR EILERIE

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax QE&E%EWH% B 75 BB 4R

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BOEL ZIEERIBAER DTN
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial Ho

reporting purpose.

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

(restated)

+ZAH +=A

=+—H =+—H

ARBTFR AREBTT

(&5

Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 156,462 140,058

Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE (222,620) (291,797)

(66,158) (151,739)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting year:

REREFERBERSFE B

RN T E

HEFETMT

FIEMBEERERR

Time
difference Time US research Time
of property, difference of Share-based Unpaid and Interest Difference of
Deferred  plantsand ~ intangible ~ Unrealised  payments bonus development Impairment  deduction  Deductible  changesin  Contract Others
income  equipment assets profit reserve  andsalary  expenses  of assets limited losses ~ fairvalue liabilities  Provision (note) Total
RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(restated) ~ (restated) ~ (restated) (restated)
N L] AxfI
RREN BVEEND FER AEEN T XERE HEHN N ATEEY At
BEHA Kz KRz B fREE kig Bx EEAE R 3 EEE  ANER &% (Hz) st
AEETL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETr ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
(B%5) (GEF) (@EH) (E5)
At T January 2020 (restated) = F-FE-F—
g (8%5) 636 (16701 Be6I6S) 24502 1963 e @37 4083 678 S0 (1185 - - Ns (2050%9)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HNEAE
(note 39) (H339) - - (3,59) - - - - - - - - - - - (3,59)
Credit charge) o S (5 BE
profit or loss (restated) (&5 3453 1,619 38,046 2822 4,99 (9,768) (14,579 6,887 (3723 (383) 14,067 7,083 - 20,483 37,49
Eichange adjustments EREE (HE7)
(restated) - 1,810 20,991 (25) (10) - 1471 (151) (1,947) (100) - - - (1,879) 19,460
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEEYZA
=+-8 9,799 (13273) (310,724 21,339 23,907 1879 (21,476) 48769 27,602 4,595 12,882 7,083 - 29879 (151,739
Credit charge) o A (%) B4
profit or loss (20) (6,710) 31,181 6,854 13,167 - (7,624) 2128 (7,891) (3,256) (1,620) 1,532 54,770 (8,582) 79,935
Exchange adjustments EREE - 689 6,505 ) (312) - 581 (54) (538) (30) - - (644) (543) 5,646
At 31 December 2021 KIEI-E+ZR
=+-A 9719 (19.294) (267,032 34185 36,762 1,879 (28519) 50,843 19173 1,309 11,262 8,615 54,126 20,754 (66,158)
Note: The others mainly comprised transaction cost, prepaid expense, st . Ht1 T EOEXEMEREAETH

inventory capitalisation adjustment etc.,

differences under U.S. income tax code.

due to the time

BEEENRZRAE BURZ 7

BERCHAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) IEIEMIA (&)

224

At the end of reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to the following
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

PR S HASR o BE L LA S BT AR R
URNEERIELERBESE  HA
FERI G A B sE AN IEH B 3017
HRER

31/12/2021  31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

R ZET°ITH

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

ARBTRT ARETT

Arising from impairment of assets BEEREESE 25,413 25,186
Arising from other temporary BHMENEEESL

differences 3,972 8,410

29,385 33,596

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB144,438,000
(2020: RMB82,432,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The above tax
losses will be expired in the following years:

w2 —F+Z8B=+—H"
AEBBEEYHIEHE AT EZNN
EEAREEREBEENARKE
144,438,00070 (ZE-FF : AR
#82,432,0007T) ° FHAR AR BEFERI &
AR B9 E A AR o B R AR TE A 1R
MRELERIEESE - FMlRIEEE

B TEEREAR
31/12/2021  31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
—EZ—-F —ZT-_=F
+=A +_AH
=+—H =+—H
AREBFRT ARE Tt
2021 —E-—F - 8,397
2022 —ET 5,590 6,903
2023 —E-= 6,279 13,122
2024 :g:v_flﬁ 15,267 16,351
2025 “E"RHE 36,709 37,659
2026 —ETREF 80,593 -
144,438 82,432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group entered into certain finance lease
agreements as a lessor for equipment. The average
terms of finance leases entered into usually range from
one to three years. All interest rates inherent in the
leases are fixed at the contract date over the leases
terms.

24. EWRMBEHERE

AER (FRARBABAN STLET
MERAEHZ MEHEEFHEBY
BESTULANT—E=F-F/HHE
B2 2RO REEBHNESLE
HAREE °

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
g ZFT°TH
+=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETT
(& ET)
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  Ft2HREBIDHTA :
Current assets MBBEE 85,122 136,908
Non-current assets ERBEE 40,959 85,160
126,081 222,068
Present value of
Minimum minimum lease
lease receivables receivables
31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
EYRERERE BHREREREZRE
—EC--F 2% —E--§ -
t=A t278 +2F +25
=+-8 =t-8 =+-B  =t+-§
AREFR ARETRT AR®FRn AR®TR
(R E7) (& E5)
Finance lease receivables EhmEREHRERRE
comprise
Within one year R—ER 100,865 151,499 94,792 144,726
In more than one year but not BB —FBRBBME
more than two years 38,532 60,064 34,462 53,655
In more than two years but ~ BBEMEBFBBRE
not more than five years 9,443 39,578 8,053 32,556
Unguaranteed residual values — EIEGREIRER 148,840 251,141 137,307 230,937
Less: unearned finance income i, | KRB E W& (11,533) (20,204) - -
allowance for credit losses EEBEEE (11,226) (8,869) (11,226) (8,869)
Present value of minimum lease EWSEXAERIEZ
payment receivables RE 126,081 222,068 126,081 222,068

225




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

24,

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Effective interest rates implicit in the above finance
leases range from 5.18% to 9.44% per annum (2020:
4.43% to 8.93%).

Finance lease receivables are secured over the
machineries leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by
the lessee.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
finance lease receivables due from fellow subsidiaries is
RMB53,571,000 (2020: RMBS83,216,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the finance lease receivables
which has been pledged as security for the borrowings
is nil (2020: RMB18,091,000).

Details of impairment assessment of financial lease
receivables are set out in note 42.

24. BEWRMBEHERE @

FIMBERERNI ZERFEMNEN
TS5 I18EEIME (CE_BF .
4.43[EFE8.93E)

FE s b 5 FH 1 =118 DL F FEL i 23 1 IR
o REBTASFERBAREN
BRTHENFEFIETR-

W_E2_—F+_B=+—H">
FEWNRERENIENREESRE
ERBRZMBATIIREBEBARIE
53,571,000c (ZE2E-ZF: AR¥
83,216,0007T) ©

RW_E-_—F+-_B=+—H'B2
EEAERNIRE RN EKRRER
EREAZS (CZE_ZF . AR
18,091,0007T) ©

FEW R E FH B RIE R BTG 1B &
FRMFEE42 0

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. B E =

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—F —ZET-=FTHF
+=A +—A
=+-B =+--H
AREFRT AR®TFT
Fixed-rate loan receivables (note a) EEMEEWER Ffsta) 707,845 398,412
Variable-rate loan receivables (note b) F#F XEWE T (MsEb) 64,945 65,410
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEREEE (25,465) (17,848)
747,325 445,974

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLE2FHRBE DA !
Current assets MENE E 428,514 232,873
Non-current assets ERBEE 318,811 213,101
747,325 445,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _—_Z_—

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
RMB340,713,000 represents the loan provided to third parties
are secured by various equipment, carrying the effective interest
rates range from 5.22% to 14%. (2020: RMB366,659,000,
the effective interest rates range from 6.1% to 9.44%). As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amount of RMB367,132,000
loan receivables due from fellow subsidiaries, carrying the
effective interest rates range from 6.35% to 8.00% (2020:
RMB31,753,000, with the effective interest rates range from
6.1% to 7.4%).

As at 31 December 2021, one of the subsidiary of the Company
provided loan with principal amount of RMB29,692,000 to
the eligible employees of Weigao Orhopaedic to partially fund
the subscription of share award scheme granted to them,
with a period of five years (2020: RMB29,700,000), bearing
the benchmark lending rate that published by the People’s
Bank of China. As at 31 December 2021, the accrued interest
of the loan included in the balance of loan receivable was
RMB1,604,000 (2020: RMB804,000). Detail of the share award
scheme of Weigao Orhopaedic are set out in note 38 (c).

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
RMB17,027,000 loan was provided by the subsidiary of the
Company to an employee of Weigao Orthopaedic with a period
of five years. The loans are unsecured, bearing the benchmark
lending rate that published by the People’s Bank of China. As
at 31 December 2021, the accrued interest of the loan included
in the balance of loan receivable was RMB1,122,000 (2020:
RMB379,000).

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables are set out
in note 42.

R e MBI MIEE

Ft+A=+—HULFE

25. BEWE R @

MisE -

(a)

WZEZ—F+ZA=+—H K
E@AEWMO 713,0007Ci5R 11 F
FE-AZER(CEZZTE AR
366,659,00070 ) BREMNXRHE N F
6. 1EZE9.44[E) > W LR R EIERR
ERFEFEBENFS5.22EBE14E 0
WZE-_—F+-B=+—H EWK
EXREECEERBRITBEATR
BAR367,132,00070 > BEEHX
HENF6.35EEL.00E (CE_E
£ AR31,753,0007T > B K AEF)
KHENFL61EETAE) ©

A B —F+_B=+—H &R
BB AR BEESERNZEER
EERMEAEEE ARK29,692,0007T

ZEFOUBABAETHRERMD
BstanRE 2P F (TS
£ AR#29,700,0007T) > RiEHEH
ARBRITAMBNWEEERF X E o
ATE_—F+-"B=+—H A
EREREHZEFERFEABAR
#1,604,0007c (ZE_FF : AR
804,0007T) ° Eim B F IR 2B &2
s 1B H MY 5E38(c)

BE_Z_—ER_F_TE+_
B=Z+—BLEEE AATAWNBEA
DREEERN —%EEREARE
17,027,000c 2 ER > A EF %
LERABRE REFEARET
NHEHNEESRFEFE - R _E
—¢+ B=+—B st AEW
EREGZEFERNNEA AR
Luzwwﬂ_g_EE.AEm
379,0007T) ©

FEUWE FURE ST B EIN M 542
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26. INVENTORIES 26. 78
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—ET— —ETFF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETFT
(& E7)
Raw materials Rt 344,151 287,843
Finished goods B AL R 1,390,406 1,275,010
1,734,557 1,562,853

As at 31 December 2021, total net book value
of inventories served as collateral for the Group’s
borrowing amounted to RMB212,104,000 (2020:
RMB221,224,000).

RZE_—F+-_B=+—H"H
EAREBEEREFRNEFEEEERR
FEAARM212,104,00070 (ZF
—Z& . ARKE221,224,0007T ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUR & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x
I

>

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—EZ— TETRE
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFxT AR®BTFT
(#=5)
Trade receivables FERE Z R 5,280,407 4,879,427
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (253,899) (242,124)
5,026,508 4,637,303
Receivables from factoring business K BfRIEBZEH > FEUFIE 74,936 329,968
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEHEEE (844) (1,226)
74,092 328,742
Other receivables Hih U =a 515,698 638,817
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERBEE (2,161) (2,110)
513,537 636,707
Prepayments T I8 510,795 443,897
6,124,932 6,046,649

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLE2HRBEDHA !
Current assets MENBEE 6,045,579 5,958,479
Non-current assets ERFEE 79,353 88,170
6,124,932 6,046,649
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUR & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x

230

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB5,280,407,000 (2020: RMB4,879,427,000).

Included in trade receivables are an amount due from
fellow subsidiaries of RMB2,057,959,000 (2020:
RMB1,097,918,000), an amount due from a holding
company of RMB2,341,000 (2020: RMB110,000), and
an amount due from an associate of RMB46,087,000
(2020: RMB152,712,000), an amount due from
associates of a holding company of RMB861,000 (2020:
nil).

Included in receivables from factoring business are an
amount due from fellow subsidiaries of RMB6,000,000
(2020: RMB322,990,000).The amounts are due in one
year with effective interest rates 8% per annum (2020:
4.99% to 8.00% per annum).

Included in other receivables are an amount
due from fellow subsidiaries of RMB87,611,000
(2020: RMB53,465,000), an amount due from
a holding company of RMB349,028,000 (2020:
RMB435,554,000), an amount due from an associate
of nil (2020: RMB7,416,000), an amount due from
associates of a holding company of RMB18,000 (2020:
nil). The amounts are unsecured and repayable on
demand.

Included in prepayments are an amount paid to
fellow subsidiaries of RMB77,610,000 (2020:
RMB27,891,000), an amount paid to a holding
company of RMB908,000 (2020: nil), and an
amount paid to an associate of RMB402,000 (2020:
RMB971,000).
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A B —F+"HB=+—H"%k
BEEEGHANEKREZERAASAR
#5,280,407,00070 (ZE_ZF .
AR #4,879,427,0007T ) ©

FEWE ZRARBERKERKTEBA
FaIE AR 12,057,959,0007T (=
T-FF . ARE¥1,097,918,000
7T) " EWR—EERATREBEAR
2,341,000 (ZE_ZF : AR
#110,0007T) REW—EHE QB
TIBAR%46,087,00070 (&
T AR¥E152,712,0007T) K FE
W—RERABNBE AT TIBEA
R 861,000 T (CE_EF 1 F) o

KEREBEER 2ERTEBEBSE
BB RHRBAIREARKE
6,000,00070 (ZE -4 . AR
322,990,0007T) c ZEMIEIR—F
NEH EREMNEXASE (TS
TE I FFEL99EZES.00E ) o

HMEWHRBEERIKE KB
NEFHIEAR®S7,611,0007T (Z
T _TF . ARMS53,465,0007T)
FEW—BEZERAIFRBEBARE
349,028,0007¢ (ZE_ZEHF . AR
#435,554,00070) ~ FE UL — B B
NEMBEE (ZTEZTF . AR
7,416,00070) KREW —BIZERA
BV E ABIBE AR 18,0007
(CEZEF T oxzERNEAE
MR BN EREEE-

ENHRBEEENBRNBARR
BARMT?7,610,000c (ZE -
F . AR%27,891,0007T ) ~ BT
—EEZER AT HIE AR 908,000
T(CEZEEF . B) REA—BEH
EAEmE AR K402,00050 (ZF
—Z&F 0 ARK971,0007T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

27. YL B 5 Rk Be H fth FE U 7k

I8 (&)

RE|ERR REZH2IHER
BHEM (EHREEBERER <
BREC DTN ©

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB'000 RMB'000

(restated)

—F-— —TTTH

+=A +—A

=+—H =+—H

ARBFrT ARETT

(& E7)

0 to 90 days 0&F90Xk 2,568,131 2,377,901
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 1,147,653 997,902
181 to 365 days 181& 365K 993,716 773,449
Over 365 days 365K E 317,008 488,051
Trade receivables e E 5 R 5,026,508 4,637,303

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB1,348,288,000 which are past due
(2020: RMB1,302,478,000).

As at 31 December 2021, total net book value of
trade and other receivables served as collateral for the
Group’s borrowing amounted to RMB180,649,000
(2020: RMB167,839,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 42.

A B —F+"HA=+—H'&
EENEKRESRTEHEEE
REBEAAR1,348,288,000
T (ZE_ZF ! AR K
1,302,478,0007T) B %1 #A Y FE UK BR

=+
;o

A B —F+_H=+—H"1E
AXREBEREFRNEKE SR
TR EHMERSRIEMNERE FE 485
A AR 180,649,000 (ZE_=
F: AR¥167,839,0007T ) °

& U B 57 B 7R e HL M WRR TR BT UL
BT LT IR R M 5E42 0
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28. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 28. M ATEAAHRMBEILE

232

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEZEHEIA
INCOME
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-— _EBEEHF
+=A +—F
=+—AH =+—8
ARBFRT ARBTT
€<S==¢7l))
Unlisted investments: ELrHEE:
— Bills receivable — B E 419,752 469,610

As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed
bills receivable of RMB449,848,000 (2020:
RMB292,547,000) for the settlement of trade and
other payables. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has transferred the significant risks
and rewards relating to these bills receivable, and the
Group’s obligations to the corresponding counterparties

A ZE_—F+ZA=+—8"
AEBEBEZERREE AR
449,848,0007T (ZZ2-FF : AR
#292,547,0007T) UEZ N ENE S
RAMEMENRIEB KABESE
XA AEBEERERMZEREK
E%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ e [B % » A< &£ &

were discharged in accordance with the commercial HEEHFNETEREBETHEE
practice in the PRC and the risk of the default in EBHERR ENRFMBEEE SR
payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because ZHRIHBERTFHNPRHIEITE

all endorsed bills receivable are issued and guaranteed
by the reputable PRC banks. As a result, the relevant
assets and liabilities were derecognised. The maximum
exposure to the Group that may result from the default
of these endorsed bills receivable are RMB449,848,000
(2020: RMB292,547,000). All bills received by the
Group are with a maturity period of less than one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged bills
receivable of RMB54,188,000 (2020: RMB128,188,000)
to secure the letter of credit.
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&E’z?ﬁsﬁ WESSERWEELIR
AR R R M o Rl > AR RE &
E&%ﬁﬂﬁﬂdﬁﬁﬁmf’ﬁﬁljﬁb
AZEEesERRERBEHIRIERX
NRMESHNRARRA AR
449,848,0007T (ZE-FTF : AR
#5292,547,0007T) > A~EE U B
FrEZHEHIN—FENEE-

RN_ZE_—F+_"_A=+—H">
AEBCDHEBERERERE AR
54,188,000 0 (CE-_ZEF: AR
128,188,0007t0) AN EIFIE AEE ©

' LEREEAERAE S FRIBRHERAT 2021 £FR



29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, pledged bank balances
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure trade
facilities such as bills payable and letter of credit and
short-term borrowing amounting to RMB760,895,000
(2020: RMB340,129,000).

The pledged bank balances carry fixed interest rates
which range from 0.01% to 2.25% per annum as at 31
December 2021 (2020: 0.3% to 2.10% per annum).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from nil to 4.125% per annum as at 31
December 2021 (2020: nil to 4.125% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances included
deposits of RMB180,168,000 (2020: RMB194,942,000),
carrying interest rates which range from 1.495% to
4.125% per annum (2020: 1.495% to 4.125% per
annum), in an associate of a holding company.

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances
and cash served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB266,646,000 (2020:
RMB274,431,000).

29.

30.

B IRITFEMR

RW_E_—F+_B=+—H'B
IR ITE RSN FIRITUIE
RESRE PIUENERKRER
EREHER) 2EREBEARE
760,895,00070 (ZE_ZHF . AR
1340,129,0007T) ©

AN B+ "HB=+—H’B
EHIRITEREEEMENTEEE
0.01EE225E (CE_EF . 8F
03EZE2.10E ) stE o

IRTTES SRR E

R_E_—F+__B=+—H" iR
THBENFREFE0EL125EB2
BHNHEANER (CE2ZF . §50
FA4125E) 5t B e

W_E_—F+_HB=+—H">
RTEBREBE—RBERRA Z
—EBER RS AR
180,168,00070 (ZCE_ZTF . AR
#5194,942,0007T) » &S 1.495E
FA4N2BHME (CE2FF .
F1.495EFE4.125/E ) 51 Bo

N E -+ _"HB=+—H'H
EREBERIRFRNIETEGR K
Be& A ANR1E266,646,0007T (ZF
—_ZF . ARE274,431,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

FE 1 B 5 BR vk B HL fth FE 19 7%

>

REERR REZARE5IHE
T EZIRMBVERE DU T -

reporting period:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E—-F —ZET-Z=HF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®TFIT
(& E7)
0 to 90 days 0&E90Xk 876,043 1,033,086
91 to 180 days 91&2180K 257,150 240,787
181 to 365 days 1812365K 113,021 103,766
Over 365 days 365K E 90,572 38,679
Trade payables FETE Z IR 1,336,786 1,416,318
Bills payable FEAT 4R 332,164 341,349
Other tax payables HihENIRIE 116,185 134,908

Construction cost and retention BERNALMEMEREZS
payables 64,490 90,430
Selling expense payables FEfTIHER X 889,433 818,530
Other payables Hfih FE S =018 1,212,986 1,048,044
3,952,044 3,849,579

Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEHRENDRS .

Current liabilities RENERE 3,952,044 3,812,454
Non-current liabilities JEREsadE - 37,125
3,952,044 3,849,579

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is 30
days to180 days. All the bills payable will mature within
six months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade payables are an amount due to
fellow subsidiaries of RMB409,852,000 (2020:
RMB440,395,000), an amount due to an associate of
RMB45,102,000 (2020: RMB83,218,000), an amount
due to a holding company of RMB3,000 (2020:
RMB1,221,000), and an amount due to associates of
a holding company of RMB660,000 (2020: nil). The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within credit period.

Included in other payables are an amount due to fellow
subsidiaries of RMB8,534,000 (2020: RMB23,696,000),
an amount due to an associate of RMB571,000
(2020: nil), an amount due to a holding company
of RMB20,099,000 (2020: RMB27,803,000), and an
amount due to an associate of a holding company of
RMB690,000 (2020: nil). The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31.

FE 1 B 5 AR vk B HL fth FE 19 7%
I8 (&)

ERNEZEARBIEECRERWSB
NEHIE AR #409,852,0007T (—
T_FTHF . AR¥440,395,000
) " EN—REBEATREAR
#45,102,00050 (ZE2EZZF : A
2 #583,218,0007T) ~ FE(T — B ZEh%
NEFHIBEARYE3 0000 (ZEZE
F . AR®1,221,0007T) KRENMN—
BIERATNBME AT IBEARK
660,0007C (ZEBE_ZTF | &) o %%
REAEEF -RERBERRE
BEHREE-

HMEMAHRBEEEMBRKBA
FlIE A R #8,534,0007T (Z &
=T . AR%23,696,0007T)  FEAT
— B = A B RIBE AR TE571,0007T
(ZEZEF D) EN—BER
NEIFIEAER®20,099,0007T (Z
T_TF . ARH27,803,0007T)
KBS — R AT — BB E A
FIAIE AR 690,000 (ZEZE
FF) ZEREAERF LR
RN EKREER-

32. 8 &a1FE

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

(restated)

—E—F "= =H

+=A +—-A

=+—H =+—H

AREBFRT AR®TFT

(& &E7)

Sales of goods 1 £ 75 o 314,171 315,164
Current RE 310,866 313,373
Non-Current E1 ) 3,305 1,791
314,171 315,164
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_H=+—HILFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. S & E ®

The revenue recognised in the current year relates AFEERINELEBESHEREME
to carried-forward contract liabilities amounted to R A B AR #313,373,000
RMB313,373,000. RMB310,866,000 contract liabilities TN B E ZEITF +Z R
will be recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 —+—HLEFE cHNEBBARE

December 2022. 310,866,000 CH HESR A WA ©
Included in contract liabilities are an amount received EHEEERENRERNBATR
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB35,507,000 (2020: I§E AR#35,507,000 0 (ZE &
RMB44,159,000), and amount received from ultimate & NR%44,159,0007T) R E W
holding company of RMB 11,000 (2020: nil). RABERATMRIEARE11,0007T

(CEZF F)o
33. BORROWINGS 33. g™

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E--F —ETEF
+=8 +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREBFx ANEBFTT
Bank borrowings at variable-rate (note a) ¥ ¥ g X5t EMIRITEN (isFa) 2,264,020 2,725,759
Bank borrowings at fixed-rate (note b)  ZEEF X5t BHVIRITET (Hi5Eb) 799,996 573,420
3,064,016 3,299,179
Secured (note ¢) Big# (ffstc) 2,991,845 3,023,329
Unsecured Eige 72,171 275,850
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

33. BORROWINGS (continued) 33. 8T (®

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

BERAER MR EE -

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—-F CZZTIEZ2HF
+=B +=A
=+—A =1—8
ARBFTRT ARETT
Within one year R—ER 601,328 297,890
More than one year but not R—FEM T EBRBERE
exceeding two years 214,092 377,790
More than two years but not PREUEERBBASF
exceeding five years 2,248,596 2,623,499
3,064,016 3,299,179
Less: Amount due within one year A RREIaEm
shown under current liabilities R—FE AR ERFIE (601,328) (297,890)
Amount due after one year shown FBIEREEEM
under non-current liabilities N—E%BE RIS 2,462,688 3,001,289
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

33. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2021, the variable-rate borrowings carry
interest rates ranged from 1.35% to 5.3% per annum (2020:
1.84% to 4.99% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, the fixed-rate borrowings carry
interest rates ranged from 3.08% to 9.48% per annum (2020:
1.99% to 5.03% per annum).

On 31 March 2020, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with International Finance Corporation, in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB500,000,000, bearing fixed
interest rate of 3.43% per annum. The borrowing are secured
by equity interests of Jierui, Weigao Purui, Shandong Weigao
Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd, Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease
Co.,Ltd that owned by the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance included loans of nil
(2020: RMB18,091,000) secured by pledge of certain of the
Group's finance lease receivables of nil (2020: RMB18,091,000)

On 12 September 2019, Argon entered into Tranche A
Credit Agreement (“Tranche A"), with principal amount of
USD325,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,267,265,000), bearing
variable interest at GBP London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") plus 2.125% and includes a revolving credit facility
bearing interest at the same rate; WW Medical and Healthcare
Holdings Corporation (“WW Holding”) entered into Tranche
B Facility Agreement (“Tranche B") with principal amount of
UsD75,000,000 (equivalent to RMB523,215,000), bearing
variable interest at LIBOR plus 2.4%. As at 31 December 2021,
the principal of Tranche A and Tranche B outstanding amounted
to USD336,406,000 (equivalent to RMB2,144,825,000).

33. famk @
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N —F+_B=+—B%H
MRERBNNEE13EES3EZ
BWAIE (CETEE  8F1.84EE
4.99[F) st B o

A _E_—F+_B=+—H BE
MEFBRENFEFE3.08EZE9.48E
MR (CE-EF 851998
5.03@) 5t E e

RN_E_EFE=ZBA=+—H &R T
HEEESMARI I ASBEAAR
#500,000,000Tc I E R 1% B EF
MEAHIAB -ZERUNLAEEE
M2 Eedtm LWRESMERE
EBERABKR L EEREMEEERR
NEIRI BRI HIE R

N _E_—F+_A=+—84%&
BEEEARZE (CE_ZF . AR
18,091,0007T) » BRIBWAERS
(ZE-Z & AR%¥18,091,0007T)
ZETRERWMEREIERMEER

RIZE—AFAB+IZH > BRI
A& % %A325,000,000% ¢ (46
EMARM2,267,265,00070) B9
Tranche A Et#: (I Tranche AJ) »
FHAEARZGRBRITRERK
FZE (TLIBORJ) MN2.125E > KB 3E
LAEBHEFENEEREENE ;
WW Medical and Healthcare Holdings
Corporation (TWW Holding 1) 5] 3 A&
£ %8#75,000,000E 7T (FHERAR
#523,215,0007t) fTranche BRAE 17
#% (TTranche B1) » 2 EFIZEALIBOR
AR - R _BE_—F+_RB=+—
H > Tranche AKTranche BHYR{EIEAR
#7336,406,000E 7t (IHER AR
2,144,825,0007T) °
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33. BORROWINGS (continued) 33. fE™ @)
Outstanding debt as of 31 December 2021 excluding R_E_—F+-_B=+—H" B
debt discount, matures as follows: BRLRINREEHFRARBELOT :
31/12/2021
RMB’000
—E-—
+=A
=+—H
ARBTr
Within one year R—FR 168,358
More than one year but not exceeding two years P —FE M _EB BB M E 220,161
More than two years but not exceeding five years R WEMU EBRBBAFE 1,756,306
2,144,825
The Company guaranteed the borrowings under AAT ATranche ARKTranche BRY
Tranche A and Tranche B. Certain of Argon’s assets ERIRBEER- BIRETEEES
serve as collateral for borrowings under Tranche A and Tranche AJzTranche BIE FERIMY
Tranche B. EHmeo
On 31 December 2021, the details are as follow: B2 —F+ZHA=+—H &
BAF
31/12/2021
RMB’000
—E”—F
+=B
=+—H
ARBT
Property, plant and equipment MR E R 44,915
Intangible assets mEEE 1,558,472
Inventories F8 212,104
Trade and other receivables FE UK B 5 BR T K H At FE UK R IE 180,649
Bank balances and cash RITHEGRRIRE 266,646

239




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

240

On 31 March 2020, International Finance Corporation
agreed to subscribe the senior secured green bonds
(the "Green Bonds"”) issued by the Company in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
with maturity in seven years. The Green Bonds bear
fixed interest rate of 3.59% per annum, payable semi-
annually. The effective interest rate of the Green Bonds
is 3.73% per annum. The Green Bonds, are secured
by equity interests of Jierui, Weigao Purui, Shandong
Weigao Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd, Shanghai Weigao
Financing Lease Co.,Ltd that owned by the Company.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

34. BONDS PAYABLE 34. E{IE%H
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
—E--F ZTITF
+ZA +ZH
=+—A =t—H
AR®BTR ARETT
Green Bonds RBES 992,549 991,121
The bonds are repayable as follows: BEANR TYEEE .
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-—F “EZCEE
+=AH +ZA
=+—A =t—H
AR®BTT ARETT
More than five years HEEME 992,549 991,121

RZEZZF=-_RB=+—H EHR
EMABDFAERBEELATEHTH

KE#EEAS AR®1,000,000,000
THELEEREEES (IGE
B HRATE -HKBESFSMN
B EEFFKAB3.59%  SHEFELN
—RoGBEENEREFENXA
3.73% o BESHURRBHEEN
Ehh Bk URESmEMR
EERRE kL EHSRMERESR
R ABBIRRRETR (R o
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35. DEFERRED INCOME

5. EEUTA

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB'000 RMB'000

—E-—-F§ “Z2TETHF

+ZA +ZH

=+—H =+—H

AR®BTR ARETT

Arising from government grants R B BUN % B 93,581 78,759
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDINA .

Current liabilities mENAaE 8,816 7,861

Non-current liabilities ERBER 84,765 70,898

93,581 78,759

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
received new government grants from the government
authorities amounting to in aggregate RMB33,361,000
(2020: RMB34,175,000) to subsidy the Group's certain
capital expenditures. The Group has complied with the
conditions attached to the grants as at the end of 31
December 2021, and will transfer the grants to profit
or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. During
the year, the Group recognised these government
grants to other income amounting to RMB18,539,000
(2020: RMB7,680,000).

HE_Z”-_—F+-RB=+—H1t
FE > AEEBKRIBFBPAEEA
133,361,000 (ZE T HF: A
E#§34,175,0007t) 2 #r BT #5Eh -
UAREBNE TEARRZIRHMH
e-BHE_TE-_—F+_-_B=+—
H>AEE S ET /MK
o UERBEHEEZAFERAERRN
BEZEHIERG TR AE
BRERZEBFHENEEMEAA
F#518,539,000c (ZE_FF . A
R #7,680,0007T ) ©
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36. LEASE LIABILITIES 36. fHE&E
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E-—F “ETTHF
+=H +ZA
=+—H =+—H
AREBFRx ARETFTT
Lease liabilities payable: EEGHSEE:
Within one year R—%FRN 22,988 8,583
Within a period of more than one year ~ FA—&FEL{ E1E
but not more than two years REEBMERBA 20,606 6,978
Within a period of more than two years XML _EB
but not more than five years REBBEAFHABA 35,620 9,100
Within a period of more than five years B8 A FHB A 1,631 6,037
80,845 30,698
Less: Amount due for settlement with B AREaEmRI1I2ER
12 months shown under current LI E B BRI mIE
liabilities 22,988 8,583
Amount due for settlement after 12 T AIERBSIEETIN121E 8
months shown under non-current Mg B BB RIE
liabilities 57,857 22,115
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates HEaGERANMETESOESER
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 8.69% MENF475EEL.9E B (Z
(2020: from 4.75% to 8.69%). EBETEF I NFL4T5EES69E ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _—_Z_— i‘f’_ﬁ =Z+—HIEEE
37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. g%
Nominal Number of Total
value of non-listed  Number of number
each share H shares H shares of shares Value
RMB RMB'000
B LS
ROGEE ~ HREE  HRME  ROeH M
AR AEET T
Registered: i
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZA
=+—H 0.1 - 4,522,332,324 4,522,332,324 452,233
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—&+_"H
=+—H 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 31 December 2020 A2
=t+—H 0.1 - 4,522,332,324 4,522,332,324 452,233
Ordinary shares issued BETERR (:)
(note) 0.1 48,300,000 - 48,300,000 4,830
At 31 December 2021 \_7_—fﬁ‘|‘ A
=t- 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063

The Company issued ordinary shares of 48,300,000 non-listed H
shares with consideration of RMB172,914,000 in 2021 for the
purpose of share award scheme (note 38 (a)).

MIEE -

RABINR T —F#4748,300,000/% 3F
THHEEER REAAR172,914,000
TTUB R B D B Eh 5T 8 (M 5E 38(a)) ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

On 17 November 2014, the Company’s share
award scheme (the “Incentive Share Scheme”) was
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting.
The maximum number of non-listed Shares
which may be issued under the share award
scheme would be 223,818,616, which represent
5% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company or approximately 4.76% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the issue of the 223,818,616 non-listed shares,
respectively, as incentive shares to key personnel
of the Group, and other persons as approved
by the Remuneration Committee (the "Selected
Employee”), in batches in subsequent years.
The life of the Incentive Share Scheme is for 10
years starting from 17 November 2014. Details
of the Incentive Share Scheme are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 15 August 2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the
incentive shares will be granted to the Selected
Employee, subject to non-market performance
vesting conditions.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, for
Selected Employee with a domestic identity, the
trustee will administer the incentive shares, which
may be organised in forms of companies owned
by the employees, limited partnership, or qualified
trust companies in the PRC, or for Selected
Employee with a foreign identity, the trustee will
hold the incentive shares outside the PRC.

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted
first 45,960,000 incentive shares to 111 Selected
Employees. On 4 January 2016, the trustees
subscribed the 45,960,000 shares with the
consideration of RMB101,112,000 at the issue
price of RMB2.20 per share.

38. U Bz {5 & B (3K

(a) 2T EHENE S

WZE—HmE+—AB++tH>
KN E)EBIRES R K E
A% B st 8 (TRUED AR 17 51
2)1) BRI BB 7T
TIELETRNDZERZHEF
#4223,818,616/% > D B HEE
RAABIREEHITRAS%
Bl 48 28517223,818,616/8 IF I
MRNDERBARBTEZET
RASEA.76%  IRBEBREED
SEBTBAEKRFMNEES
FHENEMA (Z@ AL 2
HE B 1TIEAR BB AR 1D o BB AR
B ZEEARE @O
F+—B+tBHEst+E-
BENRMETE ZEBE N A
NEHHAZZE—ME/)N\H
+HBZ AR

R B IR (0 518 BB AR D
I IG X AR B IR
RBETEFZmA -

RIEDERMETE > SLFEIR
NEMIRmAMS X5EA
BB R H R BELUE
EBRANRE RPENER
EBARNEEREEAT
A NEE T HEIEINS
PHRmAME » REARE
IR INF A AE R o

RZE—RE+_FB+—H>
AT B R H45,960,0008%
HERERDTIIIBZHEA R
—E-RE—HAIEH 2T A
SRR ANRE2.2002 3%
171830 845,960,0008% B2 19 »
KBAAR101,112,000

JT ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant
date amounted to RMB104,121,000 which
determined by market price of listing shares of the
Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The Group recognised
the incentive share expenses of approximately
RMB3,572,000 (2020: RMB7,903,000) into the
profit or loss during the current year.

Three limited partnerships (named Weihai Chang
Hong Enterprise Management Consulting Centre
(Limited Partnership) (BB R5ATXEEEN
P (BBRE%E)), Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise
Management Consulting Centre (Limited
Partnership) (B8N IEXEEZHFL (BRE
#)) and Weihai Hong Tu Enterprise Management
Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (& /8%
BlhxEBEABP L (BREH)), respectively)
were set up for the purpose of administering the
Incentive Share Scheme and holding the shares,
and hereby regarded as trustees of the Company
and consolidated to the Group accordingly.

38. e B E BRI (&

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

REFTEHBPEZEBRDZA
TEARM104,121,0007C 75
KEXRANTD EHRHZS
BMET-

FLIR RS & 15 E B B IR T
WRPME  AFEHCRE

RpETEZBNERERTE
HEHEMEEREREDN
REBHAUEGE LR ARM
ToRAFEE > AERRER
BREBROBEZINARE
3,572,000 (ZE-E&F : A
R #£7,903,0007T ) ©

?fﬁ‘:ﬁ}%ﬂ%ﬂﬂxfﬁﬁ%&?—rﬁ
RpFRIZ=FEREEA
(Eﬂﬁ?)' B e R T ﬁké
BRSO (EBEA%) “EE
HNEEERZHAL (BIR
%) REESREREEIEE
PO (BRE%)) »EIEH
HWRArzZE ARAL
RAEERLGEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

Details of specific categories of share award are as
follows:

38. e B E BRI (&

EH

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

AR RBB AR B 5F B W
T

Vesting Issue

Date of grant period Price

RHBAH BE #1718

Batch 1 11/12/2015 5 years RMB2.2

F1it “Z-IfF 58 AR¥227
+=B+—H

Note: The granted shares are vested in five tranches with the
vesting date on 31 December of each year from 2015 to
2019, the vested shares are excisable after two years lock
up period following vested.

As of 31 December 2021, the outstanding
incentive shares under the Incentive Share Scheme
were 16,904,000 (2020: 23,564,000), included
9,922,000 exercisable shares (2020: 9,570,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
trustees repurchased 9,108,000 shares (2020:
9,064,000), which would be taken up by the
Selected Employees with the net consideration of
RMB20,293,000 (2020: RMB52,571,000) at the
price of RMB4.43 per share (2020: RMB8.00). The
repurchased shares are held by the trustees for
the benefit of the Share Award Scheme, to grant
to other selected employees or to sell for the
repayment of the loan provided by the controlling
shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
trustees sold 6,660,000 repurchased shares
for a total consideration of RMB94,170,000
(2020: 22,396,000 repurchase shares for a total
consideration of RMB259,745,000, certain of
which were used to settle the loan provided by the
controlling shareholder and the interest thereon).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

izt IRMHBP RO OSHTFUGTE BB
HEABAZZE2—hFEEZZ2—NLEE
FEZ+_B=+—H -ERFBR?HD
AIREEEMmEETHEEREFTU
7fEo

BE —_—®+Z“HA=+—H"
,%&J%bﬁx{ﬁqu?IJIETZrﬁﬂiﬁ@,%&zﬁh
B&15 716,904,0000& (ZE -4 .
23,564,000 ) » 819,922,000
BRATERD (ZE_=F
9,570,0008% ) ©

BHE_T”-_—F+-B=+—H
LEFE ZTEAUSKRAREAL.43
T(ZEZZF: AR¥8.007T)
Bﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁiﬁm“*ﬂ)\ﬁﬂﬁ%w]
9,108,000 KM (ZE_=F :
9,064,0008%) LB FEAARE
20,293,0007c (ZEZZF: AR
52,571,0007T) ° R D EHZEEA
ARMDBESTENARFE  UBE
HUSm AREIEE UEBEZER
HX%?ET#E’J%T}\O

B -_—F+-_B=+—HL
FE>ZFEAUAR®4,170,000
THHEARBLEEG, 660,000/
EBRHO (ZE_ZF ULARKE
259,745,000 7% Y 42 ﬁ‘f‘;tlj’%
22,396,000/ Bl 8B RG 15 » 2B 4> [Ol BB
R FBE ETwHRHX%}Eﬁi:E,]gm
REFME) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HLFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

On 21 October 2021, the trustees subscribed
the newly issued 48,300,000 non-listed
domestic shares with the total consideration of
RMB172,914,000 at the issue price of RMB3.58
per share. On 24 December 2021, the Company
granted 48,300,000 incentive shares to 83
Selected Employees.

Based on the Share Award Scheme of the
Company, the Company will repurchase the shares
granted to the Selected Employees when the
Selected Employees are not satisfying specified
vesting conditions. The total consideration paid by
the Selected Employees are recognised as liabilities,
and will only be reversed by portion to other
reserve when the shares are vested each year.

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant
date amounted to RMB197,490,000 which
determined by market price of listing shares of the
Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The Group recognised
the incentive share expenses of approximately
RMB41,275,000 (2020: nil) into the profit or loss
during the current year.

Nine limited partnerships were set up for the
purpose of administering the Incentive Share
Scheme and holding the shares, and hereby
regarded as trustees of the Company and
consolidated to the Group accordingly.

38. e B E BRI (&

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

A _E_—F+B-+—H'®
SEAUBEREOMARKI 8T
BT BRI 2170948,300,000
BRIEETRER EREAAR
#172,914,000 0 N & — —
F+_A+HEH AATERE
48,300,000 B BN i& 17 F83% = =
Ao

REBEARBNRG HEEE AQ
A ERm ARERISERBIRM
RREERFRXm ANKRMD -Zm
AFIZABRERISSEE I
ERNESFRMVBBRERSDZE
HAthf#

REFHEBZBERGD 2 AFEA
R #197,490,000C 5 &R E RN
A EHmRDZHEBMERE-

MBHBERNRIECEBEGNR
s AFEHREEBRMDEIT
BXENEBENBEHESEHERE
ERERENEBHRNUES
BRARZ RNAFE > ZEBR
BaBEREBRMEZOARKE
41,275,00070 (ZE =5 ) o

FLEEAB R 58 RITFAE KM R
_LZj'LF"ﬂﬁBEA% &) 2 IR UIEAAR
RAR REARREIEREER
%?é)\,ﬁﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Award Scheme of the Company
(continued)

Details of specific categories of share award are as

38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

AR RBB AR B 5F B W

follows: T
Vesting Issue
Date of grant period Price
RHBAH BE #1768
Batch 2 24/12/2021 5 years RMB3.58
E2t “EI-fF 5%  AR¥358T
+ZAZ+mH

Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

On 26 July 2018, WW Cayman, a subsidiary of the
Company, adopted a non-qualified share option
plan (the “Share Option Scheme”)for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees of WW Cayman and its
subsidiaries, which shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the
adoption date. Under the Share Option Scheme, a
committee designated by the board of directors of
the WW Cayman may from time to time in its sole
discretion grant options to the eligible employees.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 8% of the
shares of WW Cayman in issue at closing date.
Unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company, the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of WW Cayman’s shares in issue.

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T 81

R ZE—-N\FtBAZ+<B>
NN B M B ATWW Cayman
RMIER ERERESTE (M5
RREstE))  EFXFEZENES
WW Caymank 2B A
BEERGERESREHE
BHIXABEREI0EREM IR
BEEIRESTE > WW Cayman
EERIEENEZE G A
2HENEREENKREERE
FERG o

RIFEREST S TR
RENERRNEHETE
HBEXEHBABEETHWW
Caymanf& 15 BY8% o BRIEIE A&
REIREHME ETESEE
Mg (BIEBITEMNARTT
RV B R ) AT Em i E R
NEEHERNEZETRETF
FITHRM BT EFBBWW
Cayman2 1T A1 % °
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
2,654,859, representing 7% (2020: 2,166,213,
representing 7%) of the shares at that date.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time
after vesting and will be cancelled if not exercised
before the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.

The exercise price of each batch of option is
determined with reference to the total cash
consideration paid by the Company in the
formation of WW Cayman for the acquisition of
Argon, taking into account the relevant costs and
expenses involved, but in no event shall be less
than the fair market value of a share of stock in
WW Cayman on the date of grant.

38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &1

)

A B —F+ "B =+—
H s8I ETERE RNHET
EINERENMERRMEE
#2,654,8590% - (H i 5% H HA
DB RT7T% (CE_BF .
2,166,213/ > (57 %) ©

REBREERSZARE -
Bz 1 BT X BR B 18 B e B S
171 BfRRPC IR H B HEE W
105 Z A 47 fE > BI A 152 5%

SHERENTEELLS
EARQAT R IIWW Caymanbkd
WEBIRFIZIWIRENE
4R%E > B R R BIAERA A A K
MEE EERNANEE
P& E BEWW CaymanfR =
HAFHIBEE
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. UG AERIFH @)
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman (b) WW Cayman HBJiERZ#E T2l
(continued) (&)
Details of specific categories of options are as BB EENFROT
follows:
Vesting Exercise
Date of grant period Price
EHAMH BE TR
Time-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
REEERERE “E-NE 4F 10.00% 7T
tBZ+"H
Time-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00
REAEERE “E-NE AF 10.00% 7T
+B=+H
Time-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
REEERERE 32 4F 10.00% 7T
=BA+=H
Time-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
REAEERE “ET-F AF 10.00% 7T
tB=+H
Performance-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
REEERRE “E-N\E 4F 10.00% 7T
tBZ+"H
Performance-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00
RERERFRE “E-NE AF 10.00% 7T
+B=+H
Performance-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
REEERRE 32 4F 10.00% 7T
=BA+=H
Performance-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
RERERFRE “ET-F AF 10.00% 7T
tB=+H
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
share options held by employees during the year:

38.

KB in R ERMR @

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &1
(&)

TEREBFRNEEFMFER
R EEER

Outstanding at Granted Forfeited Outstanding at

Option type 11172021 during year  during year 31/12/2021
RZE=-§ R-E=-F

—-R—-H +ZB=+-H

EREER e R AT FERR EREK KT
Time-based options R R R 1,446,725 180,000 (29,075) 1,597,650
Performance-based options FREERERE 719,488 337,721 - 1,057,209
2,166,213 517,721 (29,075) 2,654,859

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options
were granted on 30 July 2021. The estimated
fair value of the time-based options granted on
that date is USD4.64. The estimated fair value of
the performance-based options on that date is
UsD4.64.

REBEE_ZE_—F+_AH
=t+—HILEFEE BRER_
E_-—FtH=1+HEESE-
Pz B e HA B R R 28
RENESTAFEAL. 64
TToRZBEANRIFEZERER
BRI AT ERL64ETTe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

The fair value of the options was calculated using

the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The inputs into

38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &I

)

EREZ A FERBH R
el EBRESE R

the model were as follows: B AR T -
2021 2020

g —F ZTTEZHF
Weighted average share price 10.00 10.00
MEFEHERKRE
Exercise price 10.00 10.00
T1EE
Expected volatility 40% 40%
TEHR R ENE
Expected life 7 yearsE 7 yearstE
TEHR A
Risk-free rate 2.95%, 2.95%
I ) B 1 =

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the comparable companies
over the previous 7 years (2020: 7 years). The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions

and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
UsD4,108,000 (equivalent to RMB26,506,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
UsD2,267,000, equivalent to RMB15,801,000) in
relation to share options granted under the Share

Option Scheme by WW Cayman.
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TEERRE X ERAGERB LT
FE(CEZZTF 75 &L
BNBENELHHEBET &
A EEBNREM ) EE A
FRNEREEHEERERT
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REBERBIEWW Cayman
BRI H B R
BIBABE_ESE_—F+_A1
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26,506,0007t ) (ZEZFF:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HLFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme by Weigao

Orthopaedic

On 9 May 2020, a share award scheme was
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting of
Weigao Orthopaedic (the “Weigao Orthopaedic
Share Award Scheme”). A total number of
3,300,000 shares of Weigao Orthopaedic were
awarded to the eligible senior management and
employees (the “Eligible Employees™), which
representing 0.92% shareholding of Weigao
Orthopaedic.

The issue price of Weigao Orthopaedic Share
Award Scheme is RMB15 per share, the total
consideration amounted to RMB49,500,000.
60% of consideration was covered by the loan
provided by Weihai Hongyangrui to the Eligible
Employees, and the remaining 40% was funded by
themselves.

Details of the shares awarded are as follows:

38. e B E BRI (&

(o) E=AEERGHEE R

RZEZZEFRAAB &
SERKRERS K HEMKR
DR EsE THEER R0
N ENETE))) o 533,300,000
KREESERNERONETEER
EREEEREER 6EHK
BE)) 'HEHEERKEERN
0.92% e

Bl = B AR 10 BB 5t 8 AY 2
TEARERARE 15T B1
B AR 49,500,000t H
60 % HY 118 B S 50 B I
MEERESRHENEMS
> HER40%EBEBEBHE-

EHEBRMOFBOT

Vesting

Date of grant period

RHAH RES

Performance-based awards 9/05/2020 4 years

REEERE “BCER 4F
EANH

Based on the Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award BEESERRMHEE

Scheme, as the subsidiary of the Company will EEE’}ZIK&TM BABEIEE

repurchase the shares granted to the Eligible St EEREINIETE R B K

Employees when the Eligible Employees are not 1’—?5#@5%3&‘%6 ERER

satisfying specified vesting conditions, the total
consideration paid by the Eligible Employees are
recognised as liabilities, and will only be reversed
by portion to other reserve when the shares are
vested each year.

The estimated fair value of the performance-
based awards on the grant date is RMB19.8 per
share. The difference between the fair value and
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the periods in which
services are expected to be rendered by the Eligible
Employees. During the year ended 31 December
2021, Weigao Orthopaedic recognised a share
awards expense of approximately RMB5,139,000
into the profit or loss (2020: RMB6,958,000).

B MEEREESZ Y
AR BRSNS B R WER
B 4 11D B B B 1 B 28 5
EHMER

EFEEERBNELEHBEDN
Bt AT EAERARKE19.8
T oERBRMIAF(ERR
TEBZENEERNSERE
EfEHIEHRB B N
BRERZHE REE_T - —

fH—:J%E—I——EIJJ:fﬁE’FJZ
SERBRDEBERLSA
Em%513900075( E-F
F: AR ¥6,958,0007T) DJrJ\

B3t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. KB B AR
(a) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (a) BEE—_=—-—&+—=A8
=+—HLEFE
On 10 December 2021, the Group's subsidiary N _E—F+"A+H R
Argon acquired 100% of the issued share E BB QB ZIRWEMatrex
capital of Matrex Mould & Tool Inc (“Matrex”) Mould & Tool Inc (T Matrex J)
for consideration of USD2,115,000 (equivalent 2HEETRE KES
to RMB13,472,000), including USD500,000 2,115,000% 7w (HER AR
(equivalent to RMB3,185,000) of deferred 13,472,0007T) * B35 IR IEAS
consideration. Matrex is manufacturer of the B500,000% 7t (FHENR AR
custom moulds and tools. 3,185,0007T) ° Matrex #5] &

RERTHEINRIEE-

RMB’'000
Consideration transferred 2EEBRE AREF T
Cash ik 10,287
Deferred consideration RAERE 3,185
Total #EEtT 13,472
The fair value of the net identifiable assets USRS B HA E Uk B8 BV BT & A1

acquired at the date of acquisition are as follows: FEENATFENOT
RMB’000
AR®EFT
Property, plant and equipment ENN =YL 8,762
Inventories =Z8 388
Trade and other payables FET B 5 IR H A FE (I 7R I8 (3,315)
5,835

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEFTEENEE

RMB’'000
AREF T
Consideration transferred BERAE 13,472
Less: net assets acquired PR R B E 5,835
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTEAX R EE 7,637
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) For the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Matrex due
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, and future market development of Matrex.
These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on the acquisition

39. BB B AT (@

(a) EE=-FT=-_—%+=A8H

=+—BHLEE (&)

WEMatrexEEEE A5
MatrexH T8 55 1% B 34 & ~ WL A
MERKEFTIBERFEK
A e ZEFm T EEE
DR PHRZENFEL
AR EOHNEFLEENRE

=] @ 7
DE:‘*/‘R/—'—O

FEHMREMS WEELERN
& AR R

WP P 2 B9 B8 & 7 1 P8R

RMB’'000
ARMTF T

Acquisition consideration in cash and cash IR & RIBEFEYHHIKELE

equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalents of the
acquired subsidiary

10,287

B PTEEIN B AR IRE K
REFEY

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FHUKEEHR B AT ZAHNIRE K

paid upon acquisition of subsidiary

Had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2021, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB13,170,353,000, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB2,433,869,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2021, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

REeFEYF R

10,287

HMWER _ZE - —F—8
—HBERAAAERBEHE
—E I -F+ZR=1—
HEFERABEA AR
13,170,353,00070° R & &E
—E_—F+A=+—H
FTEENEFBEA AR
2,433,869,000 0 FHEE R R
ESRBAZ B> W IE M AR
WER _E-_—F—HF—H
R B AEEFERESW
WAKREZEEEE TEREES
HARKEENTER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (b)

On 13 March 2020, the Group acquired 51%
of share capital of GHC Healthcare, Inc. by
capital injection into GHC Healthcare, Inc. of
USD3,000,000 (equivalent to RMB21,010,000) in
form of cash. This acquisition has been accounted
for using the purchase method. GHC Healthcare,
Inc. is a distributor of medical devices and was
acquired to more closely control the distribution of
medical device products in United States and South
America.

39 WEEMIE AT @

B8FE—_Z=-_T8+-AH
=t+—HIEEFEE

N EBE_ZEHF=-RF+ =
H xAEBURESEAB
GHC Healthcare, Inc. ¥ &
3,000,000 77T (BER AR
#%21,010,0007c) » WHEGHC
Healthcare, Inc.BEZBI51% o
ZWEBEERBBE S EA
BR o GHC Healthcare, Inc.5—
REEISMSIHE W E R
LDUSE B2 1 ) BE R 23 L E
mAEEBEMBENDHEC

RMB'000
Consideration transferred BEBKE AER¥F T
Cash b 21,010

The fair value of the net identifiable assets

P U B8 B HI B W B Y BJ 58 )

acquired at the date of acquisition are as follows: FEENATENOT
RMB'000
AR®BFT
Property, plant and equipment ME~RE R E 971
Right-of-use assets TREEE 5,014
Intangible assets mLEE 14,007
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 7,382
Inventories 78 25,016
Trade and other receivables FE UK B8 5 BR 70 R L fth & U 7R 18 51,294
Other current assets HMtns & E 1,931
Bank balances and cash IRITHEGRRIRE 465
Trade and other payables FE B 5 MR R A E (I I8 (26,049)
Income tax payable FETFT1R7R (2,105)
Lease liabilities HE&E (5,014)
Borrowings EEA (33,083)
Other non-current liabilities HtIERs &R (1,471)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE (3,596)
34,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39 WEEMIEBAR @)

(b) E#E-—FT-FTF+=-AH
=+—HLEEE &)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020
(continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WERTELEHEE
RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration transferred BEEBAE 21,010
Plus: non-controlling interests o FEER 17,033
Less: net assets acquired AP REEE 34,762
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEFTEANEE 3,281

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of GHC
Healthcare, Inc. due to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, and future market
development of GHC Healthcare, Inc. These
benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on the acquisition

W BEGHC Healthcare, Inc.E
A EHE - [AAGHC Healthcare,
Inc. B9 T8 EA 1% [B) 3L FE ~ U A 18
ERAETHERTERN
MEmeoZENm U EAFES
BRESD ITHRZEMNRIL A
FEHNEFLEENRES

.

T8 5 3 79 T8 70 2 Ut B 28 4 0
BRI -

WP P E 2 B9 B & 7 L R BE

RMB’000
AREFTT

Cash and cash equivalents balances FREE N IR & RIRE FEBY AR
acquired 465

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 is RMB19,705,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by GHC
Healthcare, Inc. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020 includes RMB146,055,000
generated from GHC Healthcare after the
acquisition.

HE_Z_ZTH+ A
=t+—HIEEEZMNEHE
AER#19,705,0007T > BB
GHC Healthcare, Inc. EEME
MEH - BE_Z_TF+_
B=+—HLEFE  KABHE
GHC HealthcareitWg &% E4E
A A E#146,055,0007T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments
which were contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements:

40.

B

KRB —F+-HA=+—H'=&
EENGEMBREDPERECIIQ
BARBEAIAIE :

31/12/2021
RMB’000
—E-—F
+=A
=+—H
ARETR

Commitments to Qingdao Songyuan (note 21)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Incorporation of a joint venture

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained profits).

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and issue of new shares as well
as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing
debt.

HEBSMREE (F15E21)
WREYIE S MR ek
Eiilaaviadisi=)

41.
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616,000
347,104
150,000

B g E R

FEBHEEBERA D AREAER
REERRIUFERXEE F
REBEEEBILEBREDSRS
RERGERRARBIR - AEBBYELR
REBENEFERTAE -

AEENESGEREREETFE
(BEIBRRERREFENRZ
B URAEABER NEEET
(BREETRE RO EE#

R AR B A)) o

ARBDERRFFEERNELRGE
ETR - FRRRME B —IR
EXFEEREAMEREZHRER
ERNER -REEFERZ &&
ERZEBKMNRE EITHRNO R
BETHMESUEERAEHTEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
receivables from factoring business, loan receivables,
Financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, Financial liabilities at FVTPL,
trade and other payables, borrowings and bonds
payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. R TH
Categories of financial instruments SR TAER
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-— _EEF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®BTFT
(& &E7)
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BN EFFABGSEZ
THEE 110,943 108,420
Amortised cost 55 R A 13,751,284 12,054,511
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFESF AREMEEmE G
FTEZEHILA 419,752 469,610
Financial liabilities ERaE
Amortised cost iR A 7,496,584 7,609,926
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BN EFFABGEZ
TREE 56,893 85,878
Financial risk management objectives and BERGEERERBE

FEENTEEHNTABSERER
BEBZEBWRIE BRER &
ATESFABGFEZESHEE
BAFESFAREMEZEARZSTEZ
BEBITA -BWEZRNHEME
WkIE s ERIRITERRITAE
FRFEE - BAFESFABRmE
ZEMEBR -BNEZERRAEM
BNRE-BRRENES -ZF
TR T EFBREMERE HEX
ETMTEAERNARSEDERA
R (B RARBRNEXER) - EFER
B RORENE = B o TS E S0 A
BREZFEABHNHER EEEEE
REEZERE  UBRERREBM
R EGE & RYFE A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. M T A @&

260

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Some subsidiaries of the Group undertakes certain
operating transactions in foreign currencies other
than functional currencies, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. During the year ended 31
December 2021, as disclosed in note 22, the Group
entered into currency option agreement to fix exchange
rate of USD against RMB at maturity date of 27 April
2022, with principle amount of USD40,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
hold a Structured Cross Currency Swap to exchange
USD floating rate liability into CNY fixed rate debt with
aggregate principal amount of USD122,500,000 (2020:
Usb175,000,000).

The Group did not applied hedge accounting in the
measurement of currency option and Structured Cross
Currency Swap. The management manages its currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and considering hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should such need arise.
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TEBETHB AT UINEEELL
SN EMANEETE TRER S
SAREEEBINERE - BHE_E
T+ "RB=+—HILFE">
UM 22PN R A EEFI LS
MHAEE RS U B - _F M A
“t+tHERBBEBEEAE AR
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B A NS 4EEE4122,500,000E 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) B R (&)
Currency risk (continued) BigmE L (8)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REREHAR > REBLINETEZ
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EEEREKEREZREEN
the end of the reporting period are as follows. Fo
Liabilities Assets
31/12/2021 31/12/2020  31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
af8 BE
“BC-§ "ET°%F ZBI-§  TETIEE
t=A t=A +=A +-A
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+—H
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR AR%Txn
Group entities in PRC AERRTENER
Currency of SGD Frng T - - 6,498 6,792
Currency of EUR Bl 2,663 - 36,461 41,104
Currency of HKD BT - - 2,576 2,277
Currency of USD X7 81,101 53,107 1,305,252 759,076
Currency of CHF 5 LA ER - - 333,328 -
Currency of JPY H 501 - 363 5,381
Group entities in U.S. KEEREZRNER
Currency of EUR BT 650 446 4,455 6,039
Currency of SGD N T 128 99 892 34
Currency of NOK e BA 5 - 3,219 6,995
Currency of CHF I L7 BP 513 151 555 498
Currency of DKK HE R 27 14 2,829 4,168
Currency of SEK 1 8 52 B 66 - 3,098 6,543
Currency of GBP iS5 471 375 9,137 7,806
Currency of CLP BHERR 2,114 984 11,227 11,660
Currency of COP SREIHER 1,380 888 11,919 12,850
The Group's foreign currency risk is concentrated on the AEEWNIIERBREIEZEFTAR
fluctuation of RMB and USD against foreign currency. B RETRINEBIEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2020:5%) increase and decrease in the RMB
and USD against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the
year where RMB and USD weakens 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of RMB and
USD against the relevant currency, there would be an
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

i BE (1)

Ei5mpE (B

TRAVWNAEEGARERETR
FERESNKE 2 BER EF R Fk5% (T
ETEFI5%) ZHRE-5%AE
BEHIINEEXRSIZEOAEEE) 2 5T
Ho-BMREDMESFERERNZIU
INEEHEZ EIEE » W EARIZ
5% ZHNEEXSENFHEMRE 2R
B UTEHEERTREARBRET
DAEBANEEES %R AFEER
BRI ZARB - MARBRETR
RN EFES% B g HAEE
MeEMNEERTEE-

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
g8 TZ-ZTH
ARBTRT ARETT

Profit for the year KEE wm A
— Group entities in PRC —AEERFENER 68,009 32,365
— Group entities in U.S. —AEEREENER 1,658 2,119

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
borrowings, bonds payable and lease liabilities with
fixed interest rate (notes 25, 29, 33, 34 and 36).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs")
with alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of the
impacts on the Group’s risk management strategy
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under “interest
rate benchmark reform” in this note.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to loan receivables, bank balances and
borrowings with variable interest rate (notes 25, 30 and
33). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of saving/lending rate
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China and LIBOR.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
the interest rate level and outlook as well as potential
impact on the Group’s financial position arising from
volatility of the interest rate.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as disclosed
in note 22, the Group hold an interest rate swap to
keep variable interests (3 months SHIBOR) of principal
amount of RMB300,000,000 as fixed 3.5%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
hold a Structured Cross Currency Swap to keep the
variable interests (LIBOR plus 1.50%) as fixed 4.5%
with principal amount of USD122,500,000 (2020:
UsSD175,000,000). The Group had a loss on Structured
Cross Currency Swap amounted to RMB22,453,000
(2020: RMB16,322,000). The Group did not applied
hedge accounting in the measurement of Structured
Cross Currency Swap.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

Total interest income from financial assets that are

42. TR T A (&)

i BE (1)

FIE Rz (B)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

DEHR A ENTREENT R

measured at amortised cost are as follows: UALBEEIN T -
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8E BH=E
—EZ-F == F
+=B8B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE IEEFEE
AREBFRT AR®TFIT
(2 E75)

Interest income FE A

Financial assets at amortised cost BEERAFECTRMERE 143,943 114,979

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

AEAFESABDFEZEME

FVTPL: BENFERX :
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE BH=E
—E-F ==&
+=A +—H
=+—H =+—H
IEEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETFT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RIS At EZ S EE 136,728 177,232
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables, bank balances and borrowings with variable
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate loan
receivables, bank balances and variable-rate borrowings
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 25 basis points (2020: 25 basis
points) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on variable-rate loan receivables, bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings had been 25
basis points (2020: 25 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
have decreased/increased by RMB8,072,000 (2020:
decreased/increased by RMB4,758,000(restated)).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, receivables from factoring business, other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, loan receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
finance lease receivables. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loan receivables and
finance lease receivables are mitigated because they are
secured over various equipment and machineries.
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ZHMREBEE o DT ERRR
BEMREBEBKRER RITHE
FRFRBERREFEHBREREM
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

266

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. For finance
lease business and factoring business, the Group also
has delegated a team responsible for (i) designing and
implementation of overall risk management internal
control policies and procedures and establishing
appropriate risk appetite; (ii) designing and execution
of due diligence procedures; (iii) reviewing the
creditworthiness of customers. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
in accordance with HKFRS 9 on receivable balances
individually or based on provision matrix.

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI only comprise
bills receivable that are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks and therefore are considered to be
low credit risk.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks. However,
the credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39%
of the total trade receivables was due from fellow
subsidiaries (2020: 23%), and 68% of the total other
receivables was due from a holding company (2020:
68%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach of HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the ECL on these items by using
a provision matrix grouped by risk portfolio, which is
estimated based on the financial quality of the debtors,
historical credit loss experience and the past due status
of the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and assessment
of both the current as well as the forward-looking
information that available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date.

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December
2021 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
with gross carrying amounts of RMB1,621,211,000 and
RMB36,923,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021
were assessed individually (2020: RMB1,208,302,000
and RMB34,266,000 respectively).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMBEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERAEFG (B)
(continued)

31/12/2021
Trade
receivables
- Gross
Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB’000
—E-—
+=A
=+—H
P& Ukt
B2 RM
THYEEEE —RERE
AR¥ET T

Low risk type customer BEAREER 3.66% 1,925,500
Normal risk type customer EERRBRERR 5.04% 1,696,773
Total 4 5t 3,622,273

31/12/2020

Trade

receivables

— Gross

Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB'000

(restated)

TEIERF

+=A

=+—H

FELsR

B R

FHEEE —REAE
AREF T

(& E5)

Low risk type customer EREEER 3.54% 2,267,107
Normal risk type customer FERREERR 8.05% 1,369,752
Total HEEt 3,636,859
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

R R B EFE ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETKBABIER EZMEKE S
that has been recognised for trade receivables under RAEBNEHAEAEEREE
the simplified approach. go

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
-impaired) -impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2T 2T

FEBR FEBHE
(BRiEERHE) (EEHE Mt
ARETR ARETR ARETR

As at 1 January 2020 (restated) RZZZZTF—H—H

(EE5) 200,649 8,881 209,530
Transfer to credit-impaired BEEEHE (25,385) 25,385 -
Impairment losses recognised BREDAEEE 35,063 - 35,063
Impairment losses reversed BEEHESSE (2,301) - (2,301)
Fxchange adjustments (B R RE (121) - (121)
Write-off 55 (47) - (47)
As at 31 December 2020 N\ ZEZEFE+"A=+—H 207,858 34,266 242,124
Transfer to credit-impaired BEEERE (2,657) 2,657 -
Impairment losses recognised EBRARESE 19,446 - 19,446
Impairment losses reversed BELIRESE (2,156) - (2,156)
Fxchange adjustments fE R (135) - (135)
Write-off b ] (5,380) - (5,380)
As at 31 December 2021 R-E--#+_B=+-H 216,976 36,923 253,899
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. TR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
None of the trade receivables that have been written off
is subject to enforcement activities.

For finance lease receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for finance lease

MBRREEBRREE (&)

EEmERBEFE (&)

HEEHNBREBABRBREMH
2 H WERIENEERA KR R
BABBBEIMBRERER) > &
EEFMBEE Z RN - BLERE
W & 5 BRI ATT B M ©

PMEWREEEMIENS A%E
ERAEEMBHRSERFIRS
R AR 2 MBRREEBE
BEEERE-

TREH LR ERE T ERURRES
EIEREER.

receivables.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
-impaired) -impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20N 27

FEEHE EEBHE
(RIEEHE) (EERE) st
ARBTR AERBTR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2020 N ZEZTF—-A—H 4,135 2,923 7,058
Impairment losses recognised BREDAERSE 1,811 - 1,811
As at 31 December 2020 A\ ZE2ZRF+A=+—H 5,946 2,923 8,869
Impairment losses recognised BRI ERE 2,357 - 2,357
As at 31 December 2021 RZE2--%+ZA=+-H 8,303 2,923 11,226
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBEFGEG (&
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TR LR B IRIBETS 2 FEUGR
allowances that has been recognised for receivables BN EEEERR

from factoring business.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
12mECL  -impaired) -impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

27N 2178

1288 BEER BEER
FHEERE (BEEAE)  (BEAE EH
AEEFr ARBTRT ARETR AEETR
As at 1 January 2020 RZIEZZE-F—H 1,099 550 - 1,649
Impairment losses recognised BRIAERE 122 - - 122
Impairment losses reversed ERERESR (545) - - (545)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZEFE+"F=1—H 676 550 - 1,226
Impairment losses recognised ERDHESE 640 - - 640
Impairment losses reversed BEOAESE (472) (550) - (1,022)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-%+ZR=+-H 844 - - 844
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EM T A (@)
Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREREEEG (B)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TREY L E MR IEE S
allowances that has been recognised for other BEEHER
receivables.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
12mECL  -impaired) -impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
217N %Y
128R BEER BEER
RUGEER (BESRHE  (EEHE) L h
AEEFn ARBTR ARETR ARETn
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZTF—F—H 4,776 346 5,000 10,122
Impairment losses recognised BRIAERE 6,959 - - 6,959
Impairment losses reversed EEERERR (10,097) - (5,000) (15,097)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 126 - - 126
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZE+ZF=+—H 1,764 346 - 2,110
Impairment losses recognised BRIAERE 1" - - 1"
Impairment losses reversed BRELAESE (15) = = (15)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 55 - - 55
At 31 December 2021 RZ®¥--F+ZA=+-H 1,815 346 - 2,161
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBEFGEG (&
(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss TERET R U & RS A A5 1B
allowances that has been recognised for loan HHER

receivables.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
12mECL  -impaired) -impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

27N %Y

128R BEER BEER
RUGEER (BESHE  (EEHE) Ly
AEEFr ARBTRT ARETR AEETR
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZTF-F-H 8,616 - - 8,616
Transfer to credit-impaired BEEEHE (1,425) - 1,425 -
Impairment losses recognised BRIAERE 9,475 - - 9,475
Impairment losses reversed BRELAESE (243) - - (243)
At 31 December 2020 “RCEE+ZR=1-H 16,423 - 1,425 17,848
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEHE (6,075) - 6,075 -
Impairment losses recognised BREIAESE 7,826 - - 1,826
Impairment losses reversed EROAESR (105) - - (105)
Write-off i3 (104) - - (104)
At 31 December 2021 RZF--F+ZA=+-H 17,965 - 7,500 25,465
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. M T A @&

274

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
different to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

MBRREEBRREE (&)

HEE & AR

EEERPBETRRE FAEER
BREFEERB RS EHKFHER
ERBEFEY URKTEREE
REBESWRERERE RIS
RN E EEEERMERNVER
BRILERT GERRZGY -

i BT AR KB B A Bl I IR S HASK PR
BEZFERME BT RLIETE
THEBRZABHNRTAMAZH
BEHBRE-

TRIREHEEEPRFAEI &
EEFTTEERMERNRGFSIE
HAH 2 RDIRBEEREEEERE
THEENRFEHMANEREREN
AERFEEREMER - ZXREHE
NMERAEZREMNE -HREBRA
FEF R RREHARZ RAERM
IHRBERAE

' LEREEERASHTERRAERAT 2021 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMBEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E 2 EE
Liquidity tables MEBEEX
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than Over undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2:5 years Syears  cashflows  31/12/2021
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RIZ-§
g RERY AMRRE +A=t+-8

1S hitE 1526 2358 BigsE HEUE MR E
% AEETR ARETR ARETR AEETR  AEBETR  AREIR

201 T3I-E
Non-derivative financial liabilities it eman
Trade payables ERERER 1,336,786 - - - 1,336,786 1,336,786
Construction cost and retention payables BEMARENREE 64,490 - - - 64,490 64,490
Bills payable [ES 332,164 - - - 332,164 332,164
Other payables EfERZE 8 1,723,382 - - - 1,723,382 1,706,579
Lease liabilities HEER 3.59 25,485 22,304 37332 1,758 86,879 80,845
Bonds payable EfES ENE] 35,900 35,900 107,700 1,010,471 1,189,971 992,549
Borrowings &
- fived rate REilES 33 330,347 17,150 622,051 - 969,548 799,996
- variable rate L ES 4.39 353,242 263,072 1,785,075 - 2,401,389 2,264,020
4,201,796 338,426 2,552,158 1,012,229 8,104,609 1,571,429
Derivatives - net settlement fIEIR-GHAE
Structured Cross Currency Swap GRERNERER 35,883 - - - 35,883 35,883
Currency Option BlsE 20,811 - - - 20,811 20,811
Interest rate swap H=EH - - 199 - 199 199

56,694 - 199 - 56,893 56,893
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. £ T H @

MBRREEBRREE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

276
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Liquidity risk (continued) REEZRE (&
Liquidity tables (continued) TEEZ K (B)
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 3111212020
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
RIBCEE
Ik 28| BERY FEERE T2AZT-H
BRAZ DRE 152F 1555 BRSE HELE HEEfE
% ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(fme) (&5 (fme5)
2020 ot
Non-derivative financial liabilities e Emas
Trade payables ERERER 1416318 - - - 1,416,318 1416,318
Construction cost and retention payables BERAREARES 90,430 - - - 90,430 90,430
Bills payable 28 341,349 - - - 341,349 341,349
Other payables EtEATE 1,437,799 12,375 24,750 1,474,924 1,474,924
Lease liabilities HEAR 8 8,842 7,060 9,101 6,038 31,041 30,698
Bonds payable EfES 373 35,900 35,900 107,700 1,046,371 1,225,871 991,121
Borrowings (£
- fixed rate ~EENE 326 76,518 - - 572,01 648,539 573,420
- variable rate -5ENE 431 342,094 507,934 2,756,859 - 3,606,887 2,725,759
3,749,250 563,269 2,898,410 1,624,430 8,835,359 7,644,019
Derivatives - net settlement ffEIA-GHEHR
Structured Cross Currency Swap ERETNERER - 59,072 - - 59,072 59,072
Currency Option BhHE 21,031 - - - 21,031 21,031
Interest rate swap JilES:g - - 5,775 - 5,775 5,775
21,031 59,072 5775 - 85,878 85,878
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

Several of the Group's borrowings and financial
liabilities will be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. As at 1 January 2021, the Group has
borrowings bear the interests of which are indexed
to LIBOR with amounts of RMB2,707,668,000, the
Structured Cross Currency Swap in a financial liability
position which are indexed to LIBOR with amounts
of RMB35,859,000, interest rate swap in a financial
liability position indexed to Shanghai Interbank Offered
Rate (“SHIBOR") with amounts of RMB5,775,000. None
of the relevant contracts has been transitioned to the
relevant replacement rates during the year. The Group
is closely monitoring the market and managing the
transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all
LIBOR settings will either cease to be provided by any
administrator or no longer be representative:

e immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case
of all sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen
settings, and the 1-week and 2-month US dollar
settings; and

e immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the
remaining US dollar settings.

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

FIEBERE

KEEBNETEIRAREHEEGH
REAMNEEENENEE R
T F—-HA—H AEEFKH
LIBOREMIMF X ENERAR
#2,707,668,0007T > $%Z BALIBOR$
WA EAENBREREER
MNERBERIXEEEHAARE
35,859,000 0’ %8 E/BIRITEIZ
#r 2 (TSHIBOR ) B #INFIZEE R
MEREREER TR =R A
EE#&5,775,0007T © 2 & [E i 1T {7
MHEENEEEMEANERE K
EEERYERTRITEERHE
EREFHENET BEBRERE
HEEEMBEHNAS

LIBOR

REEMMmBITAEERERD
TNEERErEREE LA IR
AT BLIBORRE > BFAFBARE
%

o BRFTBIS - BT WA
REB®RRE LUR—E2HR
—ERETREMES R
T-—G+-B=+—B%;

s HEBERREMNR-IZT-=
=+H®%&-
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

278

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

Interest rate benchmark reform (continued) FIFEBEME (B
(i) Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark () FIFEBRENET|IHHE R

reform

The following are the key risks for the Group
arising from the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned
to the relevant alternative benchmark rates and
without detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral
negotiations with the Group’s counterparties are
not successfully concluded before the cessation
of LIBORs, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This
gives rise to additional interest rate risk that was
not anticipated when the contracts were entered
into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs
and the various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs
are forward looking term rates published for a
period (e.g. 3 months) at the beginning of that
period and include an inter-bank credit spread,
whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically
risk-free overnight rates published at the end of
the overnight period with no embedded credit
spread. These differences will result in additional
uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. TR T A (&)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

(1)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform (continued)

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative
rates which are typically published on overnight
basis will require additional liquidity management.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the
interest rate benchmark reform on contracts
which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates (e.g. arising from
differing interpretation of existing fallback
terms), there is a risk of prolonged disputes with
counterparties which could give rise to additional
legal and other costs. The Group is working
closely with all counterparties to avoid this from
occurring.

Interest rate basis risk

Interest rate basis risk may arise if a non-derivative
instrument and the derivative instrument held to
manage the interest risk on the non-derivative
instrument transition to alternative benchmark
rates at different times. This risk may also arise
where back-to-back derivatives transition at
different times.

MBRREEBRREE (&)

FIEBERE (B
() FIEBFENETI KRR (B)

REE T AR

HRBBERREMINRIA
BAMEKEIISEEMNR
BIEHEIRBESEE -

EiENEL A

HEREABEEREBEA
MEHENEEZZMNE KA
REENFNHB (WHIR
TREBIHRMBER R FS
B OREFEEARZHFAR
HAAL #0 By LB > T B AE 18 0 28
SN AR R H A A A o R EE
FREZXZGHFHERGIE U
BRELERRBBR-

W IFEEETEEMIA
MREBOIFITETRE KRS
STERTAKEREBES
BREENT  REELEMEK
BERRB -FHETEIAR
TENKBEBERTEE
EZIBRE R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE
instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEFLEEMBEZ L FENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair HEHMEERETHE BN FE

value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’'s financial assets are measured FEEFDEMEENSRSHAR
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The BAFEFE PRI BREDM
following table gives information about how the fair BErZETsHEEREMEBRERT
values of these financial assets are determined (in BzEN (CHEZ FAMGBERE
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). R AN BUER) ©
Financial assets Fair value as at (RMB’000) Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
hierarchy key input(s)
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
(restated)
RUTEBNATEE
SRMEE (AEBF ) ATFEESR fEEFERARBAYE
“EZ-§ BT
+ZA +ZR
=+—-H =+—H
(=)
FVTPL - Structured Cross (35,883) (59,072) Level 2 The Cross current swap is a
Currency Swap structured product constructed
by interest rate swap and range
forward. The interest rate swap
is valued by discounting floating
and fixed leg cash flows at
appropriate discount rate. The
range forward creates a range
of exercise prices through two
derivative market positions (long
call and short put) that is valued
by Black Scholes Pricing model.
RATESAB@HE ) BB A —BEBNEXE
—BERMRNEBEH Tﬁﬂ&%&llﬁi&ﬁmﬁkﬁﬁ G E

me MR EHRBBUBEENNR
EHIPREEZZREMEE
THRERE - BB R
nREERETENMETE
MiBET (LEREE) 2R
BRIET —RITHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE B

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and TEFUREBEZL FEHE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair HEMEEREMEEHLTE
value on a recurring basis (continued) (&

Financial assets Fair value as at (RMB’000) Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
hierarchy key input(s)
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
(restated)
RUTEBNATEE
SRMEE (AEBF ) ATFEESR BEHERRREABE
“EZ-§ “EIEE
+ZH +ZR
=+—-H =+—H
(=)

FVTPL - Currency option (20,811) (21,031) Level 2 The Currency Option comprised of
Seagull Option and Collar Option.
A seagull option is a three-legged
European option trading strategy
which implemented using two
puts and a call or vice versa. The
Seagull option entered by the
Group involves two call options
and one put option to minimum
risk. The collar position limits
the return of the portfolio to a
specified range and can hedge
a position against potential
volatility of the underlying asset.
It is created through the usage
of a protective put and covered
call option. The key parameters
applied are CNY/USD Spot Rate,
discount rate, volatility, option
fee.

RATESAB@E g BUsHEd BRI B 7 A

—ERiE o BEEHIRE —B= B R
BBERZRE EAMEE
BN —EERAESR 2
AERE N BEIEY Kk E0E
MR R — (B0 A H R DUBE &
b EOBET R BEASHCIR
PREIES CEHE M I o] 8t #18
HEENET R AET - H
B ERRELERBERE
BEMERAEEL -RANAR
SURARE /EHBEX.
HREEX KPR -HWEER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

ETMIANATEFE (B

FEBUEEMBEZLTEHE
HEMEEREME B/ TE

¢

Financial assets Fair value as at (RMB’000) Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
hierarchy key input(s)

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
(restated)
RUTEBNATE
EHEE (AE#F ) ATE
“EZ-§ “EIEE
+=R +-A
=+-H =+—H
(K& E75)

£ fEEAERRBREARE

FVTPL - Interest rate swap (199) (5,775) Level 2

BATES ABmst 8 E_H
—MRE#
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Interest rate swap are forward
contracts where one stream
of future interest payments is
exchanged for another based
on a specified principal amount.
The key parameters applied are
Forward Rate Curve and Discount
Rate Curve. The Forward Rate
Curve is 3 - month SHIBOR
and the forward reset rates are
projected using Bloomberg SWPM
function, 3 - month SHIBOR
Curve is applied as discount curve
for both fixed and floating leg
valuation and is extracted from
Bloomberg.

NEXEHRABEMEL RED
ENEEE BARNFESZ
AR RA— B EANTE
SYREHNRMGMEREK
MR- BN ER A =B
SHIBOR » & A E 25 | X8Il £ 3
& 1BSWPMINAE T FE R - =B A
SHIBORGH 4% A ¥ &l <& K - B & 0
HENEFRG WS FRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE B

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEFLEEMBEZ L FENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair HEHEERETHMEENLFE
value on a recurring basis (continued) (#

Financial assets Fair value as at (RMB’000) Fair value Valuation technique(s) and

hierarchy key input(s)
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
(restated)
RUTEBNATE
EHEE (AE#F ) ATEER GEFERMARBAYNE
“EZ-§ “EIEE
+=H +-H
=+-H =+—H
(55

FVTOCI - Debt instruments at 419,752 469,610 Level 2 Discounted cash flow - future cash

FVTOCI flows discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

BATESt AHMEEW G 419,752 469,610 HZH URRAERE-URMERZHF
E-RAVEFAHMZERKE EERRNMGREURMRIKER
FEZEHBIA ETREC

FVTPL - Structured deposit 10,000 - Level 2 Discounted cash flow - Future cash

flows are estimated based on
estimated return (from observable
interest rates, currency, stock
index and commodity price)

BATEStABRAE-EREN 10,000 - BIHR BRREERE-REMSTER (R
ez BABENX G -REBIR
HmBR) G RRREERE
FVTPL - Investment funds and 100,943 108,420  Level 3 Income approach - in this
equity security approach, the discounted cash

flow method was used to capture
the present value of the expected
future economic benefits to

be derived from the ownership

of this investee, based on an
appropriate discount rate.

BATES A EmtE—EER& 100,943 108,420 HF=% WAE—IEREF FRMIRIEE
BNEGEE REFERSERZSRERRY

BRRERDGHERARLCEN
MERE RBRMREHE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE B

instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value BoRAFEAENHE
measurements
Financial
assets
31 December 2021 —E2-—-+Z-HA=+—H at FVTPL
RMB’'000
BATE
s AEE
HEZ
EMEE
AREFx
Balance at 1 January 2020 N ZETEF—B—HZ &R 402,426
Total gains in profit or loss 1B w2 W42 %8 39,223
Disposal HE (307,999)
Exchange adjustments fE R FHEE (25,230)
Balance at 31 December 2020 AN TETEFE+ A=+ R 108,420
Total gains in profit or loss P80 2 Wk 48 %8 (7,477)
Balance at 31 December 2021 B —F+_A=+—H24&% 100,943
Fair value of financial instruments that are recorded at RBIER AR AN EM T AN AT
amortized cost &
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts EERR ZEGREUBRRPIEZ
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded BIER AN SRHEERESRE
at amortised cost in these consolidated financial BERNEmEREAFEEE-

statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'\S
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. Mt EESEENEBEZHIR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRENAEEREBEESMELE
arising from financing activities, including both cash NEeEes (BERERIFREE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing ) MBEEBMEENEREL
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future X ENREME T2 AEELK
cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated BIREMERRADEE-

statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Loans from
a holding Dividend Lease

Borrowings Bonds company payable liabilities Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(note 33) (note 34) (note 13) (note 36) (restated)

RE

ERAR
s &% HEH EftRE g8k fit
AEETR  ARETR AREFR AEETR ARETR ARETR
(M3t33) (M3t34) (W3t13) (I3t36) (B E75)
At 1 January 2020 RIZZRE-F-H 5,349,231 - 143,982 144,800 25711 5,663,724
Dividend declared BERRE - - - 556,549 - 556,549
Interest accrued FEstRI8 153,046 21,230 2,956 - 1,703 178,935
Exchange adjustments ERHH (187,175) - - - 890 (186,285)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HHREAT 33,083 - - - 5,014 38,097
New lease WiHE - - - - 10,629 10,629
Financing cash flows HERZRE (2,049,006) 969,891  (146,938)  (701,349) (13,249)  (1,940,651)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2-FE+-A=1-H 3,299,179 991,121 - - 30,698 4,320,998
Dividend declared BERRE - - - 653,288 - 653,288
Interest accrued FEstHIS 97,261 39,467 - - 3,668 140,396
Exchange adjustments ERHE (55,762) - - - 419 (55,343)
New lease WiHg - - - - 71,897 71,897
Financing cash flows RERENE (276,662) (38,039) - (653,288) (25,837) (993,826)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+ZA=1-H 3,064,016 992,549 - - 80,845 4,137,410

44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 44. T EFRER S

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group BE_T_—F+_A=+—HL
endorsed bill receivables of RMB1,304,354,000 (2020: FE AEBEMEEERNESRT
RMB975,155,000) to settle the trade and other REMEMTRIBEEERKERAR
payables. #1,304,354,00070 (ZE 22 F ©

AR 1975,155,0007C) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FAEA TR 5

(a) The Group had the following related party
transactions during the two years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020:

(a) RBEE-_BE-_—GFR_ZE_
EF+_A=+—HILME
FER AEER TIRMEA

T35
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-—-F CZTTEZEF
ARBFTRT ARETT
(& &E35))
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETERWB QB 394,988 397,872
Sales to a holding company HEF—MBERAT 2,793 326
Sales to an associate HET—HEEQE 39,136 26,379
Sales to associates of HET—BEERAEN
a holding company NS 610 -
Distribution made through fellow BBBRMMBATELEDH
subsidiaries 2,226,169 1,128,233
Logistic support services received BRI ZRMNBABZEZ YR
from fellow subsidiaries SRS 70,107 -
Purchases from fellow subsidiaries @[5 % Mt /& A &) % i& 866,738 866,688
Purchases from a holding company B —BZERAFRE 297 16,472
Purchases from an associate [ —EBE A B EREE 164,776 158,281
Operating lease income from fellow KE B &M B AT =
subsidiaries KEHEFWA 6,693 12,369
Operating lease income froman  KE—BBEATZ
associate KEHEFWA 1,968 -
Operating lease income from an  RE—BEZER AN —HE
associate of a holding company BE AR 2 RKRERBEWA 742 -
Finance lease income from fellow RERBRMNEBAEZ
subsidiaries MERAEWRA 9,055 7,292
Interest income from factoring REERWBRABMREER
business from fellow subsidiaries — ZF|E WA 19,554 14,890
Service received from fellow BEARNBRBEE 2R
subsidiaries 13,117 17,685
Service received from a holding B—EERAQBEE 2R
company 527 5,253
Service received from an associate H—MEZTER AT —MH
of a holding company BE A B E 2 IRFS 2,561 -
Service provided to fellow mERMNBABRMEZ R
subsidiaries 9,488 21,426
Service provided to an associate m—EERA BN —EgE
of a holding company RENRMHZ IR 236 -
Service provided to an associate m—EBE AR RME 2R 3,663 9,936
Interest income from an associate B —REE=A AT
FB WA - 8,399
Interest income from an associate KB —BER A BN —HE
of a holding company BEABZHBWA 7,013 4,922
Interest expense arising from —MBERABEEZ
a holding company FEZH = 2,956
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(continued)

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in notes 24, 25, 27, 30, 31, and 32.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
principal of the finance lease business provided
to fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to
RMB366,275,000 (2020: RMB29,814,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
principal of the factoring business provided to
fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to
RMB133,010,000 (2020: RMB465,870,000).

As at 31 December 2021, a holding company
provided guarantees of RMB58,000,000 (2020:
RMB47,000,000) to one of the subsidiary of
the Company related to its short-term bank
borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
subsidiary of the Company acquired interests in a
Wego Healthcare from Weigao Holding. Detail of
the related party transactions are set out in note 3
merger accounting and restatements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company participated the Asset Backed
Securitization issued by Weigao Holding with the
carrying amount of RMB232,687,000 account
receivables, the Company has transferred all
risks and rewards of those account receivables to
Weigao Holding, and therefore derecognised the
account receivables.

45. FAIEATXR G @)

(a) ()

FEUR SR AN T RIEA
BEMNMIEE24~25~2730
31/K32°

HE_Z-_—%®+ A8
=t+—HIEFEE - AEEMR
BarlBARREZHME
HMEXEHEAEAARK
366,275,00070 (ZE _E&F :
AR 129,814,0007T) °

HEz_E_-—£+ A
=t+—HLEEE > KEBHRF
ZNBABERMZFREER
KRS ANREM133,010,000
T (ZE2EZ2F . AR
465,870,0007T) °

KRB —F+RB=+—
H>—RBZER AT MEGEE
TEME A RQE H o —
BBt AR #§58,000,000
T(ZEZZF: AR
47,000,0007T) Z 1R

 E -+ AH
=+t—HLEFE > AR IR
BRramE=SER QB WE
Wego Healthcaref & o 18 78 8
MARXZZHFBEHNMEIE
HETHET -

HEzE_E=-_—+ A
—t+—HLEFEE AR G2H
BeEBRARBTHNIRAE
A ANR1232,687,000CHIFE
WIRFHNEEE ST QT
EREZERENEREEN
— I REAEOREETES
EBNTE RAMA IEHEIE
W BR TR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z - —F+__HB=+—HIEFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group early repaid the long-term bank borrowings
amounting to RMB1,220,835,000, and the
guarantees related to this borrowing provided by a
holding company were early released.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiary of the Company exchanged assets
with Weigao Holding. Details are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiary of the Company acquired interests in a
company from Weigao International. Details are
set out in note 3 merger accounting and prior year
restatements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiary of the Company, Weihai Weigao Xingda
Enterprise Management Consulting Services
Co., Ltd acquired 28.57% interests of Weihai
Hongyangrui from the executive director of the
Company in year of 2020, Mr. Gong Jianbo. Detail
of the acquisition are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group disposed the investment of secured
convertible promissory notes issued by NeuroVasc
Technologies Inc to Weigao Holding with an
amount of USD46,944,000 (equivalent to
RMB307,249,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company sold Contracts to Weigao Holding with
a consideration of USD17,921,000 (equivalent to
RMB117,292,000). Details are set out in note 7 (d).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group repaid the loan of RMB24,500,000 from a
holding company with interest rate at 4.785% per
annum.

(a) (&)

HE_ZT_ZT £+ - H
E—l——EJtEF*‘JZIKE
RAEBE 2% %)\Eﬂz

B B>

E

1,220,835, OOOTDEGEHH AT
{ETA’W’EH““T&-}LHZ%TJME
HRMERAE R E IR AT ARFR o

RE_S-F&+_7
=+—HIEE FARNE
ARARBEEARETH

EXB oFREHEN G
EE=R
BHE_ZT-_ZETF+ A
=+ —HIEFEE > ZAEME
NEE S BRI E A B R
mo BRI MNMEIEH T
Bl F—FEE o
BEE_T_Z =
=+—HIEFE > xR23K
BAroEBREEEDLE
EEZBHARBERATNZ
ETEFEARBHTES
S 3 R ot & W BE Bl 78 5A [ In
2857 % Ewm o WEESEIBE N
emEEs*e
HE_ET_ZTH+ A

=t+—HLEFE - xEEHE
#fNeuroVasc Technologies Inc
BITTHEEBRRQBAIEH
OBRARERZKRE &4
#46,944,000% 7t (BBENX A
R #307,249,0007T) °

BHE_ZZ_Z24F#+_H
=+—HLEFEE > KA HE
SEERATHESN REA
17,921,000t FHEN AR
r#;‘117,292,00071:) EAE9N
MzE7 (d)e

rE— Eﬁ?ﬂﬂ““ HEZA
R £24,500,00070 > F£FIE A
4.785% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members

45.

FREALRS @

(b) XEERASHIERM

RERN EFERTEZEEEN

of key management during the year was as Hp SRVFHEIT -
follows:

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—F-—f% "ZTEF
ARBTFR ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits FRHAE B A 10,155 20,759
Post-employment benefits BEBEEr 164 152
Share-based payments M AERMOR 8,273 665
18,592 21,576

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. All Hong Kong
employees joining the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

No forfeited contribution under the scheme is available
to reduce the Group’s future contribution.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of mainland.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 16% for
the year ended 31 December 2021.(2020:16%) of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

46.

EERETEZTHAER N
ThEFMEESER AL
WRFRHHBAMETE -

BAEREHE

FEBR_SEZF+_A2ER
BERREMEABEEERAMRILZ
BEM AR -ZFFAEZE
ENDHARSARECES BAE
EzEE AT AE PIAMBEAE
BrEBREEHNASHABRMEAR
=5t 8 e

MR iR ez 5t 80 5202 WA RN BT A 1E IR
DARER 2R AR MR

FEBZTENB AR ZEENDS
AEBRREEZEREERKRE
MEtBIZMB - REBE_T _—F
TZR=A+—HLEFE RZEWE
NEVERFHEMAEZ16% (T2
THE ! 16%) BRIKEF SHEIHR
DIERBRIFRRES AEEHR
K@Mt B2 E—BERIELRIEE
Z R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

46.

47

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(continued)

Argon sponsors a 401(k) retirement savings plan
for all Argon employees. This plan includes both
employee contributions as well as employer matching
contributions.

Other subsidiaries in jurisdictions outside of the PRC
contribute to statutory retirement plans on behalf of
their employees which in many cases are managed by
the government in those territories. Those subsidiaries
make periodic contributions to the statutory retirement
plans as required and contributions are generally
determined as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries
or a fixed amount per employee per calendar year
depending on the jurisdiction.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in note 11.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As disclosed in note 7(e), a subsidiary of the Group
was defendant in a product liability claim. The Group
recorded a pre-tax charge of RMB522,650,000 for
losses related to product liability litigation. The Group
regularly monitors and evaluates the status of product
liability, and may, from time-to-time, engages in
settlement and mediation discussions, taking into
consideration of developments in the matters and
the inherent risks and uncertainties surrounding the
litigation.

46.

47
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Paid up issued/

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

N — = —

B ERTT g4

=+—H ' ERAFNBRAEFE

mE:

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRTES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE % e &S FEEREZERRE TERH
% (EH) % ()
ZEZ-F§ -Z°%E ZEI-§ _“T°ZfF

Weigao Orthopaedic * PRC RMB358,585,800 50.63 56.47 21.55 24.04  Manufacturing of

(LREEERMRRABRAR) orthopaedic medical
(note a) device products

UREEERMHRABRAT HE AR 1358,585,8007 REBRBEREER
(Mzta)

Beijing Weigao Yahua Artificial PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 72.18 80.51  Research, services and
Joints Development Company sales of medical devices
Limited*

FFREEREA\TESREERAR)

(note a)

IREBEEAIRBREERAT T AR 70,000,00078 BRRENTE REK
(MzEa) 15

Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical PRC RMB65,000,000 - - 72.18 80.51  Manufacturing of
Devices Co., Ltd* orthopaedic devices,

(ENENRERERHERAR) implantation materials
(note a) and artificial organs

EMENSEREZRNBERAT HE AR 165,000,0007 REBRRE BEMH
(Mizta) RAEHE

Weihai Weigao Management Asset PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 72.18 80.51  Asset management and
Management Co., Ltd* enterprise consulting

(FEREEEERERAR) service
(note a)

BEEREEEEERAT (Wta) FE AE 10,000,007 BEEBRROCEBERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

E T —

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

E+-A=+—HILEE
48. EABEEMBAF

(&)

Effective equity

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB950,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type |
Products Marketing Co., Ltd* medical devices,
(FREl Ak ERRREH surgical devices and
BRAF) other disposal medical
products
BeEl (e ERRRERERAT TE AR 1950,000,0007 HEE-BEERRF
ik REM— TR
BER
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB1,309,070,000 19.21 21.95 80.79 78.05  Wholesale of Type |
Products Material Supply Co., Ltd* medical devices,
(HEEE (55 BRANAMEHHRE surgical devices and
BRAF) other disposal medical
products
BEEm mz/a) ERRAMHME  DE AR1,309,070,0007 HEF-EBERE T
BRA ik EREM— AR
BEM
Weihai Jierui Medical Products PRC RMB114,030,000 87.70 53.2 12.30 46,7 Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited* PVC granules, plastic
(EE2HBARERERAR) packing bags and carton
boxes
BEZRERNSERAT il AR 114,030,000 SEREPVCHE BRA
Hi%—b&i&
Shandong Weigao Automatic PRC RMBS5,000,000 - - 100 100 Manufacturing of industrial
Equipment Company Limited* automatic equipment
(LEEEBEBEREERA) and parts
LEEEEBREERAT HE AR 5,000,0007 RETEEDIERERE
#
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 - - Provision of logistics and
Company Limited* storage services
(mmmilm 25
LRESEENABRAR HE AR 120,000,0007 RUEMTREERS
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e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(continued)
Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF

Weihai Weigao Group Mould PRC RMB8,000,000 90 90 10 10 Manufacturing of moulds

Company Limited*
(FEREERARAEERAR)
BEHBERRAERAT e AR 8,000,007 RERE
Sichuan Jierui Weigao Medical PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 - - Trading of medical

Device Company Limited* products
mIgRE=BREERERAT)
mIErEEEERMERAR HE AE 2,000,007 BERRER
Weihai Weigao Jiesheng Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 95.9 95.9  Trading of medical

Devices Co., Ltd.* products
(AEEEZRBRENERAT)
BERERERREMERAT HE AE120,000,00070 HEEEREM
Weihai Weigao Medical International ~ PRC RMBS5,000,000 80 80 20 20 Sales of medical devices,

Trading Co., Ltd.* imports and exports of
(HEREERERERERAR) registered products
BERRERERESBERAT HE AR 85,000,0007 HEBRRE ELOE

TER
Weigao International Medical Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD207,699,690 100 100 - - Investment holding and
FEEREEERAF) trading
REEERAT ¥ 207,699,690 7 REERRES

293




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. Z AT T EME AT EHB
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Wellford Capital Limited British USD50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Virgin Islands
("BVI")
Wellford Capital Limited HERZHE 50,0007 REER
(EBEY
B8
Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing ~ PRC RMB500,000,000 - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Ltd.* financial leasing
LEEEREREERAR) business of medical
equipment
LREEREREERAT HE AR 1500,000,0007 t=BERENSERE
RERS
Wego Medical Holding Hong Kong HKD1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
(ARBEERERAS)
BeERERERAT e 1,000,000 REER
Weihai Weigao Medical Device RMB150,000,000/ - - 75 75 Manufacturing and
Sales Co., Ltd.* RMB200,000,000 sales of hemo-dialysis
(BEREEEENHEERRAR) equipment
BEEREREMHEEERAT AR 1150,000,0007T,/ MBENZEHRERL
AE%200,000,0007T £
Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease PRC USD45,000,000/ - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Limited* USD50,000,000 financial leasing
(LERBREREERAR) business
LEERHEREERAT il 45,000,000% 7,/ HERERMBEELH
50,000,000%7¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. xR B X EM B ATIES

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WE A% R HRES FEEEEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF

Champion Falcon limited Hong Kong HKD1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
EIEERAE)
AEARAF B BT REZER
Brilliant Grace limited BVI UsD1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
(BRERAH)
BRERAH EBRUHE 1% RELR
Fuzhou Fanshun Medical Device PRC RMB500,000 95 9% - - Wholesale, sales and

Technology Company Limited* purchases of disposable
(BMMERERREGERAR) sterile medical devices
BNMEB RS MR HERAT alE] AE500,00070 —REBRBEREOL

B HERRRE

Taian Weixin Medical Products PRC RMB800,000/ 1 1 99 99 Trading of medical

Co., Ltd. * RMB30,000,000 products
GEhEnERRRERAT)
FETHNBARRARAT alE] AE800,0007,/ AE EEBEER

30,000,0007T

Weihai Chang Hong Enterprise PRC RMB50 - - - - Enterprise management

Management Consulting Centre advisory services

(Limited Partnership)*
(FERMCEERTATL

(BR&E)
BERACEEEZHTL (BREE) 8 ARRS07T TEEEEMRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

ETET

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

—f+ZA=+—

BIEFE

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ ®+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
8- CZ-%fF Z¥I-§ _B°EF
Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise PRC RMB50 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Centre advisory services
(Limited Partnership) *
(FERMEEERTARY
(BRa%)
BERNEEEELAR0 (BRAY) & N CEEEB/RS
Weihai Hong Tu Enterprise PRC nil/ RMB41 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Centre advisory services
(Limited Partnership) *
(FBEECEERTAPY
(BRa%®)
BERECEERRATO (BRAY) 1 E B/ \E¥4NT CRERERRE
Anhui Weigao Orthopaedic Medical. ~ PRC RMB40,920,595.50/ - - 72.18 80.51  Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd. * RMB150,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(RHEEEHBERNERAR) Enterprise management
(note a) advisory services
ZHERERERRNERAT HE AE40,920,595.507t,/ HEE-B FER
(Mzta) ABH150,000,0007 EoERERE
CEEERENRE
Weihai Hai Xing Medical Devices PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 72.18 80.51  Production and sales
Co., Ltd*. of Type lll medical
(FEEEREERERAD) (hote a) implant material and
artificial organ (6846);
production and sales of
Type | medical devices.
BEBERREMBERAS (fa) FE AE 70,000,007 YERHES-BRER
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e TR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE
48. Z AT X EM B AT H1E

(&)

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Sichuan Weigao Tianfu Medical PRC nil/ 90 90 10 10 Research, sales of
Technology Co. Ltd.. * RMB20,000,000 medicines and medical
(M) IEEARBENEERAR) devices
M EERFEENRBRAS HE &/ \E%20,000,0007 BERBBERBORE
£
Jilin Weigao Bao Ren Medical Products  PRC RMB20,116,810/ 65 65 - - Wholesale and retail of
Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000 medical products and
(EHeRsECERYRERAT) medical devices
EMEEEECERRRBRAT  HE ARH20,116,8107/ A HERZEBFEMRE
F150,000,0007% BRE
Weihai Weigao Yi Kang Medical Device  PRC RMB30,000,000 10 10 920 90 Sales of medical devices
Sales Co., Ltd. *
([BEHBRRBRENHERRAT)
BERBERBRENEESRAT +& AEK%30,000,0007 HERERE
WW Medical and Healthcare Cayman Islands  USD50,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
Company Limited
WW Medical and Healthcare MERS 50,0007 REnR
Company Limited
WW Medical and Healthcare Us. UsD1,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
Holdings Corporation
WW Medical and Healthcare el 1,000%7T RERR
Holdings Corporation
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. ~ U.S. usp1/ - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
USD2,000,000
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. % 1%75,/2,000,000% 7% RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

ETET

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

—f+=A=+—

BIEFE

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Weihai Weigao Medical Products PRC nil/ 90 90 10 10 Sales of medical devices
Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000
(FEEEBRARRERAR)
BEREERERERAT e &/ \E%10,000,0007 BERERE
Shandong Weigao Jiahe Pharmaceutical PRC RMBS5,000,000 67 67 - - Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Technology Co., Ltd. * Type Il medical device;
(LREBERBERRERAT) Biotechnology Extension
Service
LR ERBENRBRAT HE AR H5,000,0007 HEF—B FBNE
“HBERE £UR
it B AR
Argon Medical Devices (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HKD1 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
(ERBREM (B8) BRAT)
EREERN (BB BRAT &H 18T REER
Argon Medical Devices (Shanghai) PRC nil/ - - 89.81 89.81  Sales of Type Il and Type
Co., Ltd. * RMB1,000,000 Il medical device;
(BIR (L) BREEMBRAT) technical services and
technology transfer.
ER (L) BREMERAT HE &/ AR 1,000,0007 BEE_BRE-EBR
Rt BMRBREMS
B
Alang (Weihai) Medical Instrument PRC USD1,400,000 - - 89.81 - Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. * Type Il and Type IIl. Sales
(BIR () BEEMBRAF) of Type I. Information
consulting service.
ER (BB BESMERAT alE] 1,400,000% 7T TERHEF_ERE=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§

e TR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE
48. Z AT X EM B AT H1E

(&)

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Shandong Weigao Puri Pharmaceutical ~ PRC RMB100,169,817/ 95.9 95.9 - - Production and marketing
Packaging Co., Ltd. * RMB104,275,000 of medical polymer
LEEEEREEAEERAR) materials and products,
injection puncture
instruments
UEREEREEOEERAT alE] AE100,169,81778/ TERHEBRRNTH
AR 1104,275,0007C BRER IHENE
i
Shandong Mingde Biomedical PRC RMB18,703,417/ - - 51.714 64.41  Production and marketing
Engineering Co., Ltd. * RMB20,000,000 of medical polymer
(LRBEENB2TIRERAT) materials and products,
(note a) injection puncture
URAELNBE2TIRERAR (W & AEH18,703,41770/ A TERBEERRNTH
a) £%20,000,0007 BRER IHENR
i
Yunnan Weigao Orthopaedic Medical ~ PRC RMB50,000/ - - 36.81 41,06 Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000
(EEREERBRERERERALT)
(note a)
EEREANBRENERETAE 8 AR50,0007T/ AR HERERE
(Hyita) 50,000,007
Shandong Weikang Medical PRC RMB2,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000 medical devices
(LRERBENEARAR)
LEHERERLERAR HE AE2,000,0007T/ AR HERHEBERRE
#10,000,0007%
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB10,000,000/ - - 72.18 80.51  Sales of medical devices
Devices Sales Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000
(LREEERBESRHEERAR)
(note a)
UREEEHBESMBERRAT +E AR 110,000,0007/ A HERERE
(Hyita) R 150,000,0007
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

ETE -

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

F+=A=+—

BIEFE

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Hunan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB13,750,000/ - - 54.86 61.19  Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000
(HEREERBESNERAT)
(note a)
HEERERBRRNERAT il AR 13,750,0007/ A HERERE
(Hyta) R 150,000,0007
Sichuan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB5,000,000/ - - 72.18 80.51  Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000
(mEEERBESHERAT)
(note a)
mIEEEREERNERAT alE] AR 85,000,0007T/ AR HEBERE
(Hyta) #50,000,0007%
Fenwei Healthcare Technology PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research, services and
and Development (Shanghai) RMB50,000,000 consulting
Co., Ltd. *
FEEERRENERE (1)
BRAF)
BEERRERRER (LF) el AE¥10,000,0007,/ A & R Rsts
BRAF R #50,000,0007
Weigao Medical Korea Co. Ltd. Korea KRW 173,180,000/ 100 100 - - Sales of medical devices
BEBEREARAR) KRW 168,000,000
ImBEREERAT & 173,180,000%2 7T HEBERE
/'168,000,0008 7
Shandong Weigao Blood Technology ~ PRC nil/ - - 100 100 Research, services and
Limited* USD55,000,000 sales
(LREBmERAERAR)
UEEEMERHERAT HE % //55,000,000% 7T e RERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. xR B X EM B ATIES

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical PRC nil/ - - 95.9 95.9  Production and Sales
Packaging Products Co., Ltd. * RMB45,000,000
(LR BEEARARARAT)
UREREROEARERAR e &/ \R%45,000,0007 EERBE
Weihai Weigao Xinda Enterprise PRC nil/ 90 90 10 10 Consulting
Management Consulting Service RMB100,000
Co., Ltd. *
(AERBEECEERRARE
BRAF)
BSEREECEERTARE HE &/ AR 100,000 ]
BRAS
Weihai Hongyangrui Information PRC nil/ - - 80.15 80.15  Computer technical
Technology Center RMB217,777,770 services and
(Limited Partnership) * sale of electronic products.
(FshBERBREMRO (BREH))
BEhBERERRGRO (BREY) FE &/ \R®217,777,77070 SRBRERERETE
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HIEE
48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. Z AT X EM B AT HTE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(continued)
Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Shandong Weigao Weinasi Medical PRC nil/ 90 90 10 10 Development, services
Technology Co., Ltd. * RMB20,000,000 and sales of
(LEFERNBBERHERAR) medical technology
development.
UEEEEABEBENEERAR  HE &/ AR 20,000,007 BREEMHEE RER
e
Weigao (Beijing) Medical Technology ~ PRC nil/ 100 100 - - Research, sales of
Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000 medicines
(EB bR BEHEERAR)
B (R BEREBRAR il &/ AR 50,000,007 BOHE HE
Shandong Weiteng Medical Products ~ PRC nil/ 1 1 99 99 Sales of medical devices
Co., Ltd. * RMB50,000,000
(LREEBRAERERAR)
UREBEERERERAT HE #/ NR 50,000,000 BERERE
Global Healthcare, Inc. USA UsD3,791,097/ - - 51 51 Distribution of medical
UsD10,000,000 devices
Global Healthcare, Inc. el 3,791,097 7t BERENDH
,/10,000,000%7%

Henan Weigao Orthopaedic Medical ~ PRC RMB50,000/ - - 72.18 80.51  Technology development
Technology Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000 of medical devices,
(TEEEEHEENEERAR) technology consulting

(note a) and service.
Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Type lll medical device
AEREENBENEEARAR (i & AR50,0007T/ AR BEZENRIRE R
a) 10,000,0007c GEELE
HEF— B FERE
—ERERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Shandong Weigao Yahua Orthopaedic ~ PRC RMB10,000,000/ - - 72.18 80.51  Sales of Type I and Type Il
Device Sales Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000 medical device
(LREREERESRHEEERAT)
(note a)
UREEERERMBERRAT HE AR 110,000,0007/ A HEFBNE_EERE
(Mizta) F 110,000,007 Rt
Weigao (Jinan) Orthopaedic Device PRC nil/ - - 50.53 56.36  Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(Ei (E7) BRMEERAR)
(note a)
BE (B BRMHERAT alE] &/ AR 10,000,007 HEF—H FERE
(Mzta) —BERRE,
Weigao (Shanghai) Orthopaedic Device  PRC nil/ - - 72.18 80.51  Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Co., Ltd. * RMB60,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(B (L) BRMBEBRAF)
(note a)
A5 (L) BRMHERAT il &/ AR 60,000,007 HEE-E FENE
(Mzta) “BERRE,
Shandong Gaowo Medical Device PRC nil/ - - 64.96 7246 Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Co., Ltd. * RMB10,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(LRBAEERHERAE) (note d)
UESABERMERAT il &/ AR 10,000,007 HEE-E FENE
(Mzta) “BERRE,
Wego Healthcare Fund Holding USA usn1o - - 100 100 Investment holding
Corporation
(HEBEERESZRAR)
AEEERREESERRE ESE 10%7 RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

ETET

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

—F+A=1+—HLFE

48. ZREEEMB AT F1E

(&)

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Rad Source Technologies, Inc. USA UsD10,634 - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
(ERHHEERAR) X-ray based irradiation
machines;
HBRHHEERAT £S5 10,6345 7 XFHERENRERE
o
Rad Source Medical Technology PRC UsD 1,000,000 - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd. X-ray based irradiation
(uERH (RE) BRRHBRAT) machines;
HERE (hE) BERRERAS  FE 1,000,000% 7 XFHERENRERE
o
Shanghai Weigao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 - - Sales of medical device;
Technology Co., Ltd. *
(LEREBENEARAR)
LERSEENRBRAR e AR 20,000,007 BEBRERE
Shanghai Weigao Gaojingchuang PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 - Production and sales of
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(LBRERABENEERAR) IIl medical devices.
(note a)
LERBRAIBRRKERAR HE AR 120,000,0007 YERBES -8B 5
(Mizta) BRE-BEEZE
Zhejiang Weigao Medical PRC RMB50,000,000 1 1 99 99 Production and sales of
Products Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(FIEERAHRERAR) IIl medical devices.
WIHEERERERAT e AR H50,000,00078 LERBEF-H B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HLFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. Z AT T EME AT EHB
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)

(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Mianyang Weigao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 100 - Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Technology Co., Ltd. * Type Ill medical device;
(EREBEENEERAR)
BEESEENRERAR e AR #20,000,0007T BEE-B E_ERE
“HBERRE;
Shandong Weigao Hainasi Medical PRC RMB11,377,200 - - 66.60 - Development, services
Technology Co., Ltd.* and sales of medical
(LEFEENRRENSERAR) technology
development.
URESEREBERRERAT  HE AE11,377,2007 BREGNRE BBR
HEo
Shanghai Shuruikang Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 100 - - - Production and sales of
Technology Development Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(LEHRRBERRERERAR) IIl medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and Type Il
ray devices.
IENREERNRERERAT  FE AE 20,000,007 TERHEF -85
ERE-HEERE
HEE_BRE-EN
BIEY:
Shandong Weigao Blood Transfusion ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - - - Production and sales of
Technology Equipment Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(LEEBHEOFMTEEERAR) IIl medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and Type lll
ray devices.
UEEEaNETEEERAT HE AE50,000,0007 LERHEE -8 5

BRF-HEERE-
BEZ"ERE-EN
JRfe
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_H=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. Z AT T EME AT EHB
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)
(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ ®+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
8- CZ-%fF Z¥I-§ _B°EF
Weigao(Suzhou) Medical Technology ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 90 - 10 - Production and sales of
Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(Eis (BN BERBBRAT) IIl medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and Type Il
ray devices.
BB G BERRERAH HE AE 10,000,007 tERHEF -8B FZ

BRF-HRERE-
HEFEREZEN

kM-
Shandong Weigao Furui Medical PRC RMB8,000,000 - - 100 - Production and sales of
Products Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(LREEEHERAERERAR) IIl medical devices.
LRERRREARRERAT el AE18,000,0007C YERBES-B B
ERE-BRERE
Shanghai electron Microscope Medical ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - - - Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(LEERRENEERAD) IIl medical devices.

Leasing of Type II, Type lll
medical devices.
IRERBERRAERAT HE AE 10,000,007 YERHES-B B
ERE-HEBERE
HEF_ B 2-BE

EEER

Tianjin Yangfan No. 1 Enterprise PRC RMB746 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

(RREN-—REEEEANAYLE
(BRaH)

REGN-SEXEEHACBLE  TE AE74670 TCRERERRE
(BERED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE - —F+_HA=+—HLFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. Z AT T EME AT EHB
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)
(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
BRITES/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAHE e HEE FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
Z%Z-§ CZ°ZF IZEI-F ZZ°ZF
Tianjin Yangfan No. 2 Enterprise PRC RMB481 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services

(Limited Partnership)*
(REEMN_SE£EETHABLE

(BR&EH)
REGN_SEXEERACHLE  TE ARHE481TT THEBERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 3 Enterprise PRC RMB501 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services

(Limited Partnership)*
REHN=RELEBANABLE

(BRa®)

REGN=REXERLHABLE $E ARB5017T TCRERERRE
(BlRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 4 Enterprise PRC RMB506 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

( /i}’ﬁmﬂmﬁﬁi¥ﬁﬁuuuiﬂ‘&%¢¥
(BlRa®)

FEGRNOREXERAACHLE  FE AEH5067 CEERERRE
(BREH)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 5 Enterprise PRC RMB571 - - - - Enterprise management

Management Consulting Partnership advisory services

(Limited Partnership)*
(REEMAGELEETHNABLE
(BRE%)
FERNAKLLEETHABLE E ARSI TEEREMRS
(BREE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZT——

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of
Name of subsidiary

WRARAE R

registration

Paid up issued/
registered
capital

BETES/
EEE

FH-A=t+—BLEE
48. ZATEEME AR

(&)

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group as at 31 December
% (direct) % (indirect)
2021 2020 2021 2020
R+ZB=+-H
FERARIEZERRE
% (EH) % (1)
8- CZ-%fF Z¥I-§ _B°EF

B

Principal activities

IEEH

Tianjin Yangfan No. 6 Enterprise PRC
Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(FREEMAREEER
(BR&EH)
REGNAREXEERACHLE  TE
(BRa®)

HRHEBLE

Tianjin Yangfan No. 7 Enterprise PRC
Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(RRBENtREEEEANAYLE
(BRa®)

REGMLREXEEHICBLE  TE
(BERED)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 8 Enterprise PRC
Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(REBNN\RLEE
(BlRa®)

REHN\REXEREAGBLE HE
(BREH)

e A

Tianjin Yangfan No. 9 Enterprise PRC
Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(FEEMASEEER
(BR&EH)
REGMASEXEERACHLE  FE
(BRE®)

HRHEBLE

* For identification purposes only

RMB17,000,000

AE17,000,00070

RMB17,540,000

AE817,540,0007

RMB119,153,000

AR 119,153,000

RMB18,974,001

AE18,974,0017

* (EHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§
e TR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. xR B X EM B ATIES

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)

(continued)

Note: MIEE

(@) As disclosed in consolidated statement of changes in (a) HUGEHZEBERMEE B3

MELBERFXZAMAAIIRER L
T EHNREHEAEERBESER
REWB AT ELD -

equity, Weigao Orthopaedic listed separately on Science
and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, resulting in an deemed disposal of the Group’s
interest in Weigao Orthopaedic and the subsidiaries of Weigao
Orthopaedic.

AR M B A B R BT E
ko

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

ARAREERD  BRAEH L
BEBAK B2 RS WE
Ad e

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no subsidiary that has non-controlling interests which is
material to the Group.

49. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49. AR ZMERRE
POSITION
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—Eg-—- —_TTTHF
+ZAH +ZR
=+-—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME~ B R E 2,986,064 3,290,839
Investment properties KREYE 292,450 305,276
Right-of-use assets FRESE 243,187 225,584
Investments in subsidiaries R EABNKE 1,271,556 1,239,184
Interests in an associate R—EBE BN EE 1,004,362 924,633
Interests in a joint venture R—EagtE#En 153,624 154,000
Deferred tax asset RIEIRIEE B 68,840 60,501

Deposit paid for acquiring property,  FtUREEYIZE B RE K&
plant and equipment REENZEE 106,515 60,151
Prepayments FBRIE 79,353 88,170
6,205,951 6,348,338




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E—ZE " —F+_B=+—HIEFE

49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued)

49. AT ZMHBRRR @

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E_—F —ET_ZF
_1+=8B _+=A
={-§ =i-&
ARBFTRT ARETT
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 78 633,363 570,263
Trade and other receivables FEW B R
HAth FE IR IE 3,319,135 3,305,201
Debt instruments at fair value BATESAEMER
through other comprehensive WmstE2EHE LA
income 196,101 241,935
Amount due from subsidiaries PRI /B A B TR IR 8,427,651 5,605,314
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRIRITFEN 222,425 273,558
Bank balances and cash IRTTA R RIRE 1,252,851 2,196,497
14,051,526 12,192,768
Current liabilities mEEE \
Financial liabilities at fair value BATESt ABmEtE
through profit or loss ZEMER 56,694 21,031
Trade and other payables FEfS B Z RN
Hth F& 1 7R 18 1,509,056 2,015,542
Contract liabilities EE N 272,816 144,826
Borrowings (RN 300,000 -
Amount due to subsidiaries FET MY B A B/ IE 4,536,093 3,978,185
Lease liabilities HE&E 8,045 1,428
Tax payable FET R IR - 25,595
Financial guarantee contracts MBIEFREL 7,296 7,196
6,690,000 6,193,803
Net current assets TMENEEFRE 7,361,526 5,998,965
Total Assets less Current Liabilities MEERMEER 13,567,477 12,347,303
Capital and reserves BARK#E
Share capital & 2= 457,063 452,233
Reserves # 11,549,270 10,284,188
Total equity R 42 2B 12,006,333 10,736,421
Non-current liabilities FERBaR \
Financial liabilities at fair value BT ESS ABmEZ
through profit or loss TREE 199 64,847
Borrowings RN 496,497 495,498
Bonds payable B ES 992,549 991,121
Financial guarantee contracts B HEREN 15,028 22,243
Deferred income 30 SIE UL A 37,810 35,073
Lease liabilities HE&R 19,061 2,100
1,561,144 1,610,882
Total equity and non-current liabilities # @ K IE R BB E4E%E 13,567,477 12,347,303
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE _Z _—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49. ZABZHBIRRAR @
POSITION (continued)

Information about the movements in reserves of the BREXANGINREHARHEEBEEE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: 2B BE
Statutory
Share Other surplus Retained
premium reserves reserve profits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HERR
BRiPEE Hithik s 51 REEH it
ARETR AREFR ARETT ARBTT ARET:
At 1 January 2020 RZ2ZZ5—F—H 2,575,060 307,078 226,117 4,836,523 7,944,778
Profit for the year AEE R - - - 2,887,754 2,887,754
Share-based payments (note 38(a)) LU B EREA R
(Bt 5£38(a)) - 7,903 - - 7,903
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADKNES - - - (556,247) (556,247)
At 31 December 2020 RIBTZE+TR
=+—H 2,575,060 314,981 226,117 7,168,030 10,284,188
Profit for the year AEERH - - - 1,707,890 1,707,890
Adoption of share award scheme AR An BB 58I 168,084 - - - 168,084
Share-based payments (note 38(a)) LU B ERERA R
(Fi#5£38(a)) - 44,847 - - 44,847
Dividends recognised as distribution DADTHERE - - - (655,739) (655,739)
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—-%+ZH
=+—-H 2,743,144 359,828 226,117 8,220,181 11,549,270
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I E
For the year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
HE+-B=+—HIEE
B C"EFF “E-NE Z-N\E ZT—tHF
AREBFTR AR®Tx AREFTT AREFTT ARETET
(B E5) <=} (IR E5) (B E5)
RESULTS E4 5
Revenue WA 13,151,719 11,622,337 10,594,855 8,843,807 7,719,229
Profit before taxation BRFZ AT & A 2,841,721 2,565,459 2,294,423 1,777,575 2,084,902
Taxation Ria (415,093) (358,422) (335,056) (258,431) (258,686)
Profit for the year AN E A 2,426,628 2,207,037 1,959,367 1,519,144 1,826,216
Profit for the year FATHRIE
attributable to: FEAEER] :
Owners of the Company KABIEE AN 2,244,778 2,086,783 1,884,070 1,475,198 1,729,507
Non-controlling interests JEERER 181,850 120,254 75,297 43,946 96,709
2,426,628 2,207,037 1,959,367 1,519,144 1,826,216
As at 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
w+=ZB=+—H
g5 —2°FF T-hE ET-N\E E—t&F
ARBFR ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT AR®BTRT
(< E5) (B E75) (2 E75)) (= E75))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZHERAE
Total assets mEE 30,367,058 27,957,716 26,934,976 24,021,030 16,812,491
Total liabilities S =R (9,459,608) (9,079,028) (9,478,608)  (8,840,273)  (3,186,544)
Non-controlling interests JEER (1,640,359)  (845,108)  (811,436)  (678,219) (305,934)
Equity attributable to KABHEB A
owners of the Company 1 1 2 19,267,091 18,033,580 16,644,932 14,502,538 13,320,013
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